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A Patient's Journey
How LORENZO supports it every step of the way

01

Scott Waldron feels
s0 unwell that an amhbulance
has to be called.

02

Paramedics arrive and
find he has extremely
high blood sugar levels.

Images removed for filing purposes.
Please visit www.isoftplc comvinvestor for complete version.
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At the hospital, diabetic A specialist nurse is
ketoacdidosis is diagnosed brought in to advise

and the appropriate 5cott on the management
treatment is prescribed. of his condition.
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LORENZO Interaction
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Using iSOFT's LORENZC
sotution or a tablet PC,

a paramedic inputs details
of Scott's condition to
alert the local hospital.
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Details of the hospital's diagnosis and the treatment
pathway are entered into Scott's care record, again
using LORENZO on a tablet PC. A colour retinal
photograph is alse booked.
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After discharge, Scott

has a colour retinal
photograph to check

for possibte diabetes-related
damage to his eyes.

06

At home, he regularly
checks his blood
sugar level.

An Introduction to iSOFT

07

Scott requires a
repeaat prescription
for insulin.
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Scott can smile again,
knowing his iliness is
being treated and

his condition monitored.
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Via LORENZO, the results
of the colour retinal
photograph are added to
his record and passed on
to his GP.

|

LORENZO enables Scott to

play an active rofe in managing
his condition, Using his digital
TV and its remote control, he
updates his own record with
details of his blood sugar level
and blood pressure. From the
TV screen, he can also check
when he needs to take

his medication.

)

5cott is automatically informed by text message that
he needs s repeat prescription. Using LORENZO,
his GP sends the prescription electronically to Scott's

local pharmacy.

iISOFT is one of the world’s leading suppliers of advanced medical
software applications for the healthcare sector. With our core
application set - LORENZO — we are at the forefront of the

technology revolution taking place in healthcare.

Our products are used by more than 8,000
organisations in 27 countries for managing
patient information and driving improvements

in healthcare services,

We continue to focus on developing innovative
application solutions for all our target markets,
and we have over 1,400 technology specialists
engaged in scftware design, development and

solution delivery.




Report of the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer: The second
half of the financial year ended

30 April 2006 was a turbulent
period for iSOFT...

Background

The second half of the financial year ended 30 April 2006 was a turbulent peried for iSOFT and long-
term shareholders will be feeling deeply disappointed by the events of recent menths. | jeined the Group
as Chairman in October last year and share that disappointment, but | am determined to see through a
series of actions and change that [ believe are necessary to put this company back on a solid footing and
enable it to capitalise on its underlying product strengths and experience.




Report of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The recent phase of events was triggered by the
need to issue a trading statement in January 2006
warning of a sharp reduction in revenues and
profitability for the year ended 30 April 2006,
primarily due to delivery and implementation delays
at the UK National Health Service under the National
Programme for IT ("NPIT”). The NPfIT, which is
explained in greater detail on page 18, is a bold
initiative that | believe will become a blueprint for
the delivery of integrated healthcare on a nationai
basis. However, the sheer scale of the project and its
pioneering aspects have resulted in delays to the
delivery schedule for a wide variety of reasons, some
of which are beyond iSOFT's control. The Nationai
Audit Office report published in June 2006 explains
these reasons, which | am sure will be addressed.

The January trading statement, together with a
related trading update issued on 28 April 2006, had
a negative impact on the Group’s share price.

Revenue recognition accounting policy

in June 2006 the Board anncunced that it had
decided to change the Group's accounting policy for
revenue recognition to an appropriate policy for
today's commercial situation. That change is
incorporated in the results announced today. In the
past, iSOFT was primarily a software product
company serving independant hospital and family
doctor trusts. The Group is now engaged with
larger, more complex and longer-term projects, in
which it is increasingly difficult to distinguish
between the supply of product licences and their
implementation. As a result, the current Board has
decided that the use of the previous accounting
policy has beceme inappropriate and has decided
that licence revenues will in future typically be
recognised over the period of implementation,
which rnay range from a few months 1o a number
of years from contract signature, and over the full
contract duratien in the case of bundled services.

The change in revenue recognition policy has been
implemented by way of a prior year adjustment as
mandated by Internaticnal Financial Reporting
Standard 1. This requires the Group to provide
comparable figures prepared on a consistent basis
for the financial year ended 30 April 2005. The
accounting policy restatement has involved reversing
revenues of £76 million, £54 million and £44 million
{total: £174 million) which were recognised in the
years ended 30 April 2005, 2004 and 2003 or
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earlier, respectively. Those revenues will now be
recognised in future years in accordance with the
provisions ¢f the new accounting policy. In
calculating the prior vear adjustment, note 1 to the
acceunts outlines the limitations in the historical
data available to the Board.

The Group believes that, of the £174 million
revenues reversed, approximately £40-50 million wilk
be recognised in each cof the years ending 30 April
2007 and 2008, and the majority of the balance in
the following three years. The main benefit of this
change will be that revenues will reflect more closely
the Group’s trading activities and be more closely
aligned with the Group's operational cash flows for
the financial year 2009 and subseqguently.

As a result of waork carried out by our auditors to
review the adjustment to past revenues, possible
accounting irregularities have come to light which
have been the subject of an investigation by Deloitte
& Touche LLP and Eversheds LLP. Delojtte & Touche
LLP was appointed as the Greup's auditor in July
2005 and was not therefore acting for the Group
during the period covered by the investigation. After
an initial review, the Board has deemed it
appropriate to suspend Steve Graham, the Group's
Commercial Director, pending the outcome of a
more formal investigation.

The investigaticn concerns several contracts where it
would appear that revenues have been recognised
earfier than they should have been in the financial
years ended 30 Aprii 2004 and 2005 under the
accounting policy in force at that time. The
irregularities uncovered 1o date do not appear to
have affected the cash position of the Group. The
investigation by Deloitte & Touche LLP and
Eversheds LLP is complete and a more formal
investigation by the FSA is under way at today's
date, which may take some months te complete,

Results for the year ended 30 April 2006

Based on the accounting policies that iISOFT used
previously, the Group would have recorded revenues
of £214.0 millien for the year ended 30 April 2006,
which was within the guidance range given in the
trading statement issued cn 28 April 2006. This
was below the figure of £262.0 million reported
for the previous financial year, mainly as a result

of delivery delays under the NFfIT in England.

Profit befare tax and goodwill impairment under
pravious policies, would have been £16.4 million
{(2005: £44.5 million).




Under the new accounting policy and following the
adoption of IFRS, the Group is reporting revenues
{for the year ended 30 April 2006 of £201.7 million,
an increase of 8.4% compared with restated
revenues of £186.1 million for the previous financial
year. After exciuding the impact of acquiring the
Spanish subsidiary Novasoft Sanidad S.A. in October
2005, organic revenue growth was 6.0%. Profit
from operations before goodwill impairment was
£13.3 million, compared with a restated profit

from operations of £8.5 million for the previous
financial year.

The Group had substantial goodwill, before
impairment, of £495.5 million on its balance sheet
at 30 Aprit 2006, more than 80% of which related
to the acquisition of Torex in the 2004 financial year,
with the remainder arising from smaller acquisitions.
Based on expected cash flows from trading
operations in the foreseeable future, the Board has
decided that it would be appropriate to take a one-
time impairment charge of £351.4 million in respect
of goodwill, reducing its value heid on the balance
sheet at 30 Aprit 2006 to £144.1 million. The Group
is required to review the carrying value of goodwill
annually under the new IFRS accounting rules.

After applying the impairment charge of £362.5
million to the Company's carrying value of fixed
asset investments, the Company will have no
distributable reserves and will therefore be unabie to
pay a final dividend for the financial year ended

30 April 2006. The Group intends to evaluate the
opportunities for altering its existing capital structure
in crder to address this distributable reserves deficit.
Nevertheless, we will only be able to pay dividends
in future as and when rescurces permit.

The ¢change in accounting policy for revenue
recognition and goodwill impairment charge had

no effect on cash flow performance last year and
the Group ended the year with net cash of

£16.2 million, excluding the value of contract
finance arrangements brought onto the balance
sheet at April 2006. However, a combination of
lower upfront payments from customers under
today's larger and more complex contracts, together
with a decision to limit the use of non-recourse
financing in future, will result in an unwinding of
customer upfront payments over the next few years.
Consaquently, the Group wilt need to utifise its bank
facilities more extensively than in the past.

Due to the lack of historic contractual cost and
activity information, as explained further in note 1
on page 71, it has not been possible to restate
historic revenues on a strict stage of completion
basis, and therefore we have concluded that the
most appropriate and practicable basis in the
crcurmnstances, is to recognise revenue on existing
contracts using time as the basis of recognition. In
addition, as a result of limitations created by the
potential outcome of the investigation into possible
accounting irregularities and a lack of conclusive
evidence regarding deliveries under the NPfIT, the
independent auditors have been unable to give an
opinion as to whether the financial statements give
a true and fair view in respect of the accounts for
the year ended 30 April 2006 and the comparative
figures for the year ended 30 April 2005, Detalils are
contained in note 1 to the accounts and in the
independent auditors’ report.

Borrowing facilities

At 30 April 2006 the Group had bank facilities of
£144 million, including a revolving credit facility of
£105 million and a term loan facility of £39 million,
both expiring in 2008. In the past, a significant
proportion of cash flows were derived from
customers wiflling to pay upfront for product and
services or from the financing of custemer
receivables. In the main, these upfront payments fell
into two categories; firstly, payments supported by
letters of credit and guarantees, which amounted to
£88.2 million at 30 April 2006 provided under the
£105 million revelving credit facility, and secondly,
payments via third-party contract financing
arrangements which amounted to approximately
£62 million &t 30 April 2006. Following the
adoption of IFRS and further detailed review these
contract financing arrangements have been brought
on to the balance sheet.

The Group's principal covenants under its bank
facilities were that net financial indebtedness,
including letters of credit issued in support of
upfront payments (but excluding non recourse
financing), may not exceed three times earnings
before tax, interest, depreciation and amortisation
{"EBITDA™), and net interest cover must be greater
than five times earnings before interest and
taxation ("EBIT").

Due to the adoption of the new accounting policy
and the expected future cash flow profile of the
business, some aspects of the Group's banking
facilities have had to be amended. The Group has
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The Group has been taking, and continues to take, action to
re-align its operating costs with future revenue expectations.
The Group is targeting to reduce its total operating cost base
to below £185 million by the end of the current financial year.

therefore undertaken discussions with its banks with
the objective of agreeing new terms. The outcome
of those discussions is that the Group will retain the
current facilities with no further amortisation of the
term loan and additiona! facilities of £25 million
which will be available in certain circumstances until
November 2007 on new terms. These terms include
an upfront fee of £1.2 million and higher costs of
borrowing including Payment In Kind {PIK) interest
from 1 lanuary 2007 of 5% per annum for the 3
months to 31 March 2007, 7.5% per annum for the
3 menths to 30 June 2007 and 10% per annum
thereafter. Within those terms, the Group will issue
warrants amounting to 3.7% of iSOFT equity to the
banks, with a strike price of 10p, when shareholder
approval is obtained. An exit fee of £15 million is
payable at the end of the facility, on refinancing or
on change of control of the Company, and if the
warrants are not issued prior to 31 October 2006. If
the warrants are issued prior 10 31 October 2006
then no exit fee is payable. Further details of the
revised banking faciiities are available in the
Financial Review on page 22.

The new terms will provide the Group with funding
for its ongoing operations, see note 1, and provide
a period of stability in which we can consider and
execute a longer term financial strategy.

Disposal of non-core assets

As part of the review of its finandial position, the
Group is considering the disposal of several non-
core assets, including freehold properties. We
announced the disposal of our Swiss operation

to Nexus Medizinesoftware und Systeme AG on

31 May 2006. That operation had revenues of less
than £5 million last year, but generated a loss of
£0.7 million. The sale and purchase agreement will
allow iSOFT to focus on its key markets, whilst at
the same time retaining the right to sell our
strategic product offering LORENZO into that market
in due course.

We have already carried out an extansive
consalidation of UK locations following the merger
with Torex and some further rationalisation of our
locations is taking place at the moment. The Group
owns two freehold properties and these will be
divested as socn as possible.

Streamlining the cost base

The Group has been taking, and continues 1o take,
action to re-align its operating costs with future
revenue expectations. As part of this process we are
examining in detail the operating cest structure of
each of our operations, both in the UK and
internationally, to identify areas for cost reduction
and improved organisational efficiency. The Group is
targeting to reduce its total cperating cost base
from an annual run rate of just over £209 million at
1 May 2006 to below £185 million by the end of
the current financial year. The current run-rate is
higher than the total actual cost incurred for the
year just ended because the Group has increased
significantly its level of development resources to
support both existing and future applicaticns.

As part of the plan to reduce costs, the Group
entered into a consultation process with employees
in the UK in early May 2006 and it is likely that at
least 150 employees, representing approximately
15% of total headcount in the UK, will be made
redundant. The cost of this action will be about

£3 million, but is expected to reduce the current
annual cost base by approximately £6 miltion.

The Group also intends to reduce staff levels in
some of its internationa!l operations and has taken
steps to reduce sub-contract and overhead costs as
part of the financial year 2007 budget review
process. The total cost of action already in hand to
reduce the cost base, which will be taken as a one-
time charge in the year ending 30 April 2007, is
estimated to be at least £7 million.




Commercial strategy

The NPFIT in England is the world's largest civilian [T
project today and the first attempt to implement an
integrated national healthcare solution, based on
minimurn standard specifications for patient records
and supperted by a dedicated national communication
network and data base. it is a bold initiative and
iISOFT intends to continue playing a significant part
in helping to produce an efficient health service in
the UK. Further details of iSOFT's commercial,
contractual and potential for liability position within
the NPAIT are available within the Financial Review
on page 18.

In the short-term, delivery schedules and payment
milestones are being revised in all regions, affecting
most contracted parties and that process is on
going. On 11 August 2006, iISOFT signed a
Memorandum of Understanding with Computer
Sciences Corporation ("CSC") confirming the
schedule under which it wili provide deliveries to
CSC up to a value of £153 million in respeci of the
CSC agreement, including £36 million already
defivered, subject to the satisfactory achievemnent of
delivery milestones, with the opportunity to win
additional NPIT business in future through CSC in
certain circumstances. Under this agreement, iISOFT
has made a number of commitments in respect 10
the future development of its products for the NPIT
and the costs that it will bear for that work. C5C
will have the right to take over the management of
the development team in the event that iSOFT is
unable to fulfil those obligations. However, the
ownership of the Intellectual Property Rights {IFR)
remain with i[SOFT under all circumstances. This
agreement offers greater certainty of cash flow tc
iISOFT since payments are tied to specific milestones
tied for the most part to software incremental
releases.

In international markets, the Group has a strong
presence in Germany, The Netherlands, Spain and
Asia Pacific, where we believe that market
conditions are appropriate for selling our products,
including LORENZO. We also believe that France and
Italy will provide favourable environments in due
course. Qur primary focus is on the major markets
of Western Europe and specific parts of Asia Pacific.

The United States represents more than half of the
worldwide market for healthcare iT and is a
tempting prospect, but our resources are insufficient
at the current time to enable us to tackle such a
large market directly without incurring excessive risk.
Nevertheless we continue 1o keep a watching brief
on this oppertunity and to evaluate a number of
partnership proposals.

Product development

LORENZO is iSOFT's flagship strategic offering and it
is central to the Group's future, It is an integrated
healthcare system, built using a modern services
oriented architecture (SOA) and adopting web-based
protacols. It is designed to be flexible, adaptable
and will provide customers with easy operability and
lower costs of ownership than any other healthcare
IT product. That flexibility will enable customers to
upgrade existing systems incrementally, phase and
manage their investrent resources and provide
them with a low-risk, fully compatible upgrade path.

LORENZO comprises several layers of development.
The technology layers - also packaged as Healthcare
Studio - provide a framawork within which both
iSOFT and third-party systems can be retained by
customers but enabled to communicate securely
with newly installed LORENZO solution applications.
Completed LORENZO functicnality is now being
tested in early adopter sites in Germany and Singapore.
The subsequent development of individual user
solution modules will follow after that.

We intend to begin dalivering LORENZO
functionality to users within the NPIT before the
end of 2007, and for individuzl solution modules to
become available on a phased basis through 2008.
We continue to apply substantial resources to the
development of LORENZO, with much of that
resource located in Chennai and Hyderabad in India,
where the Group now has 1,454 employaes.

Board representation

The Board has undergone substantial change in the
past twelve months. Patrick Cryne stepped down as
Non-executive Chairman in October 2005, at which
time | was appointed to replace him, as explained in
our haif-year report. Colin Wall resigned from the
Board on 3 Apni! 2006.

Tim Whiston resigned as Chief Executive Officer on
14 June 2006. | have taken over the responsibilities
of the Chief Executive until such time as we are able
to appoint a suitable replacerment.
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The NPHIT in England is the world's largest civilian IT project
today and the first attempt to implement an integrated national
healthcare solution. It is a bold initiative and iSOFT intends to
continue playing a significant part in helping to produce an

efficient health service in the UK.

On 20 July 2008, the Group announced that it had
commissionad an investigation into possible
accounting irregularities. On 8 August 20085, the
Board concluded that there are grounds for a more
formal investigation and the Board deemed it
appropriate to suspend Steve Graham, Group
Commercial Director, pending the final cutcome of
a more formal investigation. One other employee
has been put on special leave of absence. The other
employees that appear to be involved have since left
the Group. The resuits of the initial investigation
have been presented to the FSA, who will be
conducting the formal investigation.

Management and employees

I am pleased to report that we have been active in
appointing new management to guide the Group.
Bill Henry joined iSOFT on 28 June 2006 as Chief
Operating Officer. Ha comes to the Group with
extensive experience in leading organisational
change at PeopleSoft and establishing strong
professional services capability. His backgreund in
delivering and implementing advanced technology
products and providing high-quality support for
complex enterprise level projects witl be relevant and
impertant assets for the Group.

We have also appointed a new Group Programme
Management Office Director, Chris Feeley. Chris has
over 20 years of programme management
experience in software and systems development
and censulting services.

I am also pleased to welcome three new country
Managing Directors - Peter Herrmann in Germany,
Katrina Diaz in Spain and Tommy Soh Boon Boon in
Asia. All three have deep experience in the industry
and are already making significant contributions 1o
their businesses.

This has heen a very difficult and uncertain period
for all employees and it is at times like this that their
dedication, particularly in the face of widespread
and sometimes misleading outside comment, is
most appreciated. | am most grateful to them.

Outlook for 2007

At the present time, there remains some lack of
certainty regarding future deliveries under England’s
NPfIT. Prospects in the international markets are
more predictable, nevertheless we cannot give
accurate guidance for 2007 revenues at the present
time, aithough it is likely that the second half of the
year will be stronger than the first.

The Group's annualised cost base at 30 April 2006
was around £209 million. After taking account of
cost reduction action currently underway, we expect
to reduce our total costs below that level in 2007
and te exit the year with an annualised cost base of
not more than £185 million. The extent of the
profitability of the Group remains dependent on a
number of key commercial outcomes,

We expect a signiicant operating cash outflow
during the current financial year, as some customer
upfront payments unwind and due to one-time
expenditure to reduce the cost base going forward.
Nevertheless, the Group has funding arrangements
in place with its banks which, subjeci to the
uncertainties discussed in note 1, will help to ensure
that it remains within the terms of its banking

agr it throughout this period.

U

John Weston
Chairman and acting Chief Executive Qfficer
25 August 2006




iISOFT builds software applications
for the healthcare market.

We are a leader in the provision of advanced application solutions
in modern healthcare economies around the world. We are
creating solutions that set a new standard in supporting
co-operation between all those involved in healthcare delivery.

iSOFT has delivered applications to more than 8,000 healthcare units in 27 countries, including 1,800
hospitals and mare than 6,200 family doctor practices.

iSOFT is developing and starting to deliver LORENZO, its latest generation product, which we believe

is one of the maost advanced healthcare IT systams in the world. LORENZO is based on a service oriented
architecture {SOA), which makes it highly flexible, scalable and with low costs of maintenance and
operation. LORENZO provides a low-risk, modular upgrade path for healthcare authorities.

LORENZQ is a state of the art healthcare solution addressing fully the administrative and clinical
information management requirements of ¢itizens, patients and healthcare professionals. It is designed to
help promote dinical and corperate governance, guality, efficiency and consent in healthcare, enhancing
the experience for all participants. It provides growth potential and flexibility for the future,

LORENZO - One product, many solutions.




History of iSOFT

The business initially operated as part of the KPMG
partnership under the trading name KPMG Health
Systemns. The business was subseguently bought out
from KPMG in April 1998. On 19 July 2000, iSOFT
Group plc achieved a full listing on the London
Stock Exchange. The business has since continued to
act as a consolidater in the healthcare applications
market, and the principal milestones of its
development are set out below.

2005 Acquisition of Novasoft Sanidad S.A.
2004 World-wide strategic ailiance with Microsoft

Two principal contracts entered into to
deliver software and services as part of the
National Programme for IT {NPfiT)

2003
2002

Merger with Torex plc
Acquisition of Revive Group Limited
Acquisition of Paramedicat Pty Limited

Acquisition of healthcare business of
Northgate Infermation Solutions ple

Microsoft global launch partner, and the only
European software partner for the Windows
XP Tablet PC launch

2001 Dedicated offshore development business

established in Chennai, India
Acguisition of ACT Medisys Limited

Acquisition of Eclipsys Limited and
Eclipsys Pty Limited

2000
1999

Full listing on London Stock Exchange

Only Microsoft SQL Server 7.0 launch partner
in UK health

Acquisition of CSC's Australian healthcare
systems business

1998
1994

MBO by senior executives 1o create iSOFT

Healthcare information systems business
founded within KPMG
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Strategic objectives

iISOFT's aim is to become the global leader in the
development and distribution of comprehensive and
modern scftware applications for the healthcare
sector. These applications are a core component of
modern healthcare IT investment programmes.

iSOFT was among the first to predict the nature and
scope of the healthcare reform now being seen in
many of the world's modern economies and the
important role that information technology has 1o
play in supporting this reform agenda. The demand
for modern information management systems is
growing and the Group is weil placed to participate
as an international vendor.

Business strategy

A clearly defined business strategy accompanied
iISOFT's listing on the London Stock Exchange in
2000. Consistent with this strategy, management
has from the outset foccused on exploiting the best
technology available to develop software application
systems that address the administrative and clinical
information management needs of healthcare
provider organisations. These needs include
administrative tasks such as appointment booking,
resource scheduling, clinical information
management and electronic patient record creation
and exchange.

As the demand for advancad healthcare applications
has developed, both in the UK and internationally,
iSOFT has established a reputation for anticipating
and planning for the emerging requirements of
modern healthcare provision. Management's
strategy for developing the Group's global capability
has been focussed on leveraging the extensive
existing product portfolio by incorporating
international best practice into new strategic
product offerings such as LORENZO. The Group
seeks to comhine this expertise with the latest
refevant and proven technologies to ¢reate the most
competitive application offerings whilst minimising
tachnology risk.




The following diagram illustrates the success achieved by iSOFT in building successive generations of
software, by predicting and then targeting the evolving market requirements, whilst also harnessing the best

available technology at the time.

image removed for filing purpases.

Please visit www.isoftplc comvinvestor for complete version.

Source: Management

ISOFT recognised that large-scale procurement
needs would favour international vendors of
substance, often operating in consortia. iSOFT has
therefore built business alliances and, where
appropriate, made strategic acquisitions which equip
the Group to accommodate local reguirements,
whilst delivering solutions that reflect international
best practice. Management will continue 1o forge
alliances and partnerships and to evaluate
opportunities by which entry into new geographic
markets can be accelerated.

Market drivers
Madern economies face a number of commen
challenges in healthcare provision.

The rising cost of healthcare - An ageing
population, rising prescription drug costs, malpractice
claims, government regulation and advances in
medicine and diagnostic techniques have increased
costs associated with healthcare defivery.

Increasing patient-driven demand - A rise in
healthcare consumerism, with patients demanding
greater access to safe, timely, quality care and,
where direct payment is required, competitive pricing.

Reduced funding - Changes in funding models,
typically resulting in a reduction in the level of
funding available, are compelling drivers for
increasing efficiency, particularly in clinical and
administrative workflows,

Increasing regulation - As new and more rigorous
clinical governance and mandatory reporting
regulations are introduced, providers continue to
assess and upgrade 1T systems to achieve compliance.

These drivers are consistent throughout all modern
healthcare economies, thereby creating a significant
global market for integrated IT applications, systems
and solutions. individual economies are re-engineering
their domestic healthcare systems at different rates,
with the UK National Health Service leading the
way. It is now widely accepted that addressing the
needs of individual heaithcare units on a standalone
basis will not suffice if meaningful improvements are
to be achieved. More fundamental structural reform
is required with care processes delivered by a variety
of healthcare organisations and professionals acting
collaboratively and in increasingly formalised
relationships.

Investment in a new generation of information
management systems, which permit the scheduling
of resources and the communication of
comprehensive patient information across traditional
organisational boundaries, is now recognised as
critical to supperting the transformation of
healthcare provision.
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iSOFT's broad and technologically capable product offering
and large number of reference sites creates a strong competitive
position in the global healthcare IT market.

Market size

The international healthcare information technology market, including software, hardware and services,
was estimated to be worth just over £10 billion in 2005. Frost & Sullivan forecast that this figure will reach
£17 billion by 2010, giving a compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of around 11%. The size and growth

rates for each major region are estimated as follows:

(Em) EMEA
o sqze'zocs' . | e 1596 o
9% CAGR 10.6%
Est. Market size 2010 3,303

Americas APAC Total
6882 1322 10,201
10.7% 12.7% 10.9%
11,443 2,340 17,086

Source: Frost & Sullivan - Global Market Sizing, Analysis of Healthcare IT Markets, March 2006

EMEA: Europe (including Scandinavia), Middle East and Africa
Armnericas: United States and Canada, Central and South America
APAC: Asia Pacific, incuding Australia and New Zealand.

The Group believes that healthcare information
software represents approximately 40% of the
above market.

International competition

Given the historic fragmentation of the healthcare
systems market, the competitive landscape in each
geographic market tends to be dominated by small,
country-specific vendors ahead of market reform
(e.g. the NPfIT in England). In line with the market's
move towards more comprehensive integrated
solutions, sub-scale local vendors are increasingly
being squeezed out of the market in favour of a
small number of international vendors with the
reputaticn and investment capacity to deliver
against integrated national requirements.

iISOFT's broad and technolegically capable product
offering and large number of reference sites creates
a strong competitive position in the global
healthcare [T market. 1SOFT's success in recent
high-profile procurements has confirmed the
strength of the Company’s preduct and, in
particular, that of the LORENZO strategic application
roadmap. ISOFT is today a leading supplier of
technologically advanced healthcare software
applications in the international market, due to the

Company's significant installed internationai base,
its market-leading LORENZQ solution roadmap,
participation in major market reform projects and
key early adopter reference sites.

Barriers to market entry

ISOFT software has already been deployed in a large
number of trusts and healthcare organisations. To
replace these installed systems with alternative
systems and applications would be expensive,
time-consuming and would potentially lead to a loss
of functionality.

The LORENZQ roadmap will provide the most
advanced and only fully integrated software solution
capabile of seamlessly meating both the functional
and strategic capabilities sought by the NPIIT in
England and other large-scale healthcare
procurement organisations. Given the broad
conservatism of the healthcare market, any major
new investment must support the phased migration
of existing legacy systems, thereby reducing the risks
and cost asseciated with new IT investments.

In summary, the structural growth market for
international heaithcare IT, combined with iSOFT's
well established international position and
market-leading LORENZO solution, provides a hasis
for solid growth over the coming years.




A Patient’s Journey

Patient: Scott Waidron
DOB: 09/06/1978
Symptoms: Tiredness,
thirst, lethargy,
blurred vision

L.

Image removed for filing purposes.
Please visit www.isoftple.com/investor for complete version.
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The year ended 30 April 2006

was a challenging period for

the Group...

Operationally we have seen progress in developing some of our
international markets, however, this has been overshadowed by the
delays and complexities surrounding the National Programme for I'T

(NPfIT) in England.

LORENZ(O in action
o1

Scott Waldron is unwell but can't
work out why. Feeling tired and
thirsty all the time, he's been
finding it difficult to get through
a full day's work. Tender loving
care makes a difference of
course, but it's not the full
remedy. He's reached a stage
where there's no alternative but
to call an ambulance.

Continued on page 24.

Overview

The year ended 30 April 2006 was a challenging
period for the Group. Operationally we have seen
progress in developing some of our international
markets, however, this has been overshadowed by
delays and complexities surrounding the NPIT in
England, which severely affected financial
performance in the second half of the year.

Accounting policies

The Group's financial statements have been
prepared following international Financial Reporting
Standards ("IFRS™) fer the first time, imptementing a
change in revenue recogniticn policy announced in
June 2006 and adopting a new treatment of certain
contract financing activities.

The Group reported under the new IFRS regulations
for the first time when it announced its unaudited
results for the half year to 31 October 2005, Results
for the full year ended 30 April 2006 have been
prepared and fully audited under IFRS for the first
time and a reconciliation between previous
standards and IFRS is inciuded in note 31 to the
accounts. The adjustment relating to contract
financing obligations was not reflected in the
unaudited half year results.




The key differences that affect iSOFT are as foliows:

» Development expenditure - the Group previously
expensed all development expenditure as
incurred, under UK GAAP. IFRS requires that,
providing certain criteria are met, such
expenditure should be capitalised and amortised
over its usefu! life commencing from the date at
which the asset is available for use.

« Goodwil| amortisation - the Group previously
amortised goodwill on a straight-line basis over its
astimated useful economic life of up 10 20 years
under UK GAAP. Under IFRS, goodwill is not
amartised, but the Group is required to conduct a
full impairment review at each balance sheet
date, or more frequently, as appropriate. Any
impairment charge is recorded in the Income
Statement.

» Share-based payments - under UK GAAP the cost
of share options was based on the difference
between exercise price and the market value of
options at their date of grant. Since grants made
under the Group's share option schemes have
normally been made at an exercise price equal to
the market value, they have not normally resulted
in any charge to the Income Statement. Under
IFRS the Group is required to recognise the fair
vatue of all share options granted since
7 Novernber 2002 that have not fully vested at
1 May 2005, using an option pricing model, and
record a charge in the income statement.

» Contract financing obligations - formerly
contract financing obligations were considered
non-recourse and were therefore not recognised
in the balance sheet. It is now considered
appropriate to recognise these obligations as a
balance sheet liability. At the time of reporting
the unaudited results for the half year to 31
October 2005 the Group, in consultation with its
auditers, Deloitte & Touche LLP. recognised the
liabilities in respect of £6.1 million of the Group's
contract financing activities at 30 April 2005. In
reporting the results for the year ended 30 April
2006, following a detailed review of contract
financing activities as part of their audit, Deloitte
& Touche LLP has advised the Company that the
liabilities in respect of all of the contract financing

arrangements be recognised on the balance
sheet. This increases the liabilities recorded at
30 April 2006 by £58 million (o a total of

£62 million} and increases the finance costs far
the year then ended, as detailed in note 31.

The Board considers that a change is taking place in
the nature of the Group's business, with an
increasing proportion of sales being derived fram
larger, more complex and long-term contracts
requiting a period of implementation. At the same
time, a much smaller proportion of upfront
payments are now available in the early stage of
contracts. Consequently, the Board announced an
8 June 2006 that it had reviewed the revenue
recognition policy and, as a result of that review,
decided that a change in policy is appropriate.

Licence ravenues were praviously recagnised on
delivery of the software product to the customer but
wili now typically be recognised over the period of
implementation, which may range from a few
menths 1o a number of years from contract
signature, or over the full duration of the contract in
the case of bundled services. Full details of the
background and implementation of the new policy
are contained in note 2 to the accounts.

The change in revenue recognition policy has been
implemented by way of a prior year adjustment, as
required by IFRS 1. This requires the Group to
provide comparable figures prepared on a consistent
basis for the financial year ended 30 Apnl 2005.

A reconciliation is contained in the notes to the
accounts and involves reversing revenues of

£76 million, £54 million and £44 million which were
recognised in the years ended 30 April 2005, 2004
and 2003 or earlier, respectively. Those revenues will
now be recognised in future years in accordance
with the provisions of the naw accouniing palicy.

As a resuit of work carried out by the auditors to
review the adjustment of past revenues, possible
accounting irregularities have come to light which
have been independently investigated by Deloitte &
Touche LLP and Eversheds LLP. The investigation
concerns several contracts where revenue may not
have been recognised in the financial years ended
30 April 2004 and 2005 in accordance with the
accounting policy in force at that time. The
Company’s investigation is complete and a more
formal investigation by the FSA is underway.
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In the year to 30 April 2006, revenue for the Group increased
8.4%, from £186.1 million to £201.7 million and the underlying
organic growth of the Group during the year was therefore 6.0%.

Trading results

In the year to 30 April 2008, revenue for the
Group increased 8.4%, from £186.1 million to
£201.7 million, The acquisition of Novasoft Sanidad
S.A.in Spain in Octaber 2005 contributed revenue
of £4.4 million and the underlying organic growth
of the Group during the year was therefore 6.0%.

Cperating profit before goodwill impairment was
£13.3 million compared with £8.5 millicn for the
previous year. The operating margin of 6.6% reflects
a substantial level of expenditure on maintaining
existing products and developing the LORENZG
platform. At the current time the Group is
continuing to maintain nearly 30 core products
within the Group's intellectual property portfolio
whilst at the same time developing LORENZO. in
2006, the cost of preduct development and
support, net of the amounts capitalised in
accordance with IFRS, was £22.6 million, which
compares with £15.9 million in the previous year.
This is an essential commitment to maintaining the
Group's position as a leading healthcare software
product and services company. Other cperational
costs remain too high for the revised level of
revenue generation and action is being taken to
reduce the cost base.

Information is also contained below relating to the
status of NPfIT in England. This outlines a number of
difficulties with regards to the progress of contracts
during the year, including an exchange of formal
correspendence alleging material contractual breach.

We have continued to invest in our dedicated
Product Development Centre in Chennai (India),
and the Solution Centre in Hyderabad {india}. The
number of application specialists in India grew over
the course of the year from 956 to 1,454,
representing approximately 50% of the total
headcount of the Group. Investment in the Product
Development Centre is expected to peak in the year
to 30 April 2007. We anticipate a reduction in the
number of core products and variants being
maintained as these are replaced over the medium
term by the LORENZO product suite.

The level of Greup profitability is clearly below our
medium-term expectations and, therefore, to
improve efficiency and streamline the cost base, we
have embarked on a programme to reduce costs in
all areas of the business, particularly indirect and
non-hillable cests and including Group overheads.
At 30 April 2006 the annualised total cost run rate
was £209 million, the cost base having risen though
the year as a result of increased costs of product
development and support for the NPfIT.

Actions already in hand include a reducticn in
headcount of at least 150 employees in the UK,
including a significant reduction in Group overheads.
There will be further headcount reductions in parts
of our international cperations and a broad review
of non-staff costs is on-going throughout the
business. The Group is also seeking to dispose of
non-core assets, including freehold properties. All of
the above actions are anticipated to reduce the cost
base significantly in the current financial year and
we expect to exit the year at an annualised total
cost run rate of not more than £185 million, Actions
currently in hand are expected to give rise to a
one-off cost in the year to 30 April 2007 of at least
£7 million and longer-term actions may require
additional one-time costs.




Operating performance

The iSCFT strategy is to develop and promote a
common software application offering that is
adaptable for all markets and this continues to
provide a focal point for our cperational and
marketing activities. The directors believe that the
LORENZO application cffering is being positively
received by customers. Product roll oui is taking
place at early adopter sites in Germany and
Singapore that will be testing and implementing the
product during the 2006 calendar year and we
expect to see the commencement of LORENZO user
functionality in the United Kingdem from late 2007
cnwards, The Group's mainstreamn activities in the
United Kingdom, Europe and Asla Pacific therefore
continue to sell and support the existing product
portfolio, aided by the pull of the LORENZO
product roadmap.

Our activities in the United Kingdom remain
dominated by the provision of services around a
strong installed base of existing clients. Work under
the NPf(T is building up, with the initial delivery of
existing products such as iSOFT Patlent Manager
(i.PM) and ISOFT Chnical Manager (i.CM) infto many
health trusts. Existing systems are being packaged
with core elements of LORENZQ technology,
enabling those systems to communicate with the
NHS National Data Spine and the new national
network. Existing applications will be upgraded 1o
LORENZO functicnality from late 2007 onwards. This
will provide customers with a phased, low-risk
migration of their systems.

Subsequent to the year end, the Group has reached
an agreement whereby the iSOFT Naticnal
Programme software will be installed in sevan
hospitals in the London and Southern regions.
Additionally, iSOFT has reached agreement with CSC
in relation to rescheduling payment milestones for
the remainder of the NPIT in England.

in Europe and Asia we have delivered LORENZO intc
early adopter sites at the University Hospital Aachen
and the Robert Bosch hospital in Germany and at
SingHeatth, the largest cluster of public healthcare
institutions in Singapore. The systems are being
vigorously tested for scalability and functionality
and we are making sclid and satisfactory progress.
In Australia, iSCFT won a major order to supply the
State of Victoria HealthSmart Patient and
Management System over ten years, reinforcing our
presence in that region.

In Eurape, the Group acquired Novasoft Sanidad S.A.
during the year, providing a base of operaticns in
Spain ahead of the increase that is expected in
regional public tender activity. This adds to our
strong existing presence in The Netherlands and
Germany and the opportunities that we are
considering in France and ltaly. We believe that
many of the major countries in Western Europe will
introduce standardisation in the provision of
healthcare systems in the coming years, in order to
reduce their costs and improve services. This
represents a significant opportunity for iSOFT in

the future, benefiting from its experience in the
United Kingdom.

Interest

Net interest in the year was £5.6 million

(2005: £6.3 million}. This reflects the benefit of high
levels of upfront payments from customers received
in the previous financial year, offset by the increase
in finance charges relating to contract financing
agreements. The net interest charge comprises:

2006 2005
£'000 £'000
Interest paid on term loan (2,338) (3,087)

(1,252} (856)

Facility non-utilisation and

margn on LOCs (608 (278
Contraci funding finance charges  (3,726) (2,558)
Other finance osts (824} (755}
Total finance costs {8,748} {7,534)

investment revenue 3,099 1,254

Net interest charge (5,649} {6,280)
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The Group's mainstream activities in the United Kingdom,

Europe and Asia Pacific continue to sell and support the existing
product portfolio, aided by the pull of the LORENZO

product roadmap.

Goodwill impairment

At 30 April 2006 the Group carried goodwill with

a gross book value of £495.5 million, of which
£404.2 million derived from the acquisition of Torex.
The carrying value of this goodwill has been
reviewed by the directors in accordance with IFRS.
Based on the Group's anticipated future cash flows,
the Board has decided that it would be appropriate
1o recognise an impairment charge of £351.4 million,
reducing the carrying value of goodwill on the
balance sheet to £144.1 million. The key assumptions
and estimates involved in calculating the discounted
cash flows used to derive this impairment are
explained in note 11.

Taxation

The current tax charge in 2005 remains as it was
under the old accounting policy, since the effect of
the prior year adjustment for 1ax purposes is treated
as a current year item. The 2006 current tax credit
of £6.4 million reflects the benefit of carrying back
losses arising from the prior year adjustment.

The tax charge in 2005 has been restated to
incorporate the tax effect of the revised accounting
policy for revenue recognition which impacts
deferred tax only. However, in the current
circumstances the Group is cbliged to write off a
substantial portion of the deferred tax asset created,
under the provisions of IFRS 1, at 30 April 2005, The
write off of the deferred tax assets has resulted in
an overall tax charge of £38.4 million for the year
ended 30 Aprit 2006.

{Loss)/earnings per share
The basic loss per share was 165.1p (2005 earnings
per share of 2.6p).

Risk factors

The Group's financial condition and results of
operations could be materially affected by a number
of internal or external events or factors. These risks
are broadly categorised under the following headings:

¢ Market-related risks

» The competitive position of the Group

» The National Pregramme for IT in England
« The financial position of the Group

Additional risks not currently known to the Group,
or risks that we currently regard as immaterial, could
have a material adverse effect on the Group's
financial condition or the results of operations.
These may be considered either as downside risk -
the risk that something can go wrong and result in
a financial loss or financial exposure for the Group -
or volatility risk. Volatility risk is the risk associated
with uncertainty, which means that there may be an
opportunity for financial gain as well as finandial loss.

Market-related risk

iISOFT operates in the international healthcare IT
market. The use of [T systems in healthcare provision
remains comparatively low compared with other
industries. US healthcare spending is already high as
a percentage of gross domestic product (GDP), but
spending is rising rapidly in many other developed
economies and represents an increasing proportion
of government spending, especially due to the
ageing profile of the population. Improving the
efficiency and effectiveness of healthcare provision is
therefore a priority in many economies and
healthcare {T spending is increasing at rates between
6-9% per annum. The Group therefore believes that
it is operating in a market with above-average
growth prospects into the foreseeable future.




Political or social risk: the Group operates mainly
in Western Europe, Asia, Australia and New Zealand
and believes that the risks of disruption to its
operations in these regions is comparatively small.

Environmental or other regulatory risk: the
Group does not operate in a significantly hazardous
ingustry, nevertheless it takes reasonable steps to
ensure that it complies with regulations relating to
the disposal and recycling of computer equipment,
the control of water discharge and air emissions and
that it minimises paper use.

Competitive position

Customer dependence: the Group has a large
number of individual customers. The Group
recorded revenues of £35.5 million under England's
National Programme for IT in the year ended

30 April 20086, representing 18% of total revenues,
although this was mainly in respect of two
customers, each of which was a regional prime
contractor under that project. Were the Group not
to be invelved in NPFIT it would have a material
adverse impact on the Group's revenues and profits.
To manage the risk the Group continues to apply
significant focus and resource to ensuring that the
requirements of this complex programme are
fulfilled. Sales to the next largest customer
amounted to £3.5 million.

Technology and intellectual property rights: the
Group develops and installs administrative and
clinical healthcare software systems. its future
financial success depends on continuing to develop
systems with better functionality and lower costs of
ownership for its customers. iSOFT has a history of
developing advanced products since its launch in
1998 and the current development of LORENZO is
expected to maintain the Group's technolegy lead.
However, the Group is at risk if its systems do not
function properly, if competitors are able to develop
similar technology independently and more quickly,
and if the Group dces not adequately protect its
intellectual property or does not take steps to
prevent the misappropriation or infringement of its
intellectual property.

Key employees: the Group's success depends on
recruiting and retaining key management,
development, support and sales staff. Given the
current circumstance surrounding the Group, the
risk of the Group not being able to retain and
recruit high calibre employees is increased. The
Group therefore employs a range of policies and
practices to incentivise, motivate and retain key
employees, but the Group is at risk if it does not
take adequate steps to retain such empioyees.

Reputationak: The recent phase of events and
publicity surrounding iSOFT, including the profits
warnings in January and April 2006, and the change
in revenue recognition policy has had an adverse
impact on the reputation of ISOFT with regard to its
products and its financial structure. These concerns
surrounding iSOFT have had an impact on the
propensity of custemers to enter inte contracts with
the Group. In this regard the Group has revised its
bank facilities, providing a period of stability during
which it can consider and implement a suitable long
term financial strategy. The Group continues to
focus on delivery under its existing contracts,
demonstrating the quality of its software.

The National Programme for IT in England
Through its subsidiary company iISOFT plc, the
Company entered into two principal contracts {“the
Contracts”) to deliver software and services as part
of the Naticnal Programme for IT (NPfIT). On 2 April
2004, the Company signed a contract with
Accenture (UK) Limited {“ Accenture”), a Local
Service Provider ("tSP™), to deliver software and
services to the North-East and East Midlands clusters
{the * Accenture Agreement”). On 28 April 2004,
the Company signed a contract with C5C Computer
Sciences Limited (*CSC”), an LSP. to deliver software
and services to the North-West and West Midlands
cluster (the “CSC Agreement”).

The functional requirements established at the
outset by the National Programme for Information
Technology in the NHS are for software with the
same overall functionality to be delivered by
Accenture and CSC. However, the contractual
frameworks used by Accenture and CSC 1o pass
these functional requirements on to the Company
differ, in particular with respect to the requirements
due to be delivered during different phases of the
NPAIT, the responsibility for testing and acceptance,
the payment profiles and penalties for delays.
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iSOFT has a history of developing advanced products since its
launch in 1998 and the current development of LORENZO is
expected to maintain the Group's technology lead.

The Contracts provided for deliveries under the
initial phases of the NPfIT to be satisfied using
existing software that had already been successtully
deployed to NHS Trusts and for later phases to be
satisfied using a combination of existing products
and iSOFT's next generation product - LORENZO.

The NPfIT is an ambitious programme to deliver
integrated electronic patient records nationatly. The
creation of a national electronic patient recerd
requires departmental, patient administration and
generzl practitioner software 1o communicate on a
national basis and on a scale that has not previously
been attempted anywhere in the world. It is a
ground-breaking programme and there are a
number of challenges facing the programme, most
of which were summarised in the recent National
Audit Office (NAQ) report published on 16 June 2006.

Within the NHS, hospitals and general practice
surgeries vary enormously in the sophistication and
maturity of their use of IT and their methods of
working. The functional requirements which the
software has to satisfy are also open t0 a number of
different interpretations, which has led to
disagreements with the LSPs about whether
software meets the functional requirements.
Therefore, rather than one software solution for all,
differing software solutions have been required.
iISOFT has responded to the LSPs by developing an
incremental approach to the development of
software which has required extra effort involving
the diversion of rescurces from the primary software
development effort.

iSOFT is working with CSC and Accenture to deal
with these challenges, prioritise development and
manage delivery in a collaborative way. iSOFT has
expanded its product development resources in India
at a rapid rate, both to complete its future product
LORENZO and to suppert the needs of its existing
product base, especially arising from specification
changes demanded by individual hospital and GP
Trusts in the UK. This rapid expansion in
development resources has caused some processes
and resources to be stretched, resulting in delivery
delays, including delays in resclving faults within the
required contracted expected timescales. The
Company is taking action to strengthen both
management and processes in this area, particularly
in project management.

The Company has taken, and continues to take,
additional steps to improve quality standards and
control, including more rigorous and intense testing
of, and rectification to, the Company's existing in-
use produdcts, in response to NPIT customer
reguirements. CfH, CSC and Accenture have
conducted on-site reviews of the Company's
product development activities and recommended
additional processes and procedures, whilst confirming
that the product is what is strategically required.

A number of difficulties experienced on the
programme are outside the Company's control, but
some have resulted in formal correspondence being
exchanged between the Company and both
Accenture and C5C, alleging material contractual
breach by the Company. The Company has denied
alt of the disputed allegations of breach. To date,
nene of this correspondence has resulted in notice
to terminate the Contracts heing given, or any
formal claims being made. The Company has
registered claims for additional werk done outside
the scope of the basic contracts.




The Company has taken legal acvice from its
lawyers, Ashurst, on these matters. However, due 1o
the complexity and nature of the contracts there are
differences in the interpretation of functicnal
requirements and their delivery and, in the absence
of any formal claim, it is not possible to establish the
likelihood nor the quantum of any potential liability.
Having reviewed the legal advice the Board has
taken the view that, in view of the complexity of the
potential claims and counter claims, a commercial
settlement is the most likely cutcome. Given this
position and the existence of a net receivable due
for contractual services performed, no specific
provision has been made in relation to this matter.

Were any claims to be brought against the
Company, the Board would continue to dispute the
liabilities and would defend its position vigorously.
Whilst no claims have been made, claims are
contractually limited to (1) in respect of Accenture,
£5 million per annum for liguidated damages by
way of delay deductions and otherwise to

£15 million per annum in aggregate: and (2} in
respect of CSC, £4 million per annum for liquidated
damages by way of delay deductions and otherwise
to £18 million per annum in aggregate, with an
overall cap of £50 million.

On 11 August 2006, iSOFT signed a Memorandum
of Understanding (MOU) with CSC confirming the
schedule under which it will provide deliveries to
CSC up to a value of £153 million in respect of the
CSC Agreement including £36 million already
delivered, subject to the satisfactory achievement of
delivery milestones, with the opportunity to win
additional NPfIT business in future through C5C in
certain drcumstances. Under this agreement, iSOFT
has made a number of commitments with respect to
the future development of its products for the NFfIT
and the costs that it will bear for that work. C5C
will have the right to take over the management of
the development team in the event that iISOFT is
unable to fulfil those obligations with respect to the
future development. However the rights to the IPR
remain with iSOFT under all circumstances. This
agreement offers greater certainty of cash flow o
iSOFT as payments are tied to specific milestones
tied for the most part to software incremental releases.

Financial Position

Liquidity: The Group's overail chjective is to ensure
that it is at all times able to meet its financial
commitments as and when they fall due, Note 1
outlines a number of uncertainties and assumptions
which could impact this cbjective. To this end, and
10 the extent possible, surplus funds are collected
centrally and managed to retain flexibility, whilst
ensuring reascnable interest receipts and minimal
credit risk. The Group has renegotiated the maturity
of all of its bank borrowing facilities in August 2006,
to ensure that it has sufficient liquidity. The Group's
hank borrowing facilities mature in Novermnber 2007.

Funding and cash flow: the Group may reguire
capital to sustain or expand its business in future.
At present the Group has established sources such
as cash flow from operations, bank debt, equity or
the realisation of non-core assets and believes that
the sources of funding currently available will be
sufficient to fund its operations. If the Group's plans
or assumptions regarding its funding requirements
change, it may need to seek other sources of
financing such as additional lines of credit with
commercial banks or institutions, to renegctiate
existing bank facilities or seek additicnal equity
contributions. The renegotiated facilities carry
stepped interest which is explained further below in
revision of bank facilities. The Group intends to use
the pericd of stability provided by the revised
facilities to consider and execute a longer term
financial strategy.

Investigations into accounting irregularities: As
detailed in note 1 to the accounts the Company has
commenced an investigation into possibie
accounting irregularities. The initial investigation
completed on 7 August 2006 concluded that there
were grounds for a more formal investigation, which
is being conducted by the FSA. it is not possible for
the Board to conclude what implications, if any, may
arise from the conclusion of the investigation.
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The Group has renegotiated the maturity of all of its bank
borrowing facilities in August 2006, to ensure that it has

sufficient liquidity.

Pension schemes: the Group operates both defined
benefit and defined contribution pension plans, the
majority of which are in the United Kingdom.

The UK defined benefit scheme was in deficit by
£10.7 million &t 30 April 2006, Deterioration in
asset prices or long-term interest rates could lead to
an increase in the deficit or give rise to an additional
funding requirement.

Volatility: There are a number of additional
volatility risks concerning the valuation of assets and
liabilities, currency fluctuations and interest rate
exposures, which are set out in note 19 to the
financial statements.

Balance sheet and funding

At 30 April 2006 the Group had net loans and
overdrafts of £41.8 million (2005: £1.6 million) as
detailed in note 19, including contract financing
arrangements, with cash and cash equivalents of
£77.5 million (2005: £110.1 million). Cash
generation in the year was weak. Cash generated
from operations amounted to only £1.9 millien
(2005: £92.4 million), reflecting the operating
difficulties of the business and the net impact of
unwinding customer upfront payments received in
previous financial years.

The reduction in net cash, which is summarised
below, also reflected increased tax payments of
£17.8 million in the year due to the level of profits
reported in the year ended 30 Aprit 2005, and
timing differences due to a change of year-end in
the Netherlands. In addition, the Group paid the
cash element of the purchase of Novasoft Sanidad S.A.
in Spain of £6.1million and capital expenditure of
£6.5 million, this includes capitalised development
costs of £0.7 million, which was higher than in the

previous year due 1o the establishment of the
Solution Centre in Hyderabad and other IT
infrastructure improvemeants. The cash outflow in
the year was as follows:

fm

Cash generated by operations 1.9

Income taxes paid (17.8}
Net interest paid (2.2
Purchase of fixed assets and capitalised costs  {6.5)
Purchase of own shares o B (3.8)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (8.5)
Dividends paid 6.0
Issue of new shares 7.0
Net loans raised ' h 32
Other o 0.1

Reduction in cash balance (32.6)

At 30 April 2006 the Group had banking facilities
which amounted in total to £144 million, comprising
a term loan of £39 million and a revoiving credit
facility of £105 million. At the balance sheet date
those facilities were almaost fully utilised. The term
loan was fully drawn at the balance sheet date.
Cash drawings of £16 million, together with letters
of credit and other guarantees amounting to

£88 miliion, fully utilised all but £0.8 million of the
revolving credit facility. However, the Group had
cash and cash equivalents amounting to £77.5 million
and therefore had adequate resources at that date.
Cash deposits are managed within the Group to
retain flexibility whilst ensuring reasonable interest
receipts and minimal ¢redit risk.




Additionally, to assist with the funding of the
business during a period of high development
spending, the Group previously utilised contract
financing arrangements, Amounts payable to third-
party providers of this funding from the proceeds of
collections from customers amounted at the balance
sheet date to £62.0 millien (2005: £56.7 million)
and have been included on balance sheet. The
Group has ceased using third-party non-recourse
contract financing arrangements because of the
high relative cost.

Given the anticipated further impact on cash flows
of the unwinding of customer prepayments, delays
in payment from the NPIT and the generally lower

jevels of upfront payments available frem customers,

the Group has established agreed revised bank
facifities and related covenants, details of which are
set out below.,

Revision of bank facilities

Following the repayment of £3 million of term loans
in May 20086, in August 2006, the Group secured
the revision of £141 million of facilities and an

additional facility of £25 million, which is conditional.

The facilities following the revision include:
¢ £105 million revolving credit facility;
e £36 million term loan facility; and

e £25 million facility, available fcliowing disposal
of non-core assets.

The maturity date of the above facilities is

14 November 2007. The financial terms have also
been amended to better reflect the Group's
revised business expectations and revenue
recognition policies.

Warrants aver 3.7% of the issued Share Capital of
the business are 1o be granted to the lenders with
an exercise price of 10 pence per share. The
warrants will be exercisable between issue and

36 months frem the date of the revision of the
facilities, however any shares acquired on exercise
cannot be seld unti! six months following the date
of the revision of the facilities. An exit fee of

£15 millien is payable at the end of the facility,

on refinancing or on ¢hange of control of the
Company, and if the warrants are not issued prior
to 31 October 2006.

If the warrants are issued prior to 31 October 2006
then no exit fee is payable. The issue of these
warrants will require sharehelder approvat which will
be sought at the AGM. Additionally, further fees are
payable on facilities outstanding post 31 December
2006. These additional fees are payable at the end
of the facility term or, if earlier, at the date of any
refinancing of the facilities. The fees, calculated on
the total facility available, represent PIK interest from
1 January 2007 of 5.0% per annum for the three
months 1o 31 March 2007, 7.5% per annum for the
three months to 30 June 2007, and 10% per
annum thereafter.

The costs of the revision of the banking facilities are
not included in the financial statements for the year
ended 30 April 2006, Such costs are estimated to
amcunt to £1.2 million in cash refinancing charges,
the write off of £0.6 million in unamortised fees
relating 1o the old terms, and professional fees of
approximately £1.0 million. The cost of interest wil!
also increase In accordance with the revised margins
which range from 200-450 basis points over LIBOR.

The new terms will provide the Group with a period
of stability during which the corporate finance
strategy of the Group can be considered and
executed as required by the banking agreements.

Details of the revised banking facilities are set out in
note 19 to the accounts.

Foreign currency

Foreign currency transactional exposure is monitored
on an ongoing basis and is managed using natural
hedges where possible. Where natural hedges for
economic exposures are not available, a mixture of
non-deiiverable forward contracts and currency
options are utilised to hedge the Group's exposures.

Working capital

The Group's working capital {defined as inventories
and trade and other receivables less trade and other
payables, excluding corporation tax recoverable and
deferred consideration) amounted to £(87.4} million
at 30 April 2006, compared with £{107.7} miflion at
the end of the previcus financial year. As a result of
the change in revenue recognition accounting policy
that has been introduced, creditor balances include
£96.8 million for deferred income, including upfront
payments made by customers in previous financia
years. The Group expects to need significant
additional working capital facilities over the next
two years 1o fund operating costs as these upfront
payments unwind.
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The new banking terms will provide the Group with a period of
stability during which the corporate finance strategy of the Group

can be considered and executed.

Trade receivables at 30 April 2006 amounted to
£34.4 million, representing 75 days’ of sales
outstanding, compared with 67 days at the end
of the previous financial year, on a comparable
restated basis.

Acquisitions

In Octeber 2005 the Group acquired 100% of the
share capital of Novasoft Sanidad S.A. for
consideration of up to EUR 15.6 millien. The
company, based in Malaga, is a leading provider of
healthcare applications in Spain, specialising in the
provision of hospital information systems and
associated services.

The initial consideration of EUR 12 miflion comprised
EUR 9 million in cash and the issue of 470,199
iISOFT ordinary shares. Further consideration of up teo
EUR 3.6 million may he payable if certain financial
targats are certified as having been achieved in the
period to 28 February 2006.

Pensions

The Group operates a mixture of defined benefit
and defined contribution pension schemes, the
former having been acquired as part of the merger
with Torex.

The Torex Medical Systems defined benefit scheme
was closed to new members in April 2000. This
pension scheme is accounted for in accordance with
145 19. At the balance sheet date, the 1AS 19 deficit
in respect of the scheme was £10.7 million, which is
recorded in the accounts with a corresponding
deferred tax asset of £3.2 million.

As part of an agreement with the trustees of the
scheme to reduce the deficit, annual payments to
the scheme have been increased from £0.7 million
in the year to 30 April 2006 tc £1.3 million in the
year to 30 April 2007 and heyond.

Dividends

During the year an interim dividend of 0.8p per
share was paid in respect of the vear ended

30 April 2006. Following the impairment charge
recognised against the carrying value of investments
in April 2006, the Company does not have retained
distributable reserves from which to pay dividends to
holders of ordinary shares and therefore is not able
to pay a final dividend for the year ended

30 April 2006. The Board intends to evaluate the
opportunities for altering its existing capital structure
in order to address the distributable reserves deficit,
but future dividends will only be paid as and when
the Board considers that the Company has

adequate resources.

25 August 2096
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Report of the Directors

The Group develops and implements
market leading software applications
for healthcare provider organisations.

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and the Group for the year ended

30 April 2006.

0z

On arriving, the paramedics
assess Scott's condition. They
notice he is extremely breathless
and that he has sweet-smelling
breath. They suspect Scott is
suffering from diabetic
ketoacidosis, an illness that can
prove fatal if left untreated.
One paramedic performs a
blood sugar test and the results
show Scott has extremnely high
biood sugar levels.

Using iSOFT's LORENZO solution
on a tablet PC, a paramedic
inputs details of Scott's condition
and alerts the local hospital's
emergency department {0 warn
staff that a new patient will be
arriving soon.

Continued on page 30.

Principal activities

The Group licences and implements market leading
software applications for healthcare provider
organisations. It provides sclution design and
development, installation, system configuration,
training and customer support services in respect of
its applications.

Business review and future developments

The performance of the business during the year
and a review of expected future developments are
set out in the Report of the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer on page 2, and the Financia!
Review on page 13. The Group's Corporate Social
Respensibility policies in respect of employees and
the environment are set out on pages 41 to0 43. Key
Performance Indicators are set out on page 128.

Results and dividends

The resuits of the Group are set out in the
Consolidated Inceme Statement. In view of the
decision tc change the Group's accounting policy
for revenue recognition and the recognition of a
substantial impairment charge against the carrying
value of investments in subsidiaries the Company
has no distributable reserves from which 1o pay a
final dividend for the year ended 30 April 20C6. The
Cempany paid an interim dividend of 0.80p per
share and that is the total paid for the financial year
{2005: 2.57p) The Group made a loss for the
financial year of £382.2m million (2005: profit of
£5.9 million). The Group intends to evaluate the
opportunities for altering its existing capital structure
to deal with its distributable reserves deficit.




Directors
The directors of the Company at the balance sheet
date are shown below:

John Weston CBE (55}, Chairman, was appointed
to the Board as Non-executive Chairman on

19 October 2005. Following the resignation of Tim
Whiston on 14 lune 2006, he has also assumed the
duties of the Chief Executive Officer until a suitable
replacement is appointed. John Wesion was
formerly Chief Executive of British Aerospace plc
from 1998 to 2002 and spent more than 30 years
with that company in a variety of senior
management positions. He is also Non-executive
Chairman of Spirent Communications pic and
Dublin-based Acra Controls, and a member of the
President's Committee of the CBI.

Tim Whiston (38}, Chief Executive Officer, joined
the business as Finance Director in August 1997 and
was subsequently appointed to the Board of iSOFT
Group plc on 14 April 2000. He took on the role of
Chief Executive Officer on 2 February 2004. On

14 June 2008, Tim Whiston resigned as Chief
Executive Officer and as a director of the Company.

Steve Graham (42), Group Commercial Director,
joined KPMG in 1987 and was made a partner of
KPMG Health Systems in 1984. He was part of the
original management team of ISOFT when it was
founded in 1998 and was appointed to the Board of
iISOFT Group plc on 28 April 1999, On 20 July 2006,
the Company anncunced that it had commissioned
an investigation into possible accounting
irregularities. On 8 August 2006, the Company
concluded that there are grounds for 8 more formal
investigation and the Board deemed it appropriate
to suspend Steve Graham pending the final
outcome of the more formal investigation.

Gavin James {43}, Group Finance Director, jcined
ISOFT in july 2005 and was appointed to the Board
on 21 June 2005. He was formerly Finance Director
of Morse pic from 1998 to 2005 and before that
was Group Finance Director of Menveir-Swain Group
plc. He is a fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales,

Ravi Kumar (38), Chief Technology Officer, joined
KPM@G's healthcare information systems business in
1992 and was part of the original management
team of ISOFT when it was founded in 1998. He
was appointed to the Board of iSOFT Group pic on
7 October 2004.

Eurfyl ap Gwilym {61), Non-executive director,
was appointed to the Board of iISOFT Group pic on
19 May 2000 and is Chair of the Remuneration
Committee. He is a non-executive director of the
Principality Building Society, NCC Group plc and
Pure Wafer plc. He was formerly a director of the
Terence Chapman Group plc.

Rene Kern {43), Non-executive director, was
appointed to the Board of iSCFT Group plc on
14 March 2003. He is a managing director and
a member of the Executive and Investment
commitiees of General Atlantic LLC, who owned
4.95% of the shares of iISOFT Group plc at the
balance sheet date. He is also a non-executive
director of Intec Telecom Systems plc and
RiskMetrics Group Inc.

Ken Lever {52), Non-executive director and chair of
the Audit Committee. He joined the iSOFT Board on
21 June 2005 and is the Senior Indepandent
Director. He is the Finance Director of Tomkins Plc,
a member of the ICAEW Financial Reporting
Committee and Chairman of the Hundred Group
Financial Reporting Committee. He has heid
executive directorships at Albright and Wilson plc,
Alfred McAlpine plc and Corton Beach plc and was
a partner in Arthur Andersen. He is a fellow of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England

and Wales.

David Thorpe (57), Non-executive director, joined
the iSOFT Group plc Board on 23 December 2003,
having been appointed as a non-executive director
of Torex PLC on 28 May 2003. He has held a
number of senior positions within Electronic Data
Systems (EDS) including UK Chief Executive and
latterly President of EDS Europe. He is Nen-executive
Chairman of Morgan Chambers plc, Tunstall Ltd and
CAS Services Holdings Limited and a non-executive
director of VT Group plc, the Innovation Group plc.
He chairs the Racecourse Association, is a director of
the British Horseracing Board and a member of the
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accounting.
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Geoff White (53}, Non-executive Deputy Chairman
and chair of the Nomination Committee, was
appointed to the Board of ISOFT Group plc on

19 May 2000. He is non-executive Chairman of
Punch Graphix plc, non-executive Chairman of
Patientline and a non-executive director of Tekdata
Distribution Ltd and Tekdata !nterconnections Ltd.
He was formerly Chief Executive of Pressac plc until
June 2001 and a non-executive director of Derby
City NHS Trust. He is a fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.

During the year, Sir Digby Jones resigned as a
Non-executive director on 25 July 2005, Patrick
Cryne resigned as Chairman and as a director of
the Company on 19 Qctober 2005 and Colin Wall
resigned as a director on 3 April 2006. Tim Whiston
rasigned as Chief Executive Officer and as a director
of the Company on 14 June 2006. On 8 August 2006,
the Board deemed it appropriate to suspend Steve
Graham pending the finai outcome of a formal
investigation into possible accounting iregularities.

The Board considered that on his appointment John
Weston was independent. The Board considers that
turfyl ap Gwilym, Ken Lever, David Thorpe and
Geoff White were independent throughout the year
and that they remain independent at the date of

1 John Weston 2 Gavin James 3 Ravi Kumar

this report. The Board also considered Colin Wall to
be independent whilst he was & director. The Board
does not censider Rene Kern to be independent due
1o his relationship with General Atlantic Partners LLC,
which holds a 4.95% shareholding in the Company.
All directors are subject to election by the
shareholders at the first opportunity after their
appointment, and to re-election thereafter at
intervals determined in accordance with the
Company's Articles of Association.

John Westen will stand for election at the Annual
General Meeting, it being the first Annual General
Meeting since his appointment. In addition, Eurfyl
ap Gwilym, David Thorpe and Rene Kern will retire
by rotation and will offer themselves for re-election
at the AGM. The Chairman has confirmed that the
directors standing for re-election have fully met the
performance standards required of directors by the
Company and that each of them centinues to be
committed to the role. In addition, in respect of the
proposal to re-elect Eurfyl ap Gwilym, the Company,
having undertaken a review as required by the
Combined Code, has determined that it is
appropriate for Eurfyl ap Gwilym to serve as a
director for a pericd longer than six years.




Directors' share interests

The beneficial share interests in the ordinary share capital of the Company of those perscns who were

directors at the balance sheet date were as follows:

Ordinary
shares at
1 May 2005*
TimWhisten 449,547
Steve Graham 5,000,000
Gavin James -
Ravi Kumar 650,000
JohnWeston R
Eurfyl ap Gwilym 45454
David Thorpe 10,000
Geoff White : 150,454

*at 1 May 2005 or date of appointment if later

{1} including a beneficial interest in awards made
under the iISOFT Parformance Share Plan 2005 on
28 July 2005. For further details of the ISOFT
Performance Share Plan 2005 see page 52.

(2) Including a beneficial interest in the Bonus
Shares awarded on 28 July 2005. For further details
of the Bonus Shares see page 53.

There have been no changes in the above interests
between 30 April 2006 and 25 August 2006.

Beneficial interests include the directors' personat
holdings and those of their spouses and minor
children as weli as holdings in family trusts of which
the directors’ spouses or their minor children are
beneficiaries or potential beneficiaries.

Rene Kern had no beneficial share interests at the
balance sheet date, however, he is an employee of
General Atlantic LLC, which owned 4.95% of the
issued share capital of iISOFT Group plc at the
balance sheet date.

% issued Ordinary % issued
capital shares at capital
30 April 2006
020% 1078785 0.46%
2.20% 3,115,108 1.34%
- 134,553'7 0.06%
0.29% 885,298'¢ 0.38%
R 106000 0.05%
002% 45,454 0.02%
0.005% 10,000 0.005%
0.02% 50,454 0.02%

Research and development

The Group committed significant investment to
research and development in 2006 and employed
an average 1,454 employees during the year

{2005: 1,019) out of a total average employee base
of 3,224 (2005: 2,546} Research and development
spending, net of capitalised costs of £0.7 million
{2005: £2.4 million), totalled £22.6 million

{2005: £15.9 million), representing 11.2% of
turnover, This investment ensures that iSOFT's
software application portfolio benefits from the
latest technologies and continues to address the
current and emerging customer business needs, thus
protecting the market position of the Group and the
potential for future revenue generation.

Quality

iSOFT maintains a policy of ensuring that
appropriate standards of operaticn are maintained
across the Group. The achievernent of 150
9001:2000 accreditation has been extended to the
Product Development Centre in Chennai which
sUppOrts cur commitment to this quality standard.
iSOFT is working towards obtaining 150 17799
Information Security Management System (ISMS)
and Capability Maturity Model® integration (CMMI}
Level 4 accreditation.
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The Group committed significant investment to research and
development in 2006. This investment ensures that iSOFT's
software application portfolio benefits from the latest technologies
and continues to address the current and emerging customer

business needs.

Payments to creditors

The Company does not foliow any specific external
code or standard on payment practice, but its policy
is to negotiate normal commercial terms of payment
with all suppliers and to ensure that those suppliers
are made fully aware of those terms. The Company
abides by those terms provided it is satisfied that
suppliers have met their contractual cbligations. At
30 April 2006, the number of days of trade
creditors, calculated by reference to the total
amounts invoiced by suppliers, was 33 days

{2005: 23 days).

Share capital

Full details of changes in share capital in the year
are shown in note 22 to the financial statements on
page 100. Other than the directors, the Company
has been notified of the following interests in more
than 3% of the issued share capital of the Company
at the date of this report:

Franklin Resources 12.40%
Fidelity International 11.99%
Deutsche Bank AG 6.27%
General Atlantic 4.95%
Arrowstreet Capital _ 4.71%
Insight Investment Management 4.67%
Wellington Management 4.15%
Legal and General 3.77%
Investment Manégement 3.36%
HSBC Bank 3.06%

Annual General Meeting

The Annua! General Meeting will be held at the
Hilton Manchester Airport hotel, Outweod Lane,
Ringway, Manchester MOC 4WP at 2.00 pm on
17 October 2006. The resolutions to be proposed

at the Annual General Meeting, together with
explanatory notes, appear in the separate Notice of
Annual General Meeting sent to all sharehoiders.
The proxy card for registered shareholders is
distributed with the Notice of Annual General Meeting.

Information given to auditors
Fach of the directors at the date of approval of this
report confirms that:

1 so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant
audit information of which the Company's
auditors are unaware; and

2 the director has taken all the steps that he ought
to have taken as a director to make himself aware
of any relevant audit information and to establish
that the Company's auditors are aware of
that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted
in accordance with the provisions of s2347A of the
Companies Act 1985,

Auditors

The Company has monitored and reviewed the
performance of its external auditors as detailed in
the Audit Commitiee Report, and proposes to re-
appoint Deloitte & Touche LLP at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting.

Approval
gport of the Directors was approved by the
oard OMZ25 August 2006 and signed on its behalf by:

John Weston
Chairman and acting Chief Executive Officer
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The Board of directors is committed
to maintaining the required

standards of corporate governance.

The Board of iSOFT Group plc is committed to maintaining the
required standards of corporate governance. The following
statement explains how the Company has applied the principles of
good governance and best practice in compliance with the
provisions of the Combined Code.

03

At the hospital, Scott is
examined by the on-call medical
team and is immediately placed
on a care pathway for
ketoacidosis. He is prescribed
intravenous fluids and insulin,
and a regime of hourly blood
sugar tests is started.

Details of the hospital’s diagnosis
and the treatment pathway are
entered into Scott's care record,
again using LORENZQ on a
1ablet PC. A colour retinal
photograph is alse beoked.

Continued on page 40.

Statement of Compliance with the Code

of Best Practice

Throughout the year ended 30 April 2006, the
Company has been in compliance with the Code
provisions set out in section 1 of the 2003 FRC
Combined Code on Corporate Governance with the
exception of the following matters listed below:

1. The Combined Code provision A3.3 requires the
Board to appoint one of the independent
non-executive Directors to be the senior
independent Director. Sir Dighy Jones undertook
this role from the start of the year to
25 July 2005 and Colin Wall undertook this role
from 25 July 2005 to 3 April 2006 when he
resigned from the Board. Subsequently, the Board
tock the opportunity to consider its structure and
halance and appointed Ken Lever to this role on
24 August 2006. As a result, there was no
compliance with this provision between
3 April 2006 and 24 August 2006.

2. The Combined Code provision BZ.1 requires the
remuneration committee to comprise of at least
three members who should all be censidered to
be independent. Following the resignation of
Colin Wall on 3 April 2006, the remuneration
committee comprised only two independent
directors and therefere the Company was not in
compliance with this Code provision. The Board
intends to take the opportunity to consider its




structure and balance and to appoint a further
appropriate member tc meet the requirements of
the Combined Code. Colin Wall was the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee from
1 April 2005 to 3 April 2006. Subsequently, the
Board tock the opportunity to consider fis
replacement and appeinted Eurfy! ap Gwilym on
24 August 2006.

3. Post year end, fellowing the resignation of the
Chief Executive Officer, Tim Whiston, on
14 June 20086, the Chairman has also assumed
the responsibllities of the Chief Executive Officer.
As a result, the Company does not currently
comply with provision A2.2 of the Combined
Code that requires a clear division of
responsibilities at the head of a company
between the running of the Board and executive
responsibility for the running of a Company's
business. However, the Board recognises that the
Chairman has assumed these responsibilities as a
temporary measure and believes that the
Chairman is best placed to lead the Company
through this transitional period. The Board is
currently seeking tc appoint additional executive
and nen-executive directors to increase the
diversity, skills and experience brought to the
Board and to complement existing expertise.

Board balance and independence

Up until 3 April 2006 when Colin Wall rasigned, the
Board comprised a non-executive Chairman, a Chief
Executive Officer, three further executive directors
and six experienced non-executive directors, five of
whom were considered to be independent during
the year on the basis of the criteria specified in
paragraph A.3.1 of the Combined Code. From

3 April 2006 until 14 Jure 20086, the Board comprised
a non-executive Chairman, a Chief Executive Officer,
three further executive directors and five
experienced non-executive directors, four of whom
were considered te be independent during the year
on the basis of the criteria specified in paragraph
A3.1 of the Combined Code. Biographical details of
each director are set out on pages 26 ¢ 27.

In accordance with A 3.1 of the Cambined Code
Eurfyl ap Gwilym, Ken Lever, David Thorpe and
Geoff White are considered to be independent
directers. Rene Kern is not considered to be an
independent Director, on account of being a
Director of General Atlantic LLC which owned
4.95% of iSOFT Group plc at 30 April 2006.

Chairman and Chief Executive

John Weston was appointed Non-executive
Chairman on 19 (ctober 2005. The Beard considers
that on his appointment the Chairman met the
independence criteria set out in paragraph A.3.1 of
the Combined Code. As reported above, following
the resignation of the Chief Executive Officer on

14 lune 2006, the Chairman has also assumed the
responsibilities of the Chief Executive Officer until a
suitable replacement has been appointed.

Board responsibilities

The Board has adopted a formal schedule of matters
reserved for its attention, which include the
determination of strategy and the approval of
annual budgets, significant investrnents and risk
management. This schedule is avarlable for
inspection at the Company's registered office.

The Board's role includes:

« representing the interests of shareholders and
satisfying all statutory duties due t¢ them;

» deciding the strategic direction of the Company
and providing the resources required to fulfil its
future needs;

« providing a challenging, confidential forum in
which the Chief Executive Officer can test
strategic thinking with an informed Group having
broad continuity over time;

+ requiring the Chief Executive Officer to report
regularly and openly on the operational
performance of all parts of the Group;

* monitoring the effectiveness of the Chief
Executive Officer and his executive team against a
series of performance objectives and benchmarks;

» setting a contro} framework within which the
Chief Executive Officer can operate and
authorising decisions on major issues and
investments;

* constituting subcommittees of the Board to
address the issuas of remuneration, new
appointments and audit;




e determining the remuneration of executive
directors and senior members of staff and
ensuring that they are appropriately incentivised;

e assisting value creation through entrepreneurial
leadership and by the centrolled and measured
management of a wide range of business risks;

* ensuring appropriate behaviour with respect 1o
the various codes of corporate governance and
good business practice, including providing an
audit trail of accountability; and

+ overseeing good corporate citizenship and ethical
behaviour by the Group and its employees with

regard 1o all its internal and external stakeholders.

The directors are encouraged tc bring independent
judgement to bear on both strategic and
operational matters. Any director may challenge
company policy and decisions are taken
democratically after discussion.

Board
Meetings
Total number of meetings held 12
John Weston' 8
Tim Whiston? 12
Steve Graham T
Gavin James® 11
Ravi Kumar 12
SirDighy Jones' o
Eurfyl ap Gwilym 10
Rene Kern 11
Ken Lever® 10
David Thorpe 8
oot Wit - e o
Patrick Cryn'és B 4
Colin Wall 10

1 John Weston was appointed as Non-executive Chairman an
18 October 2005
2 Tim Whiston resigned as Chief Executive Officer on 14 June 2006
3 Gavin James was appointed as an executive director on
21 june 2005
4 Sir Digby Jones resigned as a non-executive director an 25 July 2005
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The Board believes that regular involvement with
management through the Chief Executive Officer
and the executive directors is the most effective way
to monitor performance and achieve proper control
of the Group. Through openness, the provision of
weli-defined information and discussion, the Board
endeavours 1o provide leadership in the interests

of shareholders.

Board meetings

The Board normally meets at least nine times per
year for scheduled Board meetings. The Board also
meets as required on an ad hoc basis to deal with
urgent business. The table below lists the number of
Board meetings and Board committee meetings, and
Directors’ attendance throughout the year:

Nomination Remuneration Audit
Committee Committee Committee
1 6 4

- 2 1

- 2 3

- 1 -

- 1 4

- 5 4

- - 1

- 3 3

1 T 3

- - 2

1 9] 1

5 Ken Lever was appointed as a non-executive director on
21 June 2005
6 Patrick Cryne resigned as Chairman and director on
19 October 2005
7 Colin Wall resigned as a non-executive director on 3 April 2006




During the year ended 30 April 2006, the Chairman
regularly held meetings with the non-executive
directors, without executive directors present. The
Board also appointed ad hoc sub committees as
appropriate during the year to consider specific
transactions and other Board related matters,

Appointments to the Board

Under the Company's Articles of Association, all
directors are subject to reappointment by
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting (AGM)
foliowing their appointment, and one third of the
directors must retire annually by rotation and seek
reappointment at the AGM.

Fach member of the Board brings different
experience and skills to the operation of the Board
and its various committees. Board composition is
kept under review and when a new appointment is
to be made, consideration is given to the particular
skills, knowledge and experience that a potential
new member could add to the existing Board
composition. Comprehensive, formal and tailcred
induction is provided to new Board members. The
Group has long recognised the vital role that
non-executive directors have in ensuring high
governance standards and maintains a significant,
high calibre, non-executive representation on the Board.

Details of the length of executive directors’ service
contracts appear on page 49. The terms of
appointment of non-executive directors are set out
on page 55. Any reappointment of a non-executive
director beyond two three-year terms is subject to
rigorous review. Any non-executive director who has
served for more than nine years is subject to annual
reappointment by shareholders at the AGM.

Information and professional development

In advance of each scheduled Beard meeting, all
directors are supplied with informaticn and briefing
material in relation 1o the business to be considered
at that meeting. Senior Executives and advisers are
irvited to attend Board meetings as required by
directors. The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
also briet directors on key issues and
communications with institutional investors.

Directors have access to the advice and services of
the Company Secretary, and may seek independent
advice, at the Group's expense, if necessary for the
proper performance of their duties. The availability
of this advice is set out for non-executive directors in
writing upen their appointment.

Induction and training for new directors is arranged
by the Company Secretary. Existing Board members
have many years of relevant experience and each is
responsible for ensuring their continuing professional
development and monitoring up-to-date and
effective skills and knowledge.

Performance evaluation

The Board monitors performance against the
achievement of the Group's strategic objectives.
Each executive director has defined responsibilities
for performance and measurement of achievernent.
These include a mix of financial and non-financial,
predictive and historic indicatars.

The Board has conducted an evaluation of its own
perfermance and that of the Board Committees and
individual directors and continues to monitor and
consider the effectiveness and performance of each.
This process is being assisted by the Group Human
Resources Director and included a written
questionnaire focusing on collective performance
and individuat contribution.

Fellowmg his appointment as Chairman, john
Weston discussed individually with each of the
directors the skill sets they believed to be required
around the Board table.

Board committees

The Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committeas
of the Board deal with specific aspects of the
Group's affairs in accordance with their written
terms of reference, which are available for inspecticn
at the Company's Registered Office. Each is comprised
of independent non-executive directors only.

The Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and other
directors are able to attend the meetings of the
Board committees under the policy that any director
may attend any meeting of a Board committee
providing they have no conflict of interest in respect
of the business to be discussed.
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The Board believes that regular involvement with management
through the Chief Executive Officer and the executive directors
is the most effective way to monitor performance and achieve

proper control of the Group.

The Nomination Committee

The Board has established a nomination committee
which meets formally as necessary and at least twice
per year. The Chairman of the Nomination Commiitee
throughout the year was Geoff White. The principal
function of the Nomination Committee is to review
and make recommendations to the Beard about
Board appointments. The terms of reference of the
committee are as follows:

* 1o propose to the Board the respensibilities of
non-executive directors including membership
and chairmanship of Board commitiees;

* to ensure that there is a satisfactory, formal
process for the selection of non-executive directors;

¢ to propose to the Board any new Board
appeintments;

« to ensure there is good succession planning at
Board level;

* to review the effectiveness of directors; and

¢ to nominate suitable people for the most senior
executive pesitions, including that of Chief
Executive Officer.

The Nomination Committee is chaired by Geoff
White, Non-executive Deputy Chairman. Members
of the committee during the year included Celin
Wall and David Thorpe. The Nomination Commitiee
reviewed and made proposals for the nomination of
John Weston as Chairman, Gavin James as Finance
Director and Ken Lever as a non-executive director.

The Remuneration Committee

Members of the committee during the year included
Colin Wall, Eurfyl ap Gwilym, Sir Digby Jones and
Ken Lever. From 3 April 2006 to 24 August 2006
there was no Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, however on 24 August 2006 Eurfyi ap
Gwilym was appointed as Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. Details of the role and
work of the Remuneration Committee are set cut

in the Remuneération Report on page 45,

The Audit Committee

From 1 April 2005 to 25 July, the Chairman of the
Audit Committee was Eurfyl ap Gwilym. Since

25 July 2005, Ken Lever has been the Chairman of
the Audit Committee. David Thorpe and Eurfyl ap
Gwilym are also members of the Committee. Other
directors and the internal and external auditors are
invited to attend meetings of the Committee as
appropriate. Details of the role and work of the
Audit Committee are set out in the report of the
Awudit Committee on page 57.

Note: Sir Dighy Jones resigned &s a member of the
Audit Committee on 11 May 2004 and not on
6 January 2005 as stated in the 2005 Annual Report.

Accountability and audit

Financial reporting

Through the Financial Review, the Board seeks to
provide a balanced assessment of the business of
the Group. In conjunction with the Report of the
Chairman and Chief Executive, the Directors’ Report
and the financial statements, the Board seeks to
provide a balanced assessment of the Group's
performance, position and prospects.




Internal control

Notwithstanding the investigation into possible
accounting irregularities, the Beard has applied
principle C.2 of the Combined Code which requires
it to establish a continuous process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks the
Group faces which accords with the guidance on
internal control published in September 1999 (the
Turnbull Guidance). The Board regularly reviews this
process which has been in place throughout the
financial year and up until the date of the approval
of this report, Further information on this review
process is noted below.

The Board retains full responsibility for the Group's
system of internal controls and for reviewing its
effectiveness. Whilst acknowledging their overall
responsibility for the system of internal control, the
directors are aware that the system is designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives and can provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. Historically, key
elements of the Group's internal controls are:

* a business risk assessment framework identifying
the potential likelihood of strategic, operaticnal,
commercial and financial risks, their respective
potential financial impact and the plans and
associated management action to mitigate
those risks;

» rolling three-year strategic plans;
* detailed budgeting process;
* quarterly re-forecasting of profits and cash flows;

« regular monitoring of results and forecasts against
budget, with investigation and action taken in
response 1o variances,

¢ established procedures for the approval of capital
expenditure, investment and acquisition projects;

» clearly defined management structure and
delegated authorities for individual business units
and managers within the business units;

* clearly documented internal procedures set out in
the Group's 150 9001:2000 accredited quality
management system and regular internal quality
audits of key processes and procedures; and

« regular provision of information o executive
management and the Board covering financial
performance and key performance indicators,
including non-financial measures.

As the year has progressed, and as a result of the
investigation inte possible accounting irregularities in
the financial years ended 30 April 2004 and 2005 as
described in note 1, it has been recognised that
there are areas where the systems of internal centrol
need to be strengthened to improve the overall
effectiveness of the management of the Group.
Specifically these areas include:

1. forecasting of profits and cash flows in the
business units of the Group;

2. strengthening controls around revenue
recognition, the selecticn of accounting policies
and the establishment of systems to support the
new basis of revenue recognition,

3. clear identification of product profitability;

4. review and approval by the Board of contractual
arrangements with existing and naw customers;

5. monitering the progress of new product
development in accordance with agreed
milestones; and

6. the process for reviewing the Board's own
effectiveness.

it was also noted during the internal audit reviews
of financial controls in certain business units that
there are opportunities to strengthen specific
financial controls.

The directors have commenced the development of
appropriate action plans in each of the areas to
address the identified shortcomings. Further action
will be taken by the Board, as appropriate, upon the
conclusion of the current investigations.

Not withstanding the investigation into possible
accounting irregularities, the Directors confirm that
there has been a process in place from the start of
the year to the date of the approval of this report
for identifying, evaluating and managing significant
risks faced by the Cempany, which is in accordance
with guidance on internal control published in
September 1999 {the Turnbull Guidance}.
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The Board retains full responsibility for the Group's system

of internal controls and for reviewing its effectiveness.

Going concern

The Group's directors have prepared projected cash
flow information for the pericd ending 12 months
from the date of approval of these accounts. The
projections include certain key assumptions made by
directors, described in note 1.

The nature of the Group's business is such that
there can be considerable unpredictable variation
and uncertainty regarding the timing and/or
occurrence of the matters referred to in note 1, the
timing and margin of sales, the quantum and timing
of cash flows from new business activity and the
achievernent of contractual milestones.

In preparing these projections the directors
recognise that there are material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubts on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern.

Having taken into account the uncertainties referred
tc in note 1 and above, the directors consider that
the cash flow projections are compiled on a reasonable
basis and it is on that basis that the directors consider
it appropriate to prepare the Group's accounts on
the going concern basis. The accounts do not
include any adjustments which may ke necessary if
the Group was unable to continue to operate.

Shareholder communication

The Board is committed to maintaining regular, open
dialogue with all of its shareholders. The Board
values the views of shareholders and recognises
their interests in the Group's strategy and
performance. Regular face-to-face meetings are held
with institutional fund managers and equity analysts
1o ensure that the investing community receives a
balanced and consistent view of the Group’s
performance. In normal circumstances when the
Group has a separate Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer, the Chief Executive Officer and Group

Finance Director regulariy attend investor meetings
and briefings. The Chairman attends as required
and, in particular, at the interim and full year results
announcements. Whilst the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer roles are temporarily combined as
noted above, the Chairman/Chief Executive and
Group Finance Director will attend briefings.

The Group has established an investor relations
facility on its website www.isoftplc/investor where
up-to-date financial and other information can be
found, including copies of the Company’s
presentations to analysts. In addition, the directors
appointed a Corporate Communications Director for
the first time in April 2006.

Constructive use of the AGM

The Board welcomes the oppertunity offered by the
AGM to communicate with investors, and
encourages their attendance. Shareholders are
invited 10 use this opportunity to raise guesticns and
express their views. Those unable to attend are
invited 1o submit their questions in writing.

The Chairman introduces the AGM with a formal
presentation of the Group’s business performance
over the past year and future prospects going forward.

The numbers of proxy votes cast in favour of, and
against, resolutions are reported to the meeting and
will this year be published subsequently on the
Company's website at www.isoftplc.com.




Statement of directors' responsibilities for the
financial statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the
annual report and the financial statements. The
directers are required to prepare accounts for the
Group in accordance with International Financial
Reporting S$tandards {(IFRS) and have chosen to
prepare company financial statements in accordance
with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (UK GAAP),

In the case of UK GAAP accounts, the directors are
required to prepare financial statements for each
financial year that give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or
loss of the Company for that period. In preparing
those financial statements, the directors are
required to:

* select suitable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently;

+ make judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudant; and

* state whether applicable accounting standards
have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements.

In the case of IFRS accounts, International
Accounting Standard 1 requires that financial
statements present fairly for each financial year the
Company's financial position, financial performance
and cash flows. This requires a faithful
representation of the effects of transactions, other
events and conditions in accordance with the
definiticns and recegnition criteria for assets,
liahilities, income and expenses set out in the
International Accounting Standards Board's
‘Framework for the preparaticn and Presentaticn of
Financial Staternents’. In virtually all circumstances,
a fair presentation will be achieved by compliance
with all applicable international Financial Reporting
Standards. Directors are also required to:

« properly select and apply accounting policies;

+ present information, including accounting
policies, in a manner that provides relevant,
reliahle, comparable and understandable
information; and

+ provide additional disclosures when compliance
with the specific requirements in International
Financial Reporting Standards is insufficient to
anable users to understand the impact of
particular transactions, cther events and
conditions on the entity's financial position and
financial performance.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper
accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Company, for safeguarding the assets, for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other irregularities and for the preparation
of & directors' report and directors' remuneration
report that comply with the reguirements of the
Companies Act 1985.

The directors have concluded that the nature of the
business has changed. The implementation of the
Group's historical revenue recognition policy
presumed that the supply of product licences can be
separated from implementation and support. The
complex construction of the commercial contracts of
the business, the level of resources applied to
implernentation and support on an angoing basis,
and the absence of a refiable third party market in
implementation and support of the Company's
product have made it increasingly difficult to




distinguish between the supply of product licences
and implementation and support. As a result the
directors concluded that the Company's accounting
policy in respect of revenue recognition should be
changed. Details of this change are set cut in the
Report of the Chairman and Chief Executive on
pages Z to 7 and in note 1 to the accounts.

Based on the matters described in note 2 to the
accounts, Basis of accounting, on page 74 and
subject to the matters referred to in note 1, the
Directors have a reasonable expectation that the
Company and the Group have adeguate resources
to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. For this reason, they continue
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing

the accounts.

The Annual Report is available on the Group's
website at wwwisoftplc.com/investar.

The reader's attention is drawn to note 1 of the
financial statements 'Significant matters relating to
the basis of preparation of the financial statements’.

Approval
This report was approved by the Board on
25 st 2006 and signed on its behalf by:

John Weston
Chairman and acting Chief Executive Officer
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It is ISOFT's view that operating

in an environmentally and socially

sustainable manner...

provides a stronger basis for the future development of its

business operations.
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Gradually Scott's condition
improves and he is admitted to a
ward where a nurse specialising in
the treatment of diabetes is
brought in to help. The specialist
nurse provides Scott with
information about diabetes and
refers him to a dietician who can
provide him with the advice he
needs to follow a healthy balanced
diet appropriate for his condition.
He's also tald about the help
available online from Diabetes UK
at www.diabetes.org.uk

Continued on page 44.

Commitment to Corporate Social Responsibility
It is ISOFT's view that operating in an
environmentally and socially sustainable manner
provides a stronger basis for the future developrnent
of its business operations.

Employment policy

As a knowledge-based crganisation, iSOFT
continually reviews the suitability of employment
policies and practices to attract and retain
knowledgeable, high performing employees.

The directers recognise the importance of individual
employee contributions in delivering the Group's
performance and have maintained a commitment
that each employee should regularly receive a farma!
appraisal. The online appraisal process is an
important means by which individual reward and
personal advancement is determined. The process
measures individual performance against an
integrated scorecard of objectives, under the
headings; financial, technical and operational,
management and relationships, team working and
coliaborative effort.

During the year the Company intreduced an
International Mobility Palicy setting cut enhanced
employment terms to encourage the engagement
and participation of employees having key domain
skills, in global teams. In particular, these terms
increased the level of international support avaitahle
to the Product Group in Chennai, India.



The Company maintains links to local universities
and supports education sponsorship within local
communities, principally in India and Germany.

Equal opportunities policy

The Group is a committed equal opportunities
employer and operates working practices to
promote an employment environment that is free
from discrimination and harassment.

It is iISOFT policy to ensure that all employees and
applicants are treated equally, regardless of gender,
marital status, race, colour, disability or sexual
orientation. Disabled individuals are afforded the
same opportunities as others, and the Group actively
supports the employment of disabled persons and
the retention of employees who become disabled
whilst in the employment of the Group.

Health and safety policy

Following a review of the Group's Health and Safety
management, the Group is currently revising its
Health and Safety policy and planning to improve
communication of its Health and Safety policy
through the production and issue cf a new guide
for all employees and visitors.

Employee equity participation

Many employees across the Group have
shareholding interests in the Company either directly
or under share option and Sharesave schemes. The
directors actively encourage employee equity
participation, subject to compliance with the
Group's employee share dealing policy. Detalls of
the current employee share option schemes and
options granted during the year are provided in note
26 to the financial statements on page 104,

Employee communication and consultation

The Group provides employees with regular updates
and information about the Group through the
electronic publication of an employee newsletter
and through the Group's employee intranet, iGATE,

iSOFT has established two Employee Consultation
Forums {"VQICE') with elected representatives. These
are for employees in the UK and India. VOICE was
established to create a means of active invoivement,
social dialogue, information dissemination and
communication. In the UK, IVCICE, played an
important rofe in representing employee interests to
the Company regarding the closure of the
Birmingham office and the initial stages of the UK
headcount reduction programme.

Twenty high potential employees from across the
Group were brought together at the Group
headguarters over four days in October 2005. The
aim was to create a forum for sharing ideas about
how to improve interaction acress the Group and to
participate in personal development exercises, The
event has led to stronger working ties between
different parts of the Group.

Social, Environmental and Ethical (SEE} matters
The iSOFT business recognises that achieving success
in envircnmental and social management is a joint
responsibility between employees and management.
Active employee participation in community events
and charities is strongly supported through the
giving of time and the internal promotion and
support for such activities.

The directors recognise that whilst iSOFT's business
activities as a developer and supplier of software
applications have minimal direct environmental
impact, there are environmental impacts in running
a company and cur commitment to adopting best
practice evidences our responsibility. The Group's
environmental policy aims to raise awareness of
environmental matters, establish standards, assess
the impact of its business activities on the
environment, set improvement objectives and
monitor performance against these objectives.




The Group's philosophy is to establish a paperless
working environment wherever appropriate. This is
supported through the automation of a number of
internal management and administrative processes
such as performance appraisals, job profiles and a
competency framework, and annual leave requests.
The Group continues to lcok at ways to move closer
to a paperless working environment.

The Group also encourages staff to minimise
unnecessary travel by using web exchange and
video conferencing facilities and working from home
in appropriate circumstances.

The responsibiiity for maintaining and enfercing the
SEE policy resides at Board level. The Board confirms
that it does not consider any significant SEE issues
to have arisen during the course of the year.

A copy of the current environmental policy is
available on the Group's website at
www.isoftple.com/corporate/company_information.

Donations

Individual office locations throughout the Group
have informally co-ordinated employee fund raising
activities for national charities during the course of
the year.

iSOFT made no financial contributions to political
parties in the year.

Approval
This report was approved by the Board on
25 August 2006 and signed on its behalf by:

John Weston
Chairman and acting Chief Executive Officer
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The Remuneration Committee
aims to align executive director
and senior management interests
with the interests of shareholders...

by ensuring that remuneration at senior levels is weighted toward

performance related elements.

05

Well enough to return home,
Scott is given an appointment

to visit the hospital's
ophthalmology department so
that he can have a celour retinal
photegraph to check for possible
diabetes-related damage 1o his
eyes, Via LORENZO, the results of
the scan are sent to his GP and
are included in his health record.

Continued on page 56.

Introduction

This report sets out the iSOFT Group executive
remuneration policy, structure and details of
remuneration received by directors in the year ended
30 April 2006 as required by the Directors'
Remuneration Report Regulations 2002, As
proposed in the 2005 Annual Report, there were
some changes to remuneration structures in 2006 as
compared to 2005 and these are outlined in detail
later in this report.

Role of the Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for
setting the remuneration of the Chairman of the
Board, Chief Executive Officer, executive directors
and direct reports to the Chief Executive Officer and
the executive directors, where base pay is in excess
of £100,000 per annum, or where base plus cash
bonuses are in excess of £200,000 per annum. The
committee also monitors remuneration poficy more
generally and particularly in relation to overall
coherence and expected or potential cast. The
comrmittee amended its terms of reference to those
above to ensure it continued to have responsibility
for setting the remuneration of senior management
following changes that had taken place in the senior
management structure during the year.

The remuneration of non-executive directors is
determined by the Board as a whale. No director
is involved in discussions relating to their

own remuneration.




Membership and meetings

The members of the Remuneration Committee
during the year were Colin Wall, chair of the
committee until his resignation on 3 April 2006,

Sir Digby Jones until his resignation on 25 July 2005,

Furfyl ap Gwilym and Ken Lever, who was
appointed to the committee on 25 July 2005.

Eurfyl ap Gwilym was appointed chairman of the
committee on 24 August 2006. All of the members
of the committee are independent non-executive
directors. The committee met five times during the
year. Details of attendance at meetings can be
found on page 33. The Chairman of the Board,
Chief Executive Officer and cther directors are able
to attend the meetings of the Remuneration
Committee under the practice that any director may
attend any meeting of a Board Committee providing
they have no conflict of interest in respect of the
business to be discussed.

Advisers

During the year the Remuneration Committee
received guidance on executive remuneration from
the Chief Executive Officer, the Group Human
Resources Director and the Company Secretary,
except on matters relating to their own
remuneration. The committee received independent
external advice from New Bridge Street Consultants
LLP and Kepler Associates Ltd. On 15 March 2006,
the Remuneration Committee appointed Kepler
Associates Lid as its principal independent external
aclviser for remuneration matters in place of New
Bridge Street Consultants. No other services were
provided to the Company during the year by Kepler
Associates Ltd.

Executive directors' remuneration policy

The Remuneration Committee aims o align
executive director and senior management interests
with the interests of shareholders by ensuring that
remuneralion at senior levels is weighted toward
performance-related elements. The palicy is also
specifically designed to attract, retain and motivate
the talent the business needs.

Remuneration packages of the executive directors
are reviewed annually to ensure that they remain
aligned with the Group's business objectives and the
interests of shareholders. Following the review in
2005, the Committes has introduced an updated
remuneration policy which provides a competitive
base salary with a significant proportion of
remuneration linked directly to Group and individua!
performance. The new arrangements are highly
performance-oriented, and are intended to deliver
upper quartile levels of reward for outstanding
performance. They will also result in decreased
remuneration for below average performance and
higher reward for superior performance, The
proposed mix of incentives has been rebalanced
towards longer-term performance.

The remuneration of executive directors during the
year comprised the following elements:

+ base salary;

= annua! performance bonus;
+ performance share awards,
s pension contribution; and
« other benefits.

Base salary

Base salaries are reviewed annually and adjustments
made where necessary to reflect changes in
responsibilities, individua! performance and

market rates.

The Committee determined the competitiveness

of pay will be assessed primarily in terms of total
remuneration, with less emphasis on base salary
alone. Base salary and total remuneration leveis are
benchmarked against similar positions in
comparable companies. The commiitee reviewed the
base salaries of the executive directors at 1 May 2005
and decided to increase the base salaries of Tim
Whiston and Steve Graham to £460,000 and
£385,000 respectively. There were no changes to
the base salaries of the executive directers during
the year. The committee decided not to increase the
base salaries of any of the executive directors at




1 May 2006 review. It is proposed in future that
executive directors' base salaries be reviewed at

1 January consistent with other Group employees.
Details of directors’ emoluments are set out on
page 50.

Annual performance bonus

The Group provides performance-related bonuses
for executive directors. In line with the proposal put
to shareholders at the AGM in July 2005, annual
bonuses for directors for the year ending 30 April 2006
and for subsequent years were to be capped at
100% of base salary and the whole of the bonus
paid in cash. Benuses are payable at the discretion
of the Committee based on the Group's financial
performance and individual performance. The
financial performance targets are set with reference
to, amongst other things, Group normalised profit
before tax, amended for the impact of any
acquisitions. The committee ensures that the
individual performance criteria are suitably
challenging and as such are aligned with
shareholder interests.

Due to the performance of the Company during the
year ended 30 April 2006, no performance related
honuses were awarded to executive directors.

A deferred bonus in the form of shares {'Bonus
Shares') was awarded to Gavin lames and Ravi
Kumar on 28 July 2005. In the case of Ravi Kumar
the award was made to recognise his contribution
to the Company prior to joining the Beard and in
the case of Gavin James to align his interests to the
shareholders. The value of the award was equal to
their base salary. The monetary value of the bonus
was translated inte shares based on the average
market price of the Company's shares in the three
trading days preceding the award date, which was
418p. The only condition attaching to vesting of the
award is that the director remains in employment
with the Company for three years from the date of
the award.
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A proportion of the Bonus Shares corresponding to
such proportion of the holding period as has
elapsed may be released early if the executive
director ceases to hold employment with the Group
by reason of death, disability, injury, redundancy,
retirement or otherwise if the Remuneration
Committee so determines. Benus Shares may also
be released early in the event of a takeover or
carporate reconstruction of the Group.

The Performance Share Plan (PSP} 2005

The Performance Share Plan (PSP} was approved by
the shareholders at the AGM in July 2005. Under
the PSP executive directors can receive annual
grants of nil-cost options or conditional shares
which will vest three years after the date of grant to
the extent to that performance conditions have
been achieved. Grant sizes may be reviewed from
time 1o time, taking account of total remunreration
for executives within the Group versus the market.
It is not intended to change the grant sizes each
year but there is an overall annual plan limit of
200% of base salary to allow flexikility in
exceptional circumstances.

The performance measure is ISOFT's Total
Shareholder Return (TSR), i.e. share price growth
and dividends, relative to that of the companies that
make up the FTSE Software & Computer Services
index. The Committee has decided that the FTSE
Software & Computer Services Index is a suitable
comparator as the Company has been a constituent
of this index for a significant period since fictation.



The graph below illustrates TSR performance of the Company in comparison to the FTSE Software & Computer

Services Index over the period since listing in July 2000.
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No cptions ar conditional shares will vest if ISOFT is
ranked below median, 20% of shares will vest for
median performance and full vesting will occur only
for top quartile performance. Vesting between
median and upper guartile will be on a straight-line
basis. The executives will be entitled to a payment
equal to the dividends which would have been due
during the three year performance period on those
shares that actually vest.

On 28 July 2005, in accordance with the proposal
put to shareholders at the AGM in July 2005, the
Company made awards under the PSP to each of
the executive directors with a value of equal to
125% of their respective base salaries. The average
mid market price of the Company's shares on the 3
days preceding 28 July 2005 was 418p. These grants
were made in the form of conditional shares and
subject 0 the performance conditions set out above.

Share options
The Group operates an approved and an
unapproved share option scheme.

FTSE 250 FTSE Soft & Comp Serv.

+ FTSE Techmark 100

Following introduction of the PSP {see above), it is
not intended to make any further awards to
executive directors under the share option schemes
other than in exceptional circumstances. Prior to the
introduction of the new proposals, Gavin James was
granted 250,000 options with an exercise price of
423.8 pence on 30 June 2005 and these are subject
to challenging performance targets, based on
normalised profit before tax growth in the three
years following the grant. Apart from the grant to
Gavin James, no share options have been granted o
directors during the year. All options granted to
executive directors are subject to the achievement of
certain performance conditions.

Revised option performance criteria are currently
being reviewed and considered by the Remuneration
Committee. Details of the share options granted to
date are set out on page 51.

Pension contributions

The Group makes an annual payment to executive
directors equal to 20% of base salary. Directors are
respensible for using these funds {0 make their cwn
pension arrangements. Detalls of contributions paid
to the executive directers during the year are set out
on page 54.




Other benefits

Other benefits provided to the executive directors
comprised private health insurance, private medical
insurance and life assurance. Ravi Kumar's entitlement
to a car allowance ended on 30 April 2006.

The Bonus Co-investment Plan (BCP) 2005

The Bonus Co-Investment Plan (BCP) was approved
by the shareholders at the AGM in July 2005, Under
the terms of this plan, executive directors are able to
commit voluntarily up to 100% of their earned
annual bonus into iSOFT shares. This weuld provide
the opportunity for executives to earn matching
shares up to @ maximum of three for one subject to
iSOFT meeting challenging three year Earnings Per
Share (EPS) growth targets. In the event that an
executive director disposes of committed shares with
in a period of three years, he loses the benefit of the
BCP in respect of the committed shares disposed of.
The Company intended to introduce the BCP for
bonus paid in respect of the year ended 30 Apnil 2006,
however, it has been decided to postpone the
introduction of the BCP. The Remuneration Committee
will review the introducticn of the BCP in 2007.

Service contracts and termination

provisions policy

The Combined Code and the latest guidelines issued
by institutional investors recommend that notice
pericds of no more than one year be set as an
objective for executive directors, and that any
payments to a departing executive director should
be determined having full regard to the duty of
mitigaticn. It is the Company's intention to achieve
these objectives, wherever possible.

Details of the service contracts of those serving as
executive directors at the year end are set out below.

Contract Unexpired
date term
Tim Whiston 25Mar 2003 Roling
Steve Graham 18 May 2000 Rolling
Gavin James 21 June 2005 Rolling
Ravi Kumar 01 Nov 2004 Rolling
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The Company's policy is that in normal circumstances
executive directors should have rolling service
contracts with an indefinite term providing for a
maximum of one year's notice from either party to
reflact market practice.

Patrick Cryne resigned as a director of iSOFT Group plc
on 19 Qctober 2005. He was subsequently retained
by the Group as a Business Development Executive
and was paid an aggregate remuneration of

£91,987 up until his resignation frem this post

on 26 February 2006.

Share ownership guideline

To further afign the interests of shareholders and
executives, the Committee has introduced a share
ownership guideline, which requires executive
directors to hold shares with a value equivalent to
125% of salary for executive directors when the new
incentive arrangements were introduced. During the
year the share ownership guideline was met by Tim
Whiston, Steve Graham and Ravi Kumar. As a newly
appointed executive director, Gavin James is not
required to meet this guideline yet.

External appointments

The consent of the Board is required for any external
appointments proposed by an individual director,
such as a non-executive director position with
another company, to ensure that the appointment
does not give rise to a conflict of interest. Where an
appointment is accepted, it must be undertaken in
the director's own time. The director is permitted to
retain any remuneration earned from the external
appointment. Details of principal external appointments
of the directors are set out on pages 26 10 27.

Notice Termination

period payments

12 months 1 years salary plus 1 year's pension
contribution and benefits

12 months 1 year's salary plus 1 year's pension
contribution and benefits

12 months 1 year’s salary plus 1 year's pension
contribution and benefits

12 months 1 year's salary plus 1 year’s pension

_contribution and benefits



Directors’ emoluments (audited)

Directors’ remuneration for the year ended 30 April 2006 was as follows:

Base salary Benefits* Performance Total Total Prevailing

earned/fees related 2006 2005 base

bonus salary/fees

payable at 30 April

in cash 2006

£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000

ot . s s R : oo
Patrick Cryne? 92 1 - 93 500 -
Tim Whiston® 462 3 - 465 721 460
Steve Graham® 387 3 - 390 604 385
Gavin James® 188 2 - 150 - 250
Ravi Kurmnar 250 9 - 259 256 250
Geoff White 120 - - 120 80 120
S'i'r'ij‘\'gbyjbnes‘ SRR : S e -
oyl o Goniem " e : S e ‘0
Colin Wall* &0 - - &0 48 -
David Thorpe 50 - - 50 45 50
Rene Kern® - - - - - -
o Lovarr " L e s - 4 - ”
John Whelan - - - - 591 -
Mark Woodbridge - - - - 130 -
Total 1,836 18 - 1,854 3,095 1,825

*Benefits comprise private medical msurance, life assurance,
permanent heaith insurance and car allowances. Pension contributions
made by the Company are shown separately on page 54.

No perfarmance related boruses have been awarded by the Board
in respect of the year ended 30 April 2006,

Jehn Weston was appointed non-executive Chairman on

18 October 2005

Patrick Cryne resigned as a director of ISOFT on 19 October 2005.
He was retained by the Group as an emiployee in the role of
Business Development Executive under his existing service
contract and resigned on 26 February 2006.

Gavin James was appointed on 21 June 2005 and started
employment in July 2005. He sacrificed an element of his base
salary towards payment into his Group Personal Pensicn Scheme
via the SmartPay mechanism.

Sir Digby Jones resigned as a non-executive director on 25 July 2005
Colin Wali resigned as a non-executive director on 3 Apnl 2006
Rene Kern is a non-executive director but receives no fee.

Ken Lever was appointed as a non-executive director en 21 June 2005
Tim Whiston resigned as Chief Executive Officer on 14 June 2006.
The amount shown above as base salary earned includes £2,000
back pay for the increase in remuneration received with effect of
1 April 2005.

9 Steve Graham's base salary earned shown above includes £2,000
back pay for the increase in remuneration received with effect
from 1 April 2005,

ha
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As was indicated in last year's annual report, following
the resignaticn of Sir Digby Jones as a director on

25 July 2005, the Company retained his services as an
adviser on external affairs. Under the terms of this
arrangement, Sir Dighy Jones was paid & fee of
£45,000 during the financial year ended 30 April 2006.

Following his resignation on 14 June 2006, Tim
Whiston was paid a sum of £552,000, being equivalent
to 12 months' basic salary and pension contributions.
The Remuneration Committee also agreed that Tim
Whiston's deferred bonus shares would vest and would
be settled by a cash payment of £132,685. The
Remuneration Committee further resolved that Tim
Whiston would be treated as a good leaver for the
purposes of the share option schemes and the PSP,




Share options (audited)
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In addition to the directors' share interests noted in the Report of the Directors on page 28, the following

share options have been granted to directors:

Exercise At 1 May  Granted
price 2005" during
pence the year
Tim Whiston
1y 101,000 -
174 250,000 -
249 850,000 -
145’ 48G,176 -
145 19,824 -
372¢ 430,000 -
Steve Graham
3722 351,928 -
3727 8,071 -
Gavin James
423757 - 242,921
42375 - 7,079
Ravi Kumar
110! 101,000 -
217.5 125,000 -
151" 80,176 -
151 19,824 -

338 150,000 -

* Or at date of appointment if later,

Exercised
during
the year

101,000
250,000
850,000
480,176

19,824

101,000
125,000

At 30 April Date from Expiry

2006 which date
exercisable

- 1104 2003 10 Jul 2010

- 20 Dec 2003 19 Dec 2010

- 22 Jun 2004 27 Jun 2011

- 11 0ct 2005 100ct 2012

- 11 0c¢t 2005 100ct 2012

430,000 09 Feb 2008 08 Feb 2015

351,929 09 Feb 2008 08 Feb 2015

8,071 09 Feb 2008 08 Feb 2015

242,921 30 Jun 2008 29 Jun 2015

7,079 30Jun 2008 29 Jun 2015

- 11 Jul 2003 10 Jul 2010

- 11 Oct 2004 10 Oct 201

80,176 30 Sep 2005 29 Sep 2012

19,824 30 Sep 2005 29 Sep 2012

150,000 24 Mar 2007 23 Mar 2014

250,000 09 Feb 200 8 Feb 2035

Tim Whiston, Steve Graham and Ravi Kumar each participated in the Group's Sharesave scheme during
the year. At 1 May 2005, each was entitled to purchase 5,422 shares at a price of 175 pence per share
from 1 Qctober 2005. These rights were not exercised and expired on 31 March 2006.

1 The performance critena for these options has been satisfied as .

the performarice of the Company's Total Shareholder Return

(TSR] retative to growth in the Retail Price Index (RPI) over the

three year period from the date of grant of the gption has
exceeded the growth in RPI by S0%.

]

the three year period from the date of grant of the aption;

Options are exercisable subject to the growth in the Compariy's
normalised profit before tax relative to the growth in RPl over

50% of options may be exercised if normalised profit before
tax growth exceeds the growth in RPI by 10%

100% of options may be exercised if normalised profit before
tax growth exceeds the growth in RPI by 20%.

Where the performance target growth falls between the
levels specified, the proportion of options that may be
exercised wilt be calculated an a straight line basis. Where the
grawth is less than the minimum growth level specified
above, all of the options lapse and cease to be exercisable,
Tim VWhiston exercised 1,701,000 share options in the pericd
with a gross gain of £3,687,730 and sold 935,852 of the
shares acquired realising sufficient funds to match tax
lighilities and amounts payeble to the Company on the
option exercises.

Ravi Kumar exercised 226,000 share options in the period
with a gross gain of £596,283 and sold 155,813 of the shares
acquired realising sufficient funds to match tax fiabilities and
amourts payable to the Company on the opticns exercised.




Performance Share Plan 2005

Tim Whiston
Steve Graham
Ravi Kumar

Gavin James

Award date

oy 2005
28 July 2005

28 July 2005

The average mid market price of the Company’s shares
over the 3 days preceding 28 July 2005 was 418p. The
number of shares awarded provides a value of 125%
of base salary and have been awarded on a zero cost
basis, The shares are subject to forfelture arrangements
in the event that the Company's Total Shareholder
Return (TSR} does not achieve the performance
measures set cut below over a three year period relative
10 the companies that make up the FTSE Software &

Computer Services Index:

At 1 May Shares At 30 Apri! Date due

2005  awarded 2006 to vest
number number number

e 5055 56 'J'L]ij'}mz'(jOS

- 115,108 115,108 29 July 2008

- 74745 74,745 29 July 2608

...... Lo 74745 472529 luly 2008

« if the Company is ranked at or above the upper
quartile position of the TSR list, all of the shares will
become vested and be released to the director.

* |f the Company is yanked at a median position of the
TSR list, 20% {rounded up to the nearest whole
share)} of the shares will become vested and be
released to the director.

* If the Company is ranked below the median position
of the TSR list, none of the shares will be released to
the director.

¢ If the Company is ranked between the median and
upper guartile positicns of the TSR list, the number
of shares which will becomne vested and be released
to the director wilt be calculated on a straight line
basis between the median and upper quartile.
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Deferred share bonus awards (audited)
Shares awarded to the directors and former directors under the deferred share bonus plan are as follows:

Award date At 1 May Shares Vested At 30 April Date vested/
2005 awarded 2006  due to vest
number number number number

Patrick Cryne? 30 Apr 2003 95,351 - - 95351 07 May 2006
30 Apr 2004 62,378 - - 62,378 01 May 2007°
30 Apr 2005 44,507 - - 44,507 01 May 2008°

Tim Whiston' 30 Apr2003 95,3517 o - 95,351 01 May 2006
30 Apr 2004 63,112 - - 63,112 01 May 2007
30 Apr2005 81,690 - - 81,690 01 May 2008

Steve Graham 30 Apr 2003 82,637 - - 82,637 01 May 20067
30 Apr 2004 61,644 - - 61,644 01 May 2007
30 Apr 2005 68,450 - - 68,450 C1 May 2008

Ravi Kumar 30 Apr 2005 47,605 - - 47,605 01 May 2008

Jjohn Whelan 3C Apr 2004 39,628 . - 39,628 - 20 Jun 2005

Roger Dickens 30 Apr2003 76,403 - - 76,403 C1 May 2006°

1 In June 2006, £132,856 was paid to Mr W_histon i|_'| cash to Deferred share bonus awards are awards of

) Gt et v cusipdoplohm, - conitonsl shaes which niave been grared to

discretion to allow Patrick Cryne to retain and vest his deferred executive directors and which will vest three years
bonus shares, after the date of grant. If the director leaves
3 Deferred bonus shares due to be vested pending the end of employmem with the Company hefore the end of

the Company's close period, in accordance with Listing

Rulle regulations. the three-year holding period for any reasen other

than ifl-health, redundancy, retirement, death or
because the business or company with whom he
holds office is no longer a member of the Group, or
for any other reason at the discretion of the trustee,
the director shall immediately forfeit all of the
conditional shares. If the director leaves for any of
the reasens set out above before the end of the
three-year period, the conditicnal shares shail be
released to the director cerresponding to the
proportion of the holding period which has elapsed
at the date of leaving.



Other Deferred Share Awards
Other deferred shares awarded to the directors as bonus shares are as follows:

Award date At 1 May Shares At 30 April Date

2005 awarded 2006 due

number number number to vest

Ravi Kumar 28 Jul 2005 - 59,808 59,808 29 Jul 2008
Gavin James N 28 Jul 2005 - 53,808 59,808 29 Jui 2008

Pension contributions {audited)

2006 2005

£000 £'000
Patrick Cryne 18 68
TimWhiston 9B 86
Steve Graham _ 77 72
Ravi Kumar 76 28
Gavin James' 64 -
John Whelan - 54
Total 328 308

1 Gavin James invested an elerment of his pension allowance in
the Company's Group Pension via the SrartPay mechanisrm.
The employer's National Insurance rebate for 2005 of £2,000
has been included in the pension allowance amount
showrr above.
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The remuneration of non-executive directors is determined by
the Board with regard to market comparatives. Independent advice
is sought to ensure parity is maintained with similar businesses.

Non-executive directors

Non-executive directors do not have service
agreements and are appointed under letters of
appointment. Under the terms of the letters of
appointment, non-executive directors are appointed
for an initial term of three years, unless the
appointment is terminated by either party. There are
no provisions for early termination payments. The
appointment of a non-executive director is subject
to shareholder approval at the first annual general
meeting following the director's appointment.
Continuation of appointment is subject to continued
satisfactory performance and re-election at
forthcoming annual general meetings, in accordance
with the Company's articles of association. Letters
of appointment are available for inspection at the
Company’s registered office.

The remuneration of non-executive directors is
determined by the Board with regard to market
comparatives. Independent advice is sought to
ensure parity is maintained with similar businesses.
Remuneration was last reviewed in September 2005
using data provided by Kepler Associates Lid.

The basic annual fee for non-executive directors
was not increased during the year. The Board may
pay additional remuneration for any services
outside the scope of the ordinary duties of a
non-executive director,

The mid market price of the Company's shares at

1 May 2005 and 30 April 2006 was 351 pence and
117.5 pence respectively. The range during the financial
year was between 461 pence and 112.5 pence.

Combined Code

The Committee and its operation comply with the
principles of good gaovernance and the Combined
Code on corporate governance as appended to the
Listing Rules of the FSA.

Approval
This report was approved by the Board on
25 August 2006 and signed on its behalf by:

54’ /‘;lgﬂ .

Eurfyl ap Gwilym
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
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This report to shareholders has
been prepared in accordance with

the requirements of...

paragraph C.3.3 of the Combined Code and paragraphs 5.1 and
5.2 of the Guidance on Audit Committees prepared by Sir Robert
Smith. The report describes the activities of the Audit Committee

in meeting these requirements.
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LORENZQ enables Scott

to play an active role in
managing his condition.

At home, using his digital
TV and its remote control,
he updates his own medical
record with details of his
blood sugar level and blood
pressure. From the TV
screen, he can also check
when he needs to take

his medication.

Continued on page 60,

Terms of reference

The Audit Committee's terms of reference are
reviewed from time to time and approved by the
Board of iSOFT. They are based on the model terms
of reference set out in the Guidance Note produced
by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators and the guidance notes set out in
Sir Robert Smith’s report published in January 2003,

The terms of reference cover membership and
appointments, meetings, (frequency, guorum,
attendees and minutes), duties and responsibilities
covering external audit, internal audit, finanaal
reporting, internal contrels and risk management
systems, whistle blowing, reporting responsibilities,
autherity (delegated by the Beard) and a number of
other matters.

Audit Committee membership and experience
The Audit Committee comprises three independent
non-executive directors. The members of the
Committee are Ken Lever, who was appointed to
the Committee as Chairman on 25 July 2005, David
Thorpe, who was appointed on 11 May 2004 and
Eurfyl ap Gwilym, who was appcinted in preparation
for the full listing on the Londen Stock Exchange
and served as Chairman untii 25 July 2005. Colin
Wall was also a member of the committee until the
appointment of Ken Lever. The Board has
determined that all members of the committee are
independent non-executive directors for the
purposes of the Cembined Code. The members
have wide-ranging commercial, financial and
management experience that they bring to the work
of the Audit Committee. Their biographical details
are set out on page 26.




Meetings

The Audit Committee meets at least four times a
year and on other occasions as circumstances
require. The quorum for the meeting is two
members. The Finance Director, representatives of
the external auditor and the internal auditor, Ernst
& Young LLP, attend the meetings under a standing
invitation. The Chairman of the Board, Chief
Executive Officer and other directors are able to
attend the meetings of the Audit Committee. Other
finance and business risk exetutives attend the
meetings and the Company Secretary is Secretary to
the Committee. The Audit Committee Chairman
reports reqularly {o the Board on its activities. Four
meetings were held during the year and attendance is
set out on page 33.

Work of the Committee

The Audit Committee has established an agenda
framework which iSOFT believes is vital for
maintaining an appropriate focus on the objectives
of the Committee. The agenda framework sets out
all of the operational duties and responsibilities
outlined in the Committee's terms of reference and
is based on four regular meetings in September,
March, June and November. The areas covered by
the agenda framework are as follows:

1. Corporate Governance, including the regular
review of the terms of reference and annual
evaluation, regulatory issues, review of delegated
authorities and review of auditor independence;

2. Business Risk Assurance and internal audit,
including the review of the business risk
assessment completed by executive management,
the review of the internal audit plan and review
of internal audit reports;

3. confidential sessions with the external auditer and
internal audrter in the absence of executive
maragement;

4. financial reporting, including current accounting
and financial reporting matters and review of
interim and annual reports and related results'
announcements; and

5. external audit and appointment of external
auditors, including audit plan, and scope, review
of audit fees, cost effectiveness, reports on
interim and annual financial statements, audit
status reports, management letters and the
nature and extent of non-audit services
performed by the externa! auditor.

The audit plan and scope sets out details of the
areas to be covered and how the audit is to be
conducted. The Chairman of the Audit Committee
meets periodically with the external auditor to
discuss progress on the audit and the major points
arising, and has the opportunity to assess the
effectiveness of the process. The Audit Committee is
also able to assess the effectiveness of the process
through reports made o the Committee by the
external auditor.

tn addition to the items considered by the Audit
Committee under the "agenda framework”, during
the financial year other important issues considerad
included reguiar reviews of the internal control
systems and the statement to be made in the
Directors’ Report and Accounts in respect of internal
controls, Group business risk profile, updates on
compliance with the Combined Code, and
developments in accounting systems. Confidential
meetings with representatives of the independent
audit and internal audit functions, in the absence of
executives, took place during the year.

The Audit Commiitee met earlier in the year to
consider the adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards and following detailed
consideration by the Committee, consultation with
the external auditor and approval by the Board, the
Company announced interim resulis prepared under
IFRS on 8 December 2005. The Company has
published comparative information for 2005
originally presented in accordance with UK GAAP
but restated in accordance with IFRS,




Non-audit services are ordinarily put cut to tender
and require the approval of the Chairman of the
Audit Committee ebove certain levels. In those cases
where the work was awarded to the external
auditor it was concluded that the firm of the
independent auditer was best placed te supply such
services due 1o the experience and qualifications of
the individuals praviding such services and that the
best interests of the Company were served by
engaging the firm of the independent auditor. The
policies adopted by the Audit Committee, including
those relating to audit partner rotation and relevant
ethical guidance issued by the professional badies in
the Consultative Committee of Accountancy Bodies,
in particular that the external auditor sheuld not
audit its own firm's work, make management
decisions for the Company, create a mutuality of
interest nor be put in the position of advocate for
the Company, when taken together, provide
adequate protection of auditor independence. All
fees proposed hy the external auditor must be
reported to the Audit Commitiee and prior approval
is reguired from the Chairman of the Audit
Committee for any projects with fees in excess of
£5,000. Deloitte & Touche LLP have provided advice
regarding the Company's cperations in India during
the year and it is planned that Deloitte & Touche LLP
will provide banking advice and tax compliance
services to the Company. Deloitte & Touche LLP with
Fversheds LLP also undertook on behalf of the
Company an investigation into the accounting
irreqularities as described on page 71. The
committee has reviewed the non-audit fees paid to
the external auditors which, in aggregate, totalled
£125,000 and has deemed that in the year ended
30 April 2006 they do not affect independence.

As noted on page 62, and as detailed in note 1 on
page 71, due to a number of limitations, the
independent auditors have been unable to give an
opinion as to whether the financial statements give
a true and fair view in respect of the accounts for
the year ended 30 April 2006.

Audit Committee Report
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Internal audit function

In the prior year, the Group introduced an internal
financial audit function, cutsourced to Ernst &
Young LLP, 1o further enhance the existing internal
control framework. Work perfermed to date has
inciuded the documentation of a risk assessment
and financial controls review for all Group entities,
together with verification of this documentation
within two territories. It is anticipated that ali
territories will be subject to verification cver the next
twelve months. The internal auditors report formally
to the Audit Committee.

Approval
The report was approved by the Board on
25 August 2006 and signed on its behalf by:

Lo

Ken Lever
Chairman of the Audit Committee
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Two weeks after leaving
hospital, Scott automatically
receives a text message on his
mabile phone, informing him
that he requires a repeat
prescription. Using LORENZO,
his GP sends the prescripticn
electronically to Scott's local
pharmacy. Afl in all, a successful
outcome for Scott, achieved
with the full backing of the
latest technology.
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Independent Auditors’ Report to
the members of iSOFT Group plc

We have audited the Group financial statements of iSOFT Group

plc for the year ended 30 April 2006 which comprise the

consolidated income statement, the consolidated balance sheet,
the consolidated cash flow statement, the consolidated statement

of recognised income and expense, and the related notes 1 to 31.

These Group financial statements have been prepared
under the accounting pelicies set out therein. We
have also audited the information in the directors’
remuneration report that is described as having
been audited.

We have reported separately on the individual
cornpany financial statements of ISOFT Group plc for
the year ended 30 April 2006.

This report is made solely tc the Company's
members, as a body, in accordance with section 235
of the Companies Act 1985. Our audit work has
been undertaken so that we might state to the
Company's members those matters we are required
te state to them in an auditors' report and for no
other purpose. To the fuliest extent permitted by
law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the Company and the
Company's members as a body, for our audit work,
for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors
The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the
annual report, the directors’ remuneration report
and the Group financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted for use in
the European Union are set out in the statement of
directors’ responsibilities.




Qur responsibility is to audit the Group financial
statements and the part of the directors'
remuneration repert described as having been
audited in accordance with relevant United Kingdom
legal and reguiatory requirements and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and reland).

We report to you our opinion as to whether the
Group financial statements give a true and fair view,
in accordance with the relevant financial reporting
framework, and whether the Group financial
statements and the part of the directors'
remuneration report described as having been
audited have been properly prepared in accordance
with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the
IAS Regulaticn. We report to you whether in our
opinion the informaticn given in the directors’
report is consistent with the Group financial
statements. We also report to you if we have not
received all the information and explanations we
require for our audit, or if information specified by
law regarding directors’ transactions with the
Company and other members of the Group is

not disclosed.

We also report 1o you if, in our opinion, the Company
has not complied with any of the four directors’
remuneration disclosure requirements specified for
our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial
Services Authcerity These comprise the amount of
each element in the remuneration package and
information on share options, details of long term
incentive schemes and money purchase and defined
benefit schemes. We give a staterent, to the extent
possible, of details of any nen-compliance.

We review whather the corporate governance
staterment reflects the Company's compliance with
the nine provisions cf the 2003 FRC Combined
Code speacified for our review by the Listing Rules of
the Financial Services Authority, and we report if it
does not. We are not required to consider whether
the board's statement on internal contrel covers ali
risks and centrols, or form an gpinicn on the
effectiveness of the Group's corperate governance
procedures or its risk and controf procedures.

We read the Report of the Directors and the other
information contained in the annual report for the
above year as described in the contents section,
including the unaudited part of the directors’
remuneration report, and we consider the
implications for our report if we become aware of
any apparent misstatements or material
inconsistencies with the Group financial statements.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)
issued by the Auditing Practices Board, except the
scope of our work was limited as explained below.
An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of
evidence relevartt to the amounts and disclosures in
the Group financial statements and the part of the
directors’ remuneration report described as having
been audited. it also includes an assessment of the
significant estimates and judgements made by the
directors in the preparation of the Group finangal
statements, and of whether the accounting policies
are appropriate to the Company's circumstances,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned our audit so as to obtain all the
infermaticn and explanations which we considered
necessary in order 1o provide us with sufficient
evidence to give reascnable assurance that the
Group financial statements and the part of the
directors’ remuneration report described as having
been audited are free from material misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or other irregularity

or error.

However, the evidence available to us was limited
because of the following significant matters:

Investigations by the Group and Financial
Services Authority into accounting irregularities
in relation to subsidiaries

Arising from the accounting irregularities in relation
to subsidiaries detailed in note 1, the Board has
initiated a formal investigation, which may give rise
ta further investigations by the Company and other
parties, iogether with possible resulting actions by
the Company and other parties. Furthermore, the
Group passed its findings on the initial investigations
t0 the Financial Services Authority ("FSA”). On

24 August 2006 the Group announced that it has
received notification from the FSA that the FSA will
be undertaking a formal investigation into the




possible accounting irregularities. All these
circumstances have limited the ability of the
directors to conclude on the completeness or
accuracy of transactions recorded in the current and
past years. As a result, and in the absence of any
alternative evidence available to us, we have been
unahle to form a view on any pessible adjustments
to the financial statements that might have been
determined had the limitation not existed.

Accounting policy for revenue and cost recognition
and lack of associated accounting information
As detailed in notes 1 and 2, the Group has
changed its accounting policy for revenue and cost
recognition on contracts, as the current Board
considers the previous accounting policy to be
inappropriate. Under the pravious accounting policy
the directors deemed it unnecessary to establish a
detailed contract costing and review process 1o
measure contract activity. As a result, under the new
accourting policy, sufficient and appropriate audit
evidence is not available to determine whether
revenue and costs are recognised in the income
staternent and balance sheet to reflect the stage of
completion of contracts. In the absence of any
alternative evidence available to us, we have been
unable to form a view on any possible adjustments
to the financial statements that might have been
determined had the limitation not existed, including
the associated prior period adjustment.

Lack of information on status of delivery of
product under the National Programme for IT
and the associated capitalisation of
development costs

As detailed in notes 1 and 2, the Group has
changed its accounting policy for revenue
racognition under the National Programme for IT,
the new policy being based on the timing of
software delivery. Under the previous accounting
policy, the directors deemed it unnacessary to record
the detailed status of delivery and acceptance of
praduct. In addition, the Company has been unable
to obtain conclusive third party confirmation of the
status of delivery and acceptance. As a result, under
the new accounting policy, sufficient and
appropriate audit evidence is not available to
determine whether revenue and costs, including the
appropriate capitalisation of asscciated development
costs, are recognised in the income statement and
balance sheet to reflect contract activity. In the
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absence of any alternative evidence available to us,
we have been unable to form a view cn any possible
adjustments to the financial statements that might
have been determined had the limitation not existed,
including the associated prior period adjustment.

Potential for tlaims from National Programme
for IT Local Service Praviders ('LSPs’) and
other claims

As detailed in note 1 and note 29, formal
correspondence has been exchanged between a
subsidiary company and the LSPs, Accenture (UK)
Limited and C5C Computer Sciences Limited,
alleging material contractual breach by that
company. The ultimate outcome of these potential
claims, together with any other claims, cannot
presently be determined. As a result, and in the
absence of any alternative evidende available to us,
wa have been unabte to form a view on the
reasonableness of the lack of provision for such
matters in the financial statements.

Going concern

As detailed in note 1, the directors recognise that
there are material uncertainties which may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue
in operation. Having taken into account these
material uncertainties, the directors consider it is
appropriate 1¢ prepare the financial statements on
the going concern basis. In the circumstances of the
Group, we have been unable to obtain sufficient
and appropriate audit evidence regarding the
reasonableness of the directors' assumptions
regarding the identified material uncertainties.

As a result, and in the absence of any alternative
evidence avaifable to us, we have been unable to
form a view as to the applicability of the going
concern basis, together with the effect on the
financial statements should this basis be
inappropriate. Any such adjustments would include
writing down the carrying value of assets, including
goodwill, to their recoverable amount and providing
for any further liabilities that might arise.




in forming our opinion we also evaiuated the overall
adeguacy of the presentation of information in the
Group financial statements and the part of the
directors' remuneration report described as having
been audited.

Opinion: disclaimer on view given by financial
statements

Because of the possible effects of the limitations in
evidence available to us, we are unable to form an
opinion as to whether:

» the Group financial statements give a true and
fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted for
use in the European Union, of the state of the
Group's affairs as at 30 April 2006 and of its loss
for the year then ended; and

» the Group financial statements and the part of -
the directors' remuneration report described as
having been audited have been properly prepared
in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and
Article 4 of the IAS Regulation, including
comparative information.

in respect of the fimitations on our work referred to
above we have not obtained all the information and
explanations that we considered necessary for the
purpose of our audit.

In our cpinion, having regard to our disclaimer of
opinion set out above, the information given in the
Report of the Directeors is consistent with the Group
financial statements. The information given in the
Report of the Directors includes that specific
infarmation presented in the Financial Review,
Report of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
and Corporate Social Responsibility Statement that
are cross-referred from the Business Review section
of the Report of the Directors.

Separate opinion in relation to IFRS: disclaimer
on view given by financial statements

As explained in note 2 of the Group finandial
statements, the Group, in addition to complying
with its legal cbligation to comply with tFRSs as
adopted for use in the European Union, has also
complied with the IFRSs as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board. However,
because of the possible effect of the limitations in
evidence available to us, we are unable to form an
opinion as to whether the financial statements give
a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs, of the
state of the Group’s affairs as at 30 April 2006 and
of its loss for the year then ended.

DL < Toehd S

Deloitte & Touche LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Manchester

25 August 2006
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Consolidated income statement for the year ended 30 April 2006

Total Total
2006 2005
Note £'000 £'000
Reveni . soiess 186,139
Goodwill impairment 4 (351,410) -
Other operating costs 4 (188,386) (177.684)
Total operating <asts (539,796) {177,684)
(Loss_){_profit from operations (338,101) 8,455
Investment revenues S J . 3,099 1,254
Finance costs 6 (8,748) (7,534)
{Loss)/profit before tax (343,750) 2,175
Tax (charge)/credit 8 (38,432) 3,719
{Loss}/profit for the financial year (382,182} 5,894
Attributable to:
Minority interests - equity 357 297
Equity holders of the parent {382,539) 5,597
{Lossy/profit for the year (382,182) 5,894
(Loss)/earnings per share
2006 2005
Basic (lossyearnings per share 10 {165.1p) 2.6p
Diluted (loss)earnings per share 10 (165.1p) 2.6p




Consolidated statement of recognised income and expense for the year ended

30 April 2006

2006 2005
£'000 £'000
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations o385 )
Actuarial (losses)/gains on defined benefit pension schemes LA 13
Tax on items taken directly 1o equity 942 {1,231)
Net losses recognised directly in equity (360) (1,101)
(Lossyprofit for the year (382,182) 5,894
Total recognised income and expense for the year (382,542) 4,793
Attributible to:
Equity holders of the parent (382,899) 4,496
Minofity interests 357 297
(382,542) 4,793
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Consolidated balance sheet as at 30 April 2006

Note 2006 2005
£'000 £'00G
Non-current assets . ‘
Goodwill _ 11 144,144 481,655
Cther intangible assets 11 771 2,354
Property, plant and eguipment 12 14,057 12,365
Deferred tax asset 13 10,027 59,112
168,999 555,486
Current assets
inventories 720 1,211
Trade and other receivables 14 66250 69,809
Cash and cash eguivalents 77,543 110,140
144,513 181,160
Assets held for sale 16 4,000 4,000
Total assets 317,512 740,646 “
Current liabilities - -
Trade and other payables 17 (151,698) {180,214}
Current tax fiabilities - _ _ . - (20,611)
Obligations under finance leases 18 (947} {1,050)
B O wies T T 05 62y
Short-term provisi'ons 20 (943) (1,400}
(201,353) (232,903)
Liabilities associated with non-current assets classified as held forsale 16 (30000  (3,000)
(204,353} (235,903)
Net current liabilities {56,840) (51,743)
. Non-current liabilities
Bank and othet loans ' 18 (70,149) (80,224)
Retirement benefit obligation 21 {10,712) (9,167
Obligations under finance leases ' ' 18 " (529) {834)
Deferred tax liabilities 13 (805) (3,926}
Otfer payatles. T T T . = G G a5Th
Long-term provisions ' 20 (2,199} {2,936)
(87,721) {100,488)
Total liabilities (292,074) (336,391)
Net assets 25,438 404,255
Equity
Share capital ' ' ' C 22 23,249 22,778
Share premium account 23 53,543 43,082
v shares A L . O G e
Merger ang other reserves . 23 130,742 361,332
Retained earnings ' 23 (178,948) (23,412)
Equity attributible to equity holders of the parent 24,828 403,780
Minarity interest - ' B - ' 610 475
Total equity 25,438 404,255
The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 25 August 2006.
Thet 2gighed on its behalf by:
J
John Weston Gavin e

Chairman and acting Chief Executive Officer Group Finance Direcior




Consolidated cash flow statement for the year ended 30 April 2006

Note 2006 2005
£'000 £'000

Operating activities _
Cash genarated by operations 24 1.946 92,37%
Income taxes paid {17,788) {9,529
Interest paid {4,644} {4,892}
Net cash flow (used in)from operating activities {(20,486) 77,958
lnvesting' activities
Interest received _ _ _ 2,456 1,254
Purchases of property, plant and equipment G (3,495)
Proceeds on disposal of property plant and equipment 37 234
Deferred consideration paid ' (241) (7,315}
Purchase of own shares {3,758) -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (8,250} (684)
D_i_s_posal of assetS heid for resale - - 2,2_23
Capitalised developrnent costs (722) (2,354)
Net cash used in investing activities (16,195) {10,137
s i
Cividends paid (6,030) (5,560)
Proceeds on issue of shares 7.030 5,874
New loans raised 41,548 1,113
Répaym'énts of ob'ligati'dﬁs under finance leases ) (‘1..'1 ag) (1,421
Debt issue costs (66) (327)
Repayment of foans (37,195) (32,394)
Net cash from/{used in) financing activities 4,088 (32,715)
Net (decrease)increase in cash and cash equivalents (32,593) 35,106
Exchange differences (4) -
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 110,140 75,034
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 77,543 110,140
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Notes to the financial statements

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
detailed in note 2. In preparing these financial statements, the following significant limitations and
circumstances were taken into account,

tnvestigations into accounting irregularities

On 20 July 20056 the Company announced that the Board had commissioned an investigation into
possible accounting irregularities. The initial independent investigation was completed on 7 August and
concluded that there were grounds for @ more formal investigation. The Board also recognise that the
commencement of the more formal investigation may give rise to further investigations by the Company
and other parties.

The conclusion of the initial investigation was that there is evidence of irregularities in respect of
subsidiaries affecting the financial years 2003/4 and 2004/5. The principal effects of this would appear to
have been to recognise revenues earlier than they should have been and would not appear to have had
any effect on the cash position of the Company.

It is nat possible for the Board to conclude what implications, if any, may arise from the conclusion of the
investigations into these matters and it is possible that certain adjustments or restatements to the financial
statemnents as presented may arise which could be material to the reported results or statement of
financial position as presented.

Accounting policy for revenue and cost recognition and lack of associated accounting information
On 8 June 2006 the Board anncunced that it had decided to change the Group’s accounting policy for
revenue recognition to one appropriate to the current commercial situation of the business as described in
the Chairman's report and in note 2.

in considering ihe most appropriate policy to apply the Board considered a number of different polices
and practices. The criteria applied in determining the most appropriate policy included an assessment of
which policy would best reflect the underlying business contracts, the cash flows and the application of
the resources of the business with the objective of ensuring that information could be reported so as to
help users to assess business performance and the amount, timing and uncertainty of future cash
outflows and cash inflows. The Board consider such information is essential in assessing the ability of the
business to generate net cash inflows and provide economic returns to investors.

The revenue recagnition policy as historically implemented was that all contracts were unbundled into
their constituent parts, and an internally determined proportion of the coniract value attributed to
implementation and support was recognised evenly over the implementation and support phases of the
contract respectively. The balance of the contractual value was attributed to licence revenue and
recognised at the date of contract.

The historical implementation of this policy presumed that supply of product licences can be separated
from implementation and support. The complex construction of the commercial contracts of the business,
the level of resources applied to implementation and suppert on an ongoing basis and the absence of a
reliable third party market in implementation and support of the Company's product have made it
increasingly difficult to distinguish between the supply of product licences and implementation and
support.

As the current Board has condcluded that the previous accounting policy has become inappropriate and
did not achieve the criteria and objective set out above it has decided that licence revenues will typically
be recognised over the period of implementation, which may range from a few months to a number of
years from contract signature, and over the full contract term in the case of full service contracts that are
not capable of being unbundled.

Changing the accounting policy requires previously reported revenues to be restated under the newly
adopted accounting policy. The nature of the contracts underlying the revenues of the business
determines the way in which revenue should be recognised. In the case of implementation projects the
licence and implementation revenues are appropriately recognised over the implementation period. In the
case of bundled contracts the total revenues of the contract (including licence) are appropriately
recognised over the total duration of the contract. The judgement of the Board is that this is the most
appropriate way for the Company 10 recognise revenues on projects.
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Notes to the financial statements

In accordance with I1AS 18, revenue of the business that is earned through the rendering of services
should be recognised on a stage of completion basis in ine with the activity and costs associated with
each of the projects.

Steps have been taken such that for new contractual arrangements the directors believe that it will be
possible to capture costs and activity on a contract by contract basis so that the costs and activity can be
used as a basis of allocating costs and revenues between accounting periods. Under the previous
accounting policy capturing individual coritract costs to measure contract activity was not deemed
necessary.

Given the historical costing records of the business do not identify activity by contract, the information is
net available to enable management ta measure revenue on a strict stage of completion hasis and
therefore the directors have concluded that, in the absence of more reliable data, the most appropriate
and practicable basis in the circumstances to recognise revenue on existing contracts is to use time as the
basis of recognition. The licence and implementation revenue is therefore spread evenly aver the
estimated period of the implementation in the case of implementation (unbundled) contracts and over the
total contract term in the case of bundled contracts.

The lack of historical records to support the strict aliocation of costs and revenues has meant that it is not
possible to provide sufficient and appropriate evidence to the independent audifors to demonstrate that
revenue is recognised in line with contract activity as required by the new policy.

The cest base of the iSOFT business units has historically been predominantly fixed in nature. The
judgement of the Board, given the historical costing records, is that it is currently most appropriate and
prudent o treat the costs, of the business as period costs acceunting for them in the period they arise.

The Board is of the view that the new accounting palicy now reflects an appropriate presentation of
revenues. Further, the Board is of the opinion, given the lack of historical records and resulting limitations
in infoermation, that spreading revenue evenly over the estimated period of the impiementation in the case
of implementation contracts and over the total contract term in the case of bundled contracts and
treating costs as period costs provides the best available recognition of revenues and presentation of
rasults of the business.

Information concerning the status of delivery under the National Programme for IT
Revenue in relation to the National Programme contracts was formerly recognised according to
development work done. The new policy is to recognise revenue based on the timing of software delivery.

The Nationat Programme confracis are product delivery arrangements with a phased refease of
functionality enhancements over the duration of the contracts, as described more fully on page 76. The
licence revenue arising is recognised as the elements of the product are delivered. Given the complexity of
the contractual arrangements between Connecting for Health and the LSPs and between the LSPs and
ISOFT and the difficulty in measuring and recording delivery of product the Board has been unable to
obtain conclusive third party confirmation of the status of defivery.

On the basis of the limited third party evidence that is available and the detailed internal knowledge and
records of the ISOFT operational team, the Board believes that in the circumstances it has iaken all
reasonable steps 1o ensure that revenue that it has recognised in the accounts is in accordance with the
stated accounting palicies. However, conclusive third party confirmation of the status of delivery from the
LSPs may have given rise to adjustments or restaternents to the finandal statements as presented which
could be matenal to the reported results or statement of financial position as presented, inciuding the
impact on capitalisation of associated development costs.

Potential for claims from National Programme Local Service Providers

As described in the Finance Review and in note 29, the Group has experienced a number of difficulties in
the deiivery of the Naticnal Programme for IT, some of which are cutside the control of the Group. Some
of these difficulties have resulted in formal correspondence being exchanged between the Company and
the LSPs, Accenture and CSC, alleging material contractual breach by the Company. The Company has
vigorously denied all of the alleged breaches. To date none of this correspondence has resulted in notice
1o terminate being given or any formal claims being made by the LSPs.
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Notes to the financial statements

The Company has taken legal advice on these matters. However, due to the complexity and nature of the
contracts, and differences in interpretation of functional requirements and their delivery and in the
absence of any formal claim, it is not possible to establish the likelinood nor the quantum of any potential
liability and consequently no specific provision has been made in relation to this matter.

Were any claims, including the potential for claims noted above, to be brought against the Company the
Board would continue to deny liability and would defend its position vigerously. Should such claims be
substantiated then they could give rise 1o adjustments to the financial statements as presented, which
could be material to reported results, cash flows and statement of financial pesition.

Going concern

The Board has prepared projected cash flow information for the pericd ending 12 months from the date
of approval of these financial statements. The projections include certain key assumptions made by the
directors:

(@) Future sales and margins consistent with prior experience which also take into account the
anticipated effect of the current circumstances facing the business.

{b) Significant restructuring of its UK and international operations to generate cost savings from the
reduction of resources, the simplificationr and re-engineering of the Group's care processes and
systems and the streamiining and simplification of the Group's product offerings.

{c) Disposal of the Group’s non-core activities by certain key dates.
{d) Renegotiation of certain key contractual arrangements.

{e) The satisfaction of the conditions contained in the banking agreement tc enable the continuation of
the banks facilities described in note 19.

{fy The Group previously derecognised contract financing arrangements as the obligations were
considered non-recourse. These obligations have been recognised on the balance sheet as
it is now considered appropriate to recognise these as a balance sheet liability. The banking
covenants were calculated excluding these derecognised obiigations and as such were these
obligations to be included in previous covenant calculations the Group would not have been in
compliance with its financial covenants. As part of the revised banking agreements, detailed in note
19, a waiver has been provided for any prior breach of covenants. The Directors therefore consider
that there is no impact on the availabllity of its banking facilities.

The nature of the Group's business is such that there can be considerable unpredictable variation and
uncertainty regarding the timing andfor occurrence of the matters referred to above, the timing and
margin of sales, the guantum and timing of cash flows from new business activity and the achievement
of contractual milestones.

In preparing these projections the directors recognise that there are material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

Having taken into account the uncertainties inherent in the assumptions referred ic in this note 1, the
directors consider that the cash fiow projections are compiled on a reasonable basis and that it is
appropriate that the financial statements should be prepared on the going concern basis. Future events
may give rise to circumstances not foreseen by the stated assumptions such that the use of the going
concern basis proves to be inappropriate. Should the going concern basis be inappropriate, the Company
may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. The
financial statements do not contain any adjustments that would be required were a satisfactory outcome
to the uncertainties, as detailed above, not be achieved. Such adjustments would include writing down
the carrying velue of assets, including goodwill, to their recoverable amount and providing for any further
liabilities that may arise.
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Notes to the financial statements

General information

iSOFT Group plc is a company incorporated in the United Kingdem under the Companies Act 1985, The
address of the registered office is given an page 129. The nature of the Group's operations and its
principal activities are set out on page 25 and in the Financial Review on pages 13 to 23.

These financial statements are presented in pounds sterling because that is the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Group operates. Foreign operations are included in accordance with
the policies set cut in the note below.

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations
which have not been applied in these financial stalements were in issue bul not yet effective:

IFRS 6  Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources
IFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures; and the related amendment t0 1AS 1 on capital disclosures
IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease

IFRIC 5 Right to Interests Arising from Decommissioning, Restoration and Environmental
Rehabilitation Funds

IFRIC 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under IAS 29 Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies

IFRIC 8 Scope of IFRS 2

The directors anticipate that the adoption of these Standards and Interpretations in future periods will
have no material impact on the financial statemerits of the Group, except for additional disclosures on
capital and financial instruments, when the relevant standards come into effact for periods commencing
on or after 1 January 2007.

Significant accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards ("IFRS") for the first time. The disclosures required by IFRS 1 concerning the transition from UK
GAAP to IFRS are given in note 31. The financial statements have also been prepared in accordance with
IFRS adopted for use in the European Union and therefore comply with Article 4 of the EU 1AS Regulation.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis. The principal accounting policies
adopted are set out below.

Going concern

The Group's directors have prepared projected cash flow information for the period ending 12 months
from the date of approval of these accounts. The projections include certain key assumptions made by the
directors as disclosed in note 1.

The Group is currently undergoing a significant restructuring of its UK and internaticnal operations, a
procass which is expecied to generate cost savings through, inter alia, the removal of excess rescurces
built up during the Group's development over recent years, the simplification and re-engineering of the
Group's core processes and systems, the renegotiation of contractual commitments and the streamlining
and simplification of the Group's market offerings. The projected cash flow information assumes that the
restructuring plan referred to above will be implemented succassfully.

The nature of the Group's business is such that there can be considerable unpredictable variation in the
timing and margin of sales, the quantum and timing of cash flows from new business activity and the
achievernent of contractual milestones. However, on the basis of the projected cash flow information,
which assumes the continued careful management of working capital, and provided that the disposal of
the Group's non-core activities is completed in the timescale currently envisaged, the directors consider
that the Group will continue to operate within the bank facilities currently agreed.

Having taken into account the uncertainties referred to above, the directors consider that the cash flow
projections are compiled on a reasonable basis on the assumptions set cut in note 1 and it is on that basis
that the directors consider it appropriate to prepare the Group's accounts on the going concern basis. The




Financial Statements
2006 Annual Report and Accounts

Notes to the financial statements

accourts do not include any adjustrments which may be necessary if the Group were unable to continue
to operate.

Basis of consolidation

The consciidated financial statements incorporate the finandial statements of the Company and entities
cortrolled by the Company (its subsidiaries} made ug to 30 April each year. Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to gevern the financiai and operating policies of an investee entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.

On acquisition, the assets and liabilities and contingent liabilities of a subsidiary are measured at their fair
values at the date of acquisition. Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair values of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recognised as goodwill. Any deficiency of the cost of acquisition below
the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired is credited to the profit and less account in the
period of acquisition. The interest of minority shareholders is stated at the mincrity's propertion of the fair
values of the assets and liabilities recognised. Subsequently, any losses applicable to the minority in excess
of the minority interest is allocated against the interests of the parent.

The results of subsidiary undertakings acquired or disposed of during a financial year are indluded from, or
up to, the effective date of acquisition or disposal. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statemnents of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies in line with those used by the Group.

Intercormpany transactions, balances, and income and expense are eliminated on consolidation.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's interest
in the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of a subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Goodwill
is recognised as an asset and reviewed for impairment at least annually. Any impairment is recognised
immediately in profit or loss and is not subsequently reversed.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions before the date of transition to IFRS has been retained at the previous UK
GAAF amounts, subject to being tested for impairment at that date.

On disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable net book value of goedwill is included in the determination of
the profit or loss on disposal.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding goodwill

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
to determine whether those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss {if
any). Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset {(cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recegnised as an expense immediately.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit)
s increased 1o the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss heen
recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit} in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

internally-generated intangible assets - research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred. An
internally-generated intangible asset arising from the Group's software development is recegnised only if
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all of the following conditions are met:

* an asset is created that can be clearly identified;

s it is probable that the asset created will generate future economic benefits; and
» the development cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Internally-generated intangible assets are amortised on & straight-line basis over their useful lives
commencing from the date of first income recognition. Where ne internally-generated intangible asset
can be recognised, developrment expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.

Revenue
The Group's revenues are derived from the sale of software product licences, the attendant installation,
maintenance and support revenues and supplies of third-party hardware and software.

The change in revenue recognition policy has been implemented by way of a prior year adjustment as
mandated by International Financial Reporting Standard 1. This requires the Group to provide comparable
figures prepared on a consistent basis for the financial year ended 30 April 2005. The accounting policy
restatement has involved reversing revenues of £76 million, £54 millicn and £44 million (total: £174
million) which were recognised in the years ended 30 April 2005, 2004 and 2003 or earlier, respectively.
Those revenues will now be recognised in future years in accordance with the provisions of the new
accounting policy. In calculating the pricr year adjustment, note 1 cutlines the limitations in the historical
data availabie to the Board.

The Greup's policy on revenue recognition is that revenue is recognised only when persuasive evidence of
the arrangement exists, the price to the customer is fixed or determinable and collectibility is reascnably
assured and there are no material outstanding conditions or contingencies attaching to the receipt of
monies due.

The Group enters into certain arrangements involving the delivery and implementation of a given
software product against predetermined milestones, and the future maintenance and support thereof. In
the case of such arrangements the revenue from the sale of product software licences is not clearly
separable from the attendant installation and the revenue for services is recognised on a percentage
completion basis aver the pericd of the installation with due regard for future anticipated costs. Support
ravenues in this regard are recognised frem implementation cver the remaining period of the
arrangement.

The National Programme contract is a product delivery arrangement with a phased release of functionality
enhancements over the period of the arrangement. The licence revenue is recognised as the elements of
the product are delivered. Implementation and service revenues are recegnised in line with the provision
of those services, and support revenues on a percentage completion basis over the remainder of the
period of the arrangement.

The Group enters into bundled service arrangements whereby it agrees to make certain software
applications available for the duration of the arrangement. As the fair values of the services deliverable
and maintenance and support to be provided under such supply arrangements are not clearly separable
from the software supply, total revenue in reiation to the supply arrangement is recognised on a stage of
completion basis over the period of the arrangement, subject to the limitations in histerical information
available outlined in note 1.

Revenue arising from contract extensions involving the granting of a licence to continue to use installed
software for an extended time period is recognised cn a straight line basis cver the extended pericd.
Deferred income is recognised in respect of inveices issued and cash received in advance of revenue
recognition.

Foreign exchange
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the rates ruling at the dates
of transactions. Monetary assets and liabifities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet
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date are translated at the rates ruling at that date. Transfation differences are taken to the profit and foss 02
account. General
In order to hedge its exposure 10 certain foreign exchange risks, the Group enters into ferward contracts ;nfgrn;n;‘ic%pnnt
and options (see below for details of the Group's accounting policies in respect of such derivative financial na signitica
: accounting
Instruments). -
policies
On consolidation, resuits of overseas subsidiaries are translated using the average exchange rate for the cont...

period, uniess exchange rates fluctuate significantly. The balance sheets of overseas subsidiaries are
translated using the closing year end rate. Exchange differences arising, if any, are taken to eguity. Such
transfation differences are recognised as income or as expenses in the period in which the operation is
disposed of.

Goodwill ang fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liahilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate. The Group has elected to treat goodwill
and fair value adjustments arising on acquisitions before the date of transition to IFRS as sterling-
denominated assets and labilities.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financia! liabilities are recognised on the Group's balance sheet when the Group
becomes a party 1o the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal vaiue as reduced by appropriate
allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired. -The allowance recognised is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
estimatec future cash flows on an undiscounted basis.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities,

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash eguivalents comprise cash on hand and other short-term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible to a known ameunt of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Bank and other borrowings, including discounted receivables financing
Interest-bearing bank loans and financing arrangements entered into in respect of specific customer
contracts are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Finance charges are accounted for on an accrual basis to the profit and loss account using the effective
interest meathod and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument 1o the extent that they are not
settled in the period in which they arise.

Trade payables
Trade payables are not interest bearing and are stated at their nominal value.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group's activities expose it primarity to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange
rates. The Group uses foreign exchange forward contracts and options to hedge these exposures. The
Group does net use derivative financial instruments for speculative purpeses.

The use of financial derivatives is governed by the Group's policies approved by the Board of directors,
which provide written principles on the use of financial derivatives.

Derivative financial instruments are recognised on the Group balance sheet at fair value. The Group has
not applied hedge accounting and changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments are
recognised in the income statement as they arise. The fair value of derivative finandial instruments at
30 April 2005 and 30 April 2006 was not material.
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Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less any applicable discounts. Depreciation is provided at
rates calculated to write down the cost of property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful life
on a straight-line basis. The annual rates of depreciation, by category of fixed asset, are as foliows:

 freehold land and buildings 2%
» fixtures, fittings and equipment 12.5% to 20.0%
¢ computer equipment 333%

Non-current assets held for sale
Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying
amount and fair value less costs 1o sell.

Non-current assets and disposa!l groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount wilt be
recovered through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as
met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset or disposal group Is available for immediate sale
in its present condition. Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to
qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

inventories

Inventories comprise goods held for resale and are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost includes all costs in bringing each product to its present {ocation and condition. Net realisabie value
represents the estimated selling price less ali estimated costs of comptetion and costs to be incurred in
marketing, selling and distribution.

Share-based payments

The Group has applied the requirements of IFRS 2, 'Share-based Payments'. In accordance with the
transitional previsions, IFRS 2 has been applied to all grants of equity instruments after 7 November 2002
that were unvested as of 1 May 2005.

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain employees.

Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at fair value at the date of grant. The fair value
determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line
basis aver the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of shares that will eventually vest. Fair value
is measured by use of a Black-Scholes model or Binomial mode!, as most appropriate {or the terms of the
instrument. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on management's best
estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions, and behavioural considerations. The
cost in relation to the deferred bonus scheme is charged in the year of performance.

Leased assets
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantiatly all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are included in the balance sheet at fair value, or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments, each determined at inception of the lease. These assets are
depreciated in accordance with the Group's normal accounting policy for the dass of asset concerned.
The present value of future rentals is shown as a liability. The interest element of rental obligations is
charged to the profit and loss account over the period of the lease in proportion to the balance of capitat
repayments cutstanding. Finance charges are charged directly against income.,

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease.

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as
reported in the income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxabie or
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deductible in other years and it further excludes iterns that are never taxable or deductible. The Greup's 02

lizbility for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the General
balance sheet date. information
Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying and 5|gn-n‘|cant
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the achOL_Jntmg
computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax policies
lizbilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are cont...
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible

terporary differences can be utilised, Such assets and liabilities are not recognisad if the temporary

difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition {other than in a business combination} of

other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in

subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the

reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the

extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liahility is
settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except when
it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in
equity. '

Retirement benefit costs

For defined benefit retirement benefit schemes, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the
Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuarial valuations being carried out on a tri-annual basis and
updated at each balance sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in full in the peried in
which they occur. They are recognised outside profit or loss and presented in the statement of recognised
income and expense.

Past service cost is recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested, and
otherwise is amortised on a siraight-line basis over the average period until the benefits become vested.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of the
defined benefit abligation as adjusted for unrecognised past service cost, and as reduced by the fair value
of scheme assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to past service cost, plus the present
value of available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the plan.

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due.

Multi-employer defined benefit schemes are accounted for as defined contribution schemes when the
Group is unable 1o identify i1 share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the scheme.

Provisicns

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present cbligation as a result of a past event, and it is
probable that the Group wil! be required to settle that obligation. Provisions are measured at the
directors' best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date, and
are discounted to present value where the effect is material.

Provisions are reviewed on a regular basis and released to profit and loss account where changes in
circumstances indicate that a provision is no longer required.

Critical judgements in applying the Group's accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, which are in this note above, management has
made judgements that those policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the financial statements (apart from those involving estimations, which are dealt with below} are detailed
in note 1.
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Segmental
analysis

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In additicn to the matters described in note 1, the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
discussed below.

tmpairment of goodwill

Betermining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the vaiue in use of the cash-
generating units to which goodwiil has bean allocated. The value in use calculation requires an entity to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate present value. The carrying amount of goodwill at the balance sheet date was
£144.1 million after an impairment charge of £351.4 million was recognised during the year. Details of
the impairment loss calculation are provided in note 11.

Deferred tax

Determining whether a deferred tax asset should be recognised in respect of utilisable tax losses requires
an estimation of the future taxable profits of the legal entities in which the tax losses reside. Details of the
deferred tax assets recognised are shown in note 13.

The principal activity of the Group is the development and supply of software application products and
related services to the healthcare sector. All turnover and profit/(loss) is generated from this activity.

Revenue
An analysis of the Group's revenue is as follows:
2006 2005
£'000 £'000
Supply of software, m_aintehg_-l_nce and sup_port s.e_r_vices - - B - i _ '20_1,695“ - 186,139
Investment revenue 3,099 1,254
Total revenue 204,794 187,393




Geographical operations
United
Kingdom
and Ireland
2006
£000

Total revenue 132,014
Internal revenue {4,771)

Financial Statements
2006 Annual Report and Accounts

Other Rest of
EU World Total Total
2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
£'0C0 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £'000

118,400 58,048 54,107 36,044 28300 226,106 200,807
{2,056) - - (19,640) (12,612) {24,411) (14,668)

External revenue 127,243

116,344 58,048 54,107 16,404 15,688 201,695 186,139

Operating {loss)/profit before

goodwill impairment 2,471 (8,638 5749 11,740 5089 5,353 13,309 8,455
Goodwill impairment  {257,574) - (64,888) - (28,948) - (351,410) -
(Loss)/profit from

operations (255,103) (8,638 (59,139} 11,740 (23,859) 5,353 (338,101) 8,455

Investment revenues

3,009 1,254

Finance costs

(8,748) (7,534

{Lossy/profit before tax
Tax charge

(343,750 2,175
(38,432) 3,719

{Lossyprofit for the year

(382,182) 5,894

Net assets/(liabilities) {104,981)

234,402 115,621 131,416 14,798 38,437 25,438 404,255

Other information

Capital additions 3,253
Depreciation (3.1986)
Amortisation of

intangibles (2,305)

Balance sheet
Segment assets 89,795

2,718 363 462 2,886 880 6,502 4,060

(3,199)  (730) (751)  (842)  (574) (4,768) (4,524)

(2,003} - - - - (2,305)  (2,003)

378,939 187,916 302,900 39,801 58,807 317,512 740,646

Segment liabilites  (194,776) (144,537} (72,295) (171,484) (25,003) (20,370} {292,074) (336,391}

Net assets/liabilities) (104,981}

234,402 115,621 131,416 14,798 38,437 25438 404,255

03
Segmental
analysis
cont...
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Net operating costs
Net operzting costs are analysed as follows:

2006 2005
Note £°000 £'000

Change in stocks of finished goods 491 2,626
Cther external charges . 44,576 48,366
Staff costs 7 106,959 88,688
D'épreciatioh of tangible' fixed assets 4,768 '4',524
Amortisation of development costs 2,305 2,003
Total other operating charges 29,287 31477
Operating costs before goodwilt impairment 188,386 177,684
Goodwill impairment 351,410 -
Total cperating costs 539,796 177,684
{Loss)profit for the year

2006 2005

£'000 £000
(Loss¥profit for the year is stated after charging/{crediting)
staff costs e R R 106,959 88,688
Research and development, net of capitalised costs 22,556 15,931
Current service costs in respect of defined benefit scheme 760 676
Loss on disposal of fixed assets - 350
Foreign exchange gains (220) {173)
Foreign exchange losses 54 145
Depreciation of proparty, plant and equipment
owned 3,580 3,376
held under finance leases 1,_1_88 1,148
Amortisation of development costs 2,305 2,003
Impairment of goodwill 351,410 -
Operating lease rentals o
Premises 4,193 3,085
Vehicles and equipment 2,083 1,850
The following services were pravided by the Group's auditor:

2006 2005

£'000 £:000
Sta.tutory audit fees 825 303
Non-audit fees - further assurance work 125 32

950 335

included in the analysis above are fees of £34,000 (2005: £25,000) in respect of the parent company. All

incividuat pieces of non-audit work above £5,000 must receive prior authorisation from the Audit

Committee.

In the prior year the previous auditor, RSM Robson Rhodes LLP, were paid £303,000 for audit services and

£32,000 for non audit services.
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2006 2005
£'000 £'000
Interest receivable comprises: R _
Bank interest _ 2,439 1,120
Other interest and foreign exchange 660 134
3,099 1,254
2006 2005
£:000 £'000
Finance costs comprise:
Bank loans overdrafts and other loans 7.983 6,779
Amortisation of loan arrangement fees o 233 161
Pension fund finance costs o _ 330 361
Finance leases 196 233
8,748 7,534
Staff costs {(including executive directors) during the year were as follows:
2006 2005
£'000 £'000
Wages and salaries - o 94,953 76,021
Socialsecurity costs 8,384 9.744
Other pension costs 3,622 2,923
106,959 38,688
Defined contribution pension costs totalled £2,862,000 (2005: £2,247,000).
The average monthly number of employees (including executive directors)
employed by the Group during the year was:
2006 2005
Number Number
Devemp_m_ent _____ . . _ . . 1,454 ' 1,019
Sales and marketing _ 148 157
Instaltation and project management 1,289 G35
Administration and services 333 435
3,224 2,546

05
Investment
Tevenues

06
Finance costs

07a
Staff costs

07b
Staff costs
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08a  Analysis of tax charge/{credit) in the year
Tax 2006 2005
£'000 £'000

Current tax on ossyprofit for theyear a3y 11958
Adjustments in respect of prior years ’ (1,782) (3,0209
(6,213) 8,938
Overseas taxation . . . e — o B
Current tax on (lossy/profit for the year - 43) 8,298
Adjustments in respect of prior years (140) (B27)
(183) 7,671
Total current taxation (6,396) 16,609

Deferred taxation

Current year - United Kingdom 44,600 (17,528)
Current year - overseas 2,503 (4,701)
47,103 (22,229)
Prior year - United Kingdom o _ (2,550) o 1,328
Prior year - overseas 275 573
(2,275) 1,801
44,828 (20,328)
Tax charge/{credit) 38,432 (3,719)

08b  The charge {credit) for the year can be reconciled to the (loss)/profit per income statement
Tax  as follows

2006 2005

£'000 £'000
Qosgyprofitbefore tax (343,750) 2175
Loss on ordinary activities: tax thereon at 30% (103,125} 653
Effects of: ) |
Non-taxable income and expenditure 1,574 (1,133)
Goodwill impairment not deductble R 100,593 -
Current year tax losses carried forward not provided 37,293 1,847
Difference in tax rates in overseas companies oo . o (e (883)
Adjustment in respect of prior period deferred tax (2,275} 1,901
Adjustment in respect of prior pericd corporation tax (1,922) (3,647)
Other current year deferred tax movements not provided 7,866 (2,655)
Tax charge/(credit} for the year 38,432 (3,719}

In addition to the amounts charged to the income statement, tax related to certain share options and
adjustments to reserves totalling £942,600 has been credited directly to equity (2005: £1,231,0060 charge).

UK Corporation tax is calculated at 30% (2005:30%) of the estimated assessable profit/loss) for the year.
Taxation for other jurisdictions is calculated at the rate prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.
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2006 2005 09
£'000 f'000  Dividends
Equity dividends paid -
Ordinary shares of £0.10 each:
Final dividend for year ended 30 April 2005 of 1.82p per share (2004: 1.70p) 4,176 3,832
Interim dividend for the year ended 30 April 2006 of 0.80p per N
share 2005:0.750) e 1,854 1,728
6,030 5,560

No final dividend will be declared for the year ended 30 April 2006.

Basic {loss)earnings per share is calculated by dividing the {lossy/profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 10

by the weighted average number of shares in issue. The weighted average number of shares for the (Loss)/earnings
calculation of the diluted Igss per share in the year ended 30 April 2006 is the same as that for the basic loss  per share

per share, because the exercise of share options would have the effect of reducing the ioss per ordinary

share and is therefore not dilutive under the terms of 1AS 33. Details of options outstanding, which are

currently anti-dilutive are included in note 22. The dilutive effect of options in 2005 was an additional

2,614,000 shares.

Weighted 2006 Weighted 2005
average Loss average Earnings
number per share number of  per share

lLoss ofshares amount Earnings shares amount
£'000 ‘000 pence £'000 ‘000 pence
Basic {loss)iearnings per share
{Loss)earnings atiributable
to shareholders (382,182) 231,550 (165.1) 5,894 227,123 2.6

Diluted (loss)y/earnings per share
(Loss)earnings attributable
to sharehoiders {382,182) 231,550 {165.1) 5,394 229,737 2.6
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Goodwill  Other intangibles

£'000 £000
Cost
AL 1T May 2004 494,417 2,003
Additions - internally developed - 2,354
Adiustment in respect of prior year provisional fair values 7,098 -
Additions - acquired 1,320 -
At 1 May 2005 502,835 4,357
Additions 13,899 722
At 30 April 2006 516,734 5,079
Amortisation and impairment
Al 1 May 2004 21,180 -
Amortisatiorn - 2,003
At 1 May 2005 21,180 2,003
Amortisation ana'imparzr'ment ' 35‘1,410‘ 2,305
At 30 April 2006 372,520 4,308
Carrying amount
A0 A 006 Craniaa ooy
At 1 May 2005 481,655 2,354

Goodwil

Acquisition accounting has been adopted in respect of all business combinations. The Group tests goodwill
annually for impairment or moare frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be impaired.

Goodwilll acquired in a business combination is allocated at acquisition to the cash generating units (CGUs)
that are expected to benefit from that business combination. Before recognition of impairment losses, the

carrying amount of goodwill has been allocated as follows:

2006 2005

£'000 £'000

UK and ireland 282,966 282,966
Other EQropean Union 180,667 167,487
Rest of World 31,921 31,202
495,554 481,655

Impairment

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from value in use calculations, derived from the
present value of future cash flows generated by the CGUs. There are a number of assumptions and
estimates involved in calculating the present value of future cash flows, including but not restricted to the

following:

« growth rates applied to EBITDA, used as the basis for the future cash flows,

¢ the long term growth rates for the Group's key markets applied into perpetuity;

-

*

frame considered.

the discount rate applied to the cash flows 1o calculate their present value; and

the estimated recoverable value for any CGUs which the Board expects to divest within the time
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Although the Board are satisfied that the assumptions used are appropriate to the current circumstances
of the Group, changes to these key assumptions or estimates could significantly affect the result of the
impairment calculation. The basis of the assumptions used is as follows:

Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the business. The growth rates are based on management
forecasts for the specific markets.

The Greup prepares pre-tax cash flow forecasts derived from the maost recent financial forecasts approved
by management for the next four years and extrapolates cash flows for future periods based on growth
rates varying from 0%-5%. Management consider that the rates used do not exceed the average long-
term growth rate for the relevant markets. The rate used to discount the forecast pre-tax cash flows
ranges from 13%-20% and represents management's current best estimate of the weighted average cost
of capital in each of the years for which cash forecasts have been discounted.

The carrying amount of goodwill at the balance sheet date was £144.1 million after an impairment loss of
£351.4 million was recognised during the current year.

Other intangibles

Other intangibles represent capitalised development costs. The amortisation period for development costs
is dependent on the expected life of the related product release, which is currently estimated at one year.
Acquisitions

i. Acquisition of Novasoft Sanidad S.A.

On 11 October 2005, iSOFT acquired 100% of the Sanidad healthcare operations of Navasoft. Acquisition
accounting was adopted. The book values and provisional fair values are as follows:

Provisional
Book value Revaluations fair value
£'000 £'000 £'000
Intangible fixed assets 209 {203 6
Tangible fixed assets o o 86 (79) 7
Investments . 13 [ e 13
Debrors e S35 Ees) 4357
Stock 4 {4y -
Overdraft _ {1,867} - {1,867)
Corporation tax | o - A - (56)
Trade and other creditors (3,163) (142) (3,305}
Debt (5) - {5)
Netlibiliies scqured 83 ®3) @)
Coodmil e e e 306
Consideration 12,656
Ciired by T e
470,199 shares issued at fair value 2,039
Acquisition costs 436
Cach L . L | L 6,123
ih'tercompany fiabilities acquired o - 1,529
Fair value of deferred consideration 2,529

12,656

1
Intangible
fixed assets
cont...
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No adjustments were required to align the accounting policies of the acquitted entity with those of the
Group.

Fair value adjustments comprise:
* Write off of establishment expenses and intangible assets of £203,000.
* Write off of fixed assets with a net book value of £79,000.

+ Additional provision for bad and doubtful debts of £501,000, together with write off of deferred
expenses of £39,000 and irrecoverable Novasoft balances of £25,000.

* Write off of obsolete stock of £4,000.

¢ Additional provision for goods and services not invoiced of £74,000 together with additional staff
costs of £68,000.

From 11 October 2005 to 30 Aprif 2606, the acguired business contributed £4,419,600 to turnover,
£21,000 to loss from operations and £158,000 to loss before taxation. The post acquisition cash outflow
was £1,606,000.

In the 12 months ended 30 April 2006 revenue and loss before tax for the acquired entity totalled
£8,458,000 and £501,000 respectively.

ii Other acquisitions

Further investment in iSOFT R&D Private Limited

On 16 August 2005, the Group increased its 5take in ISOFT R&D Private Limited ("iSOFT R&D"} frem 88% to
94% through the issue of 200,000 shares at a fair value of £847,500.

Changes in interests in a controlled entity that do not resuit in a change of control do not fall within the
definition ¢f & business combination under IFRS 3 and accounting for such transactions is not yet covered by
any authoritative IASB guidance. Goodwill arising on this transaction has therefore heen calculated as the
difference hetween the consideration paid and the bock value of the assets acquired as follows:

£'000
Consideration - satisfied in shares o o e
Additional net assets acquired {418}
Geodwill on increase in stake 430

The minority interest shareholders, who are also employees of the Group, hold a put option in respect of
their shareholding, whereby the Group may be required to purchase the remaining 6% minority interest at
any time between 31 July 2006 and 31 July 2009 for consideration of shares in iSOFT Group plc.

iii. GAP Management AG additional goodwill

As part of the Torex acquisition in December 2003, iSOFT accrued £318,000 deferred consideration in
respect of the acquisition of GAP Management AG. All deferred consideration in respect of this transaction
was settled by the issue of 294,559 shares in the year at a fair value of £1,032,000. Additional goodwill of
£114,000 arose as a result of the transaction.

iv. HAS PTY intellectual property

As part of the Tarex acquisition in December 2003, iSOFT acquired rights to market certain products with a
royalty payable 10 a third-party. An additional payment of £289,000 was made to buy cut the third-party
arrangement.

The profits and cash flows arising from the other acquisitions are not material to the Group.
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Freehold fand Fixtures fittings 12
and buildings and equipment Tota!  Property,
£000 £:000 foo0  Plantand
equipment
Cow T e
At 1 May 2004 ' 4443 37,054 41,497
Additi_ons _ _ _ _ _ _ N _ 237 3,829 _ 4_,_060
Disposals . - {24) (3,078) (3,102}
Exchange adjustments - n )
At 1 May 2005 4,650 37.804 42,454
Acquisition of subsidiaries e T L7
Additions 7 - 6,502 6,502
Disposals o ) - {496) (496}
Exchange adjustments - 111 111
At 30 April 2006 4,650 43,928 48,578
N Tepratiation T e e e o
At 1 May 2004 981 26,984 27,965
Disposals {24 (2,494) {2,518)
Charge for theyear 262 4262 4524
Fair value adjustments ' ' - 119 119
Exchange adjustments o o - (1) {1}
At 1 May 2005 - _ N 1,219 28,870 30,089
Disposals - (459) {459}
Charas for the yeay 77 s ey Qe h76s
Exchange adjustrments - 123 123
At 30 April 2006 1,470 33,051 34,521
Carrying amount SRR
At 30 April 2006 ' ' 3,180 10,877 14,057
At 1 May 2005 3,431 8,934 12,365

Additions to plant and equipment during the year include £785,000 financed by new finance leases.

At the balance sheet date, the net book value of property, plant and equipment inciuded £1,376,000 {2005:
£2,068,000) in respect of assets held under finance leases. Depreciation charged in the period on those
assets amounted to £1,188,000 (2005: £1,148,000).

Subsidiaries
A list of the significant investments in subsidiaries, including the name, country of incorporation and
proportionate ownership interest is given in note 4 of the parent Company's individual financial statements.
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Deferred tax comprises:

2006 2005

£000 £000
Assets
Utilisable iosses 122 48,399
Short-term timing differences 6,291 5,399
Pension accrual 3.215 2,750
Unexercised share options 273 2,420
Hinday pay 126 144
Deferred tax asset 10,027 59,112
T B
Accelerated de'prec'iation allowances (574) 9zn
Cevelopment costs (231) (708)
R'c')ﬂ'e'd' 60&{:}55}"1; S : 2,299

(805) (3,926)
Net deferred tax asset 9,222 55,186
The movement in deferred tax comprises

£'000

At 1 May 2004 40,051
Income statement credit 22,229
Amount credited to pre acquisition tax (4,039)
Amount charged to equity (1,154)
Income statement charge regarding prior year (1,901)
Balance at 1 May 2005 55,186
Amount charged to income statermnent (47,103)
Amount charged 1o equity (1,208}
Exchange movements 72z
Income statement credit regarding prior year 2,275
Balance at 30 April 2006 9,222
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The movement is split as follows:
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Accelerated Short term Rolled
capital timing Share Development Holiday  over
allowances differences Losses Pension options costs pay gains Total
£000 £000 £000  £000  £000 £000  £000 £000 £000
Asat1May2004 435 5600 31,218 2,622 2,924 (601) 152 (2,299) 40,051
Income staternent
movement {(1,201) 3,807 17,057 128 651 (105) {8) - 20,329
Torex fair value
adjustment  (136) 3997y 136 - - - - 3997
Exchange moverments {19) {11} (12) - - - - - {42)
Equity movement - - - - (1,159) - - - {1,155}
Asat 30 Aprl 2005 (921; 5339 48393 2750 2,420 (706) 144 (2,299) 55,186
Income statement
movement 314 854 {48,277) 176 {651) 475 {18) 2,299 (44,828}
Exchange movernents 33 39 - - - - - - 72
Equity movement - - - 288 (1,496) - - - {1,208}
As at 30 April 2006 (574) 6,292 122 3,214 273 {231} 126 - 9222

At the balance sheet date, the Group has potential net deferred 1ax assets, principally arising from losses
and short term timing differences totaling £69,069,000 (2005: £70,651,000) for offset against future
profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of £9,222,000 (2005: £55,186,000) of such
losses and timing differences. No deferred tax has been recognised in respect of the remaining

£59,847,000 losses as their utilisation cannot be considered more lkely than not.

2006 2005

£'000 £'000

Trade debtors 34,405 43,667
Corporation tax recoverable N R 5,636 -
Other gebtors o _ 1,369 4,478
Prepayments and accrued income N 24,840 21,664
66,250 69,209

The average cradit period taken in relation to contract services is 75 days (2005: 67 days). No interest is

chargad on the receivabies. Allowance has been made for estimated irrecoverable amoun
reference to default experience.

ts determined by

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates their fair value.

Credit risk

The Group's principal financial assets are bank balances and cash, trade and other receivables.

The Greup's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade receivables. The amounts prese

nted in the

balance sheet are net of allowances for doubtful receivables. An allowance for impairment is made where
there is an identified loss event which, based on previous experience, is evidence of a reduction in the

recoverability of the cash flows.

Credit risk is focused on a small number of high value contracts, which are long-term in nature. Outside

these contracts the potential exposure is spread over a large number of customers,

13
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Notes to the financial statements

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Group and short-term bank deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less. The carrying amount of these assets approximates their
fair value.

2006 2005

£000 £'000
Property held for resale o . 4000 4,000
Lizbilities associated with assets held for sale ' (3,000) (3,000}

The property heid for resale relates to a property acquired on the merger with Jorex, which is in the process
of disposal.

2006 2005
£'000 £'000

Trade creditors ' 13,626 5,189
Other taxation and scciaf security o o Mass o 23826
Accraals and other creditors - 27178 0 22,964
Deferred income 96,814 126,694
Deterred consideration 2,922 1,541
151,698 180,214

Trade craditors and accruals principally comprise amounts outstanding far trade purchases and ongeing
costs. The average credit period taken for trade purchases is 31 days (2005: 23 days).

Deferred incorne represents invoices issued and cash received in advance of revenue recognition.

Deferred consideration, of which £2,922,000 (2005: £1,541,000) is payable within one year and £nil {2005:
£74,000) is payzble after one year, comprises:

« £79,000 (2005: £324,000) in respect of the Torex acquisition of HAS Solutions Pty Limited {“HAS").
» £nil (2005: £918,000) in respect of the Torex acguisition of GAP Management AG on 29 May 2002.

« £314,000 {2005: £373,000) refating to the acquisition of i-Health on 9 January 2004. The deferred
consideration s payable based on proportion of revenue in each of the five years ending
31 December 2008. The amount included in the financial staterments represents the Director’s estimate
of the amounts that wifl become payabie under the terms of the sale and purchase agreement. The
maximum patential deferred consideration payable under the terms of the sale and purchase agreement
is approximately £8,700,000.

* £2,529,000 in respect of the maximum amount still potentially payable for the acquisition of
Novasoft Sanidad on 11 Octeber 2005.
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2006 2005 18
£000 £'000  Bank and
other loans
Duewithin one year: .
OCther loans 18,639 15,822
Bank loans 28,000 12,680
Unsecured loan notes 1,126 1,926
Finance leases 947 1,050
48,712 30,678
Due after oneyear. o
Bank loans 26,747 38,226
Other loans 43,402 40,872
Unsecured loan notes - 1,126
Finance leases 529 834
70,678 81,058
Total 119,390 111,736

All of the Group bank loans and overdraft are secured by a floating charge over the assets of the Group and
are subject to interest at between 0.65% and 1.125% over the bank's base rate dependent on the level of

the Group's net debt position.

Fixed Floating Non- Fixed Floating Non- 19
interest interest interest 2006 Interest interest interest 2005 Financial
rate rate bearing  Total Rate rate  bearing Total la‘ssbe"? and
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000  £000 £000 foog aelities
loans | 62,041 54747 1,126 117,914 56694 50,906 2,252 109,852
Finance leases 1,476 - - 1,476 1,884 - - 1,884
Deferred consideration - - 2,922 2,922 - - 1,615 1,615
Provisions - - 3,142 3,142 - - 4,336 4,336
At 30 April 63,517 54,747 7,190 125,454 58,578 50,906 8,203 117,687

The Group's financial assets and liabilities comprise bank borrowings, cash and various items, such as trade
dabtors, trade creditors etc. that arise directly from its operations. Short-term debtors and creditcrs have
baen excluded from ali of the foliowing disclosures except in relation to currency risk. The main risks arising
from, and impacted by, the financial assets and liabilities of the Group are interest rate risk, foreign currency
risk and liquidity risk. The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing these risks.
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Net debt comprises:

2006 2005

£'000 £'000

bfawings under fe\xoi{/ing credit facility 15,747 B
Term loans 39,000 50,906
Finance lease liabilities 1,476 1,884
Contract finance arrangements o o 62,041 56,694
Loan notes 1,126 2,252
119,390 111,736

Cash (77,543) {110,140)
Net debt 41,847 1,596

1 Letters of credit and guarantees of £88.2m {2005: £73.1m) were provided utilising the revolving credit facility.

The Group is exposed to fair value risk in respect of its fixed rate financial assets and liabilities and cash flow
interest rate risk in respect of its floating rate liabilities.

The weighted average interast rate on fixed rate berrowings was 4.13% (2005: 4.17.%) and the weighted
average period to maturity was 2.31 years (2005: 2.10 years). The weighied average period to maturity on
rion-interest bearing financial liabilities was 4.8 years (2005: 5.3 years}. The effective interest rate for
financial liabilities ranges from 4% 10 10%.

Financial assets
The only financial assets held by the Group are cash at bank. Amounts held at the year end were:

2006 2005
£'000 £'000
sterling 62,155 45,215
Euro o ' o 10,926 58,709
Australian Dollar 2,056 3,441
New Zealand Dollar _ _ 71 432
Singapare Dollar 154 535
Swiss Franc 575 466
Indian Rupee 877 834
Hong Kong Dollar 359 218
Canadian Dollar o 16 129
US Dollar R ' 110 ' 12
South African Rand 177 114
Norwegian Kroner o 67 35
77,543 110,140

All cash is at floating rates based on relevant naticnal LIBID equivalents or government bongd rates.

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to translation and transaction foreign exchange risk. The Group regularly reviews its
exposure to translation risk and where appropriate will match this risk with an appropriate level of
borrowings in the same currency. From time to time the Group takes out forward foreign exchange
contracts and opticns to hedge foreign currency transaction exposures. At 30 April 2005 and 2006 the
fair value of currency hedging arrangements was not material.
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There are net foreign currency monetary assets/{liabilities) heid by subsidiaries with a functional currency 19

of sterling of £1,109,000 (2005: £32,118,000) denominated in euros, £1,000 (2005 £4,525,000) Financial

denominated in Australian dollars, and £177,000 (2005: £777,000) denominated in South African Rand. assets and

Receipts and payments are made in these respective currencies in the normal course of business. fiabilities
L cont...

Liquidity risk

it is the Group's policy to maintain a mix of short, medium and fong term borrowings with its bankers.
Flexibility is achieved by the use of a revolving credit facility and a fixed term loan faciiity. Since the year
end the Group agreed revised terms for its facilities with its bankers, details of which are set out below.

At the balance sheet date the Group had a term loan of £39,000,000 and a multi-currency revolving
credit facility of £105,000,000. The term loan is repayable in guarterly payments which commenced in
August 2004 with the final payment scheduled for September 2008. The revolving credit facility was also
subject to review in September 2008, As at 30 Aprif 2006, £789,000 of the revolving credit facility was
unused by the Group.

Revision of bank facilities
In August 2008, the Group secured the revision of £141 miliion of facilities. The facilities following the
revision include:

+ {105 million revolving credit facility;
* £36 million term loan facility with no further amortisation; and
¢ £25 million facility, available following disposal of non-core assets

The maturity date of the above facilities has been revised to 14 Novembar 2007. The financial terms
have also been amended to better reflect the Group's revised business expectations and revenue
recognition policies.

Warrants over 3.7% of the issued Share Capital of the business are to be granted to the lender with an
exercise price of 1G pence per share as a condition of the new facilities. The warrants will be exercisable
between issue and 36 months from the date of the revision of the facilities, however any shares acquired
on exercise cannot be sold until six months following the date of the revision of the facilities. An exit fee
of £15 million is payable at the end of the facility, on refinancing or on change of control of the
Company, and if the warrants are not issued prior to 31 October 2006. If the warrants are issued prior to
31 October 2006 then no exit fee is payable. The issue of these warrants will require shareholder
approval, which wili be scught at the AGM. Additionally, further fees are payable on facilities outstanding
post 31 December 2006. These additional fees are payable at the end of the fadlity term or, if earlier, at
the date of any refinancing of the faciiities. These fees, calcuiated on the total facility available, are 5.0%
per annum for the three maonths to 31 March 2007, 7.5% per annum for the three months to

30 June 2007, and 10.0% per annum thereafter.

The costs of refinancing are not included in the financial statements for the year ended 30 Aprit 2006 and
are estimated to include an amendment fee of £1.2 million, the write off of £0.6 million in unamortised
fees and professional fees of approximately £1.0 million. The cost of interest will increase in accordance
with the revised margins. Margins on debt will now range between 200 and 450 basis points depending
on the usage of different elements of the facilities. The financial covenants applicable to the revised
facilities relate to key performance indicators (KPIs} such as rolling EBITDA and the reduction in letters of
credit. To assist in the monitoring of the KPis, further financial and non-financiat information are o be
provided tc the lenders on a periodic basis. In addition the facilities may be terminated in the event of
certain actual or threatened litigation, terminaticn of material contracts or the exercise of step in rights.
As part of the revision to the facilities a waiver of any prior breaches of covenants has been provided.

The directors have undertaken to pursue a refinancing of the Group and, if satisfactory progress is not
made in the remainder of the current financial year, will explore the other strategic options open to the
Group including the disposal of some or all of the Group's business.

The new terms will provide the Group with a period of stability during which the corperate finance
strategy of the Group can be considered and executed as required by the banking agreements.
Additionaily the revised banking agreements include mandatory prepayments relating to planned
disposals, additional covenants relating to material contracts, additional reporting requirements and
waivers of any previous breaches of financial covenants.
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Maturity of financial liabilities
The maiurity profile of the Group's financiai liabilities, other than short term trade creditors and accruals was

as Tollows:
Bank Bank
and and
other Loan Finance ) 2006  other Loan Finance 2005
loans notes leases Other Total Ipans notes leases Other Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 {000 £000 £'C00 £000 £000
Due within one year,
orondemand 46,639 1,126 947 3,865 52,577 28502 1,126 1,050 2,907 33,579
Due after one year
but not more than
twoyears 26996 - 304 487 27,787 25525 126 775 729 28,155
Due after two years
but not more than
five years 38,200 - 225 885 139,310 51,677 - 59 1,153 52,889
Due in more than
five years 4,953 - - 827 5,780 1,895 - - 1,168 3,063
At 30 April 116,788 1,126 1,476 6,064 125,454 107,599 2,252 1,884 5,951 117,686

Other financial liabilities represent deferred consideration payable of £2,922,000 (2005: £1,615,000), the
Group's restructuring provision of £115,000 (2005: £407,000) and the Group's property provisions of
£3,027,000 (2005: £3,929,000}.

Obligations under finance leases

Minimum lease payments

Present value of
lease payments

2006 2005 2006 2005
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Amounts payable under finance leases:
within one year 1,030 1,704 947 1,05G
I the second ta fifth years inclusive 554 868 529 834
_ 1,584 2,072 1,476 1,884
Less: future finance charges {108} {188) - -
Present value of lease obligations 1,476 1,884 1,476 1,884
Less: Amournt due within 12 months (947) {1,050)
Amouni due for settlement after 12 months 529 834

The Group has leased certain of its fixtures and equipment under finance leases. The average lease term is 3
years. For the year ended 30 April 2006, the average effective borrowing rate was 9.56% (2005: 9.36%).
Interest rates are fixed at the contract date. All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements
have been entered into for contingent rental payments.

All lease obligations are dencminated in sterling.

The fair value of the Group's lease obligations approximates their carrying amount. There s no difference
between the book value and fair value of the aforementioned financial instruments.
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Restructuring Property Total

£'000 £'000 £'000

At1May2004 7,280 3,207 10,487
Fair value adjustment - - 1,271 1,271
Utilised (5,589) (549) (6,138}
Credited to profit and loss account (1,284} - {1,284)
A3 '/"ip'r'ii Soos aoy” 5,929 . '4,'3”3'6'
Utilised {108) (725} (833}
Credited to profit and loss account (184} 077 (361)
At 30 April 2006 115 3,027 3,142
2006 2005

£'000 £'000

included in current liabilities 943 1,400
Inciuded in non-current liabilities 2,199 2,936
3,142 4,336

The restructuring provision represents the remaining cost of the restructuring of the Group following the

merger with Torex on 23 December 2003. The provision held in respect of properties represents the
estimated cost of exiting a number of vacant properties held by the Group of £2,102,000 (2005;

£2,806,000) and the provision for leasehold dilapidations on a number of the Group's leasehold properties

of £925,000 {2005: £1,123,000).

The anticipated timing of outflows in respect of provisions is as follows:

Within 1 year

Within 1-2 years

Within 2-5 years

After more than 5 years

£000

943
487
885
827

3,142
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Assumptions and scheme deficit

The Group has a mixture of defined benefit and defined contribution schemes, the former having been
acquired as part of the merger with Torex. The assets of the Torex Medical Systems (TMS) defined benefit
schere are held in a separate trustee administered fund. Full actuarial valuations of the scheme are
undertaken on a tri-annual basis. The last completed full actuarial valuation was at 1 January 2005. The
most recemnt actuarial valuation of the scheme for IAS 19 disclosures was at 30 April 2006. The 1AS 19
valuation of the TMS scheme used the projected unit method and was carried out by KPMG,
professionally qualified actuaries, using the following assumptions:

2006 2005

% %

Rate of increase in pensionable salaries _ 4.0 4.3
Rate of increase in pensions in payment and deferment 29 2.8
Discount rate 5.25 5.4
Inflation assumption o 2.9 2.8
Uplift on liabilities for mortality assumptions 50 5.0,

The fair value of the assets of the scheme and the weighted average expected return were:

Long term rate of

Leng term rate of

return expected Value at return expected Value at

at30April - 30April at30Api  30Aprl

2006 2006 2005 2005

% £000 % £'00D

Equities 7.5 2723 7S 9,626
o e e e S 179
Insurance policy 5.0 1,319 5.0 1,256
Other 3.75 833 3.75 751
Total market value of assets 16,247 12,812

Present value of scherne fiabilities  (26,959) (21,979)

Deficit in the scheme {10,712} {3,167}

The long-term rate of return expected on the various classes of scheme asset is set out above. For bonds and
cash balance the market yields at the balance sheet date are known and the overall expected rate for bonds
will therefore reflect the actual portfolic of bonds held by the scheme.

For equities the future yield is subjective. It is usually expected that the long term return on equities will be
higher than the return from bonds as a result of the equity-risk premium. The rates have remained
unchanged year on year as the yield on Government bonds has been relatively unchanged.
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Total expense recognised in profit and foss account 21b
2006 2005  Defined
£'000 goop  benefit

pension
) schemes

Current service cost _ _ 760 676

Interest on obligations 1,196 1,174

Expected return on assets (866) (813)

Total operating charge 1,090 1,037

A charge for the year of £760,000 (2005: £676,000) has been included in wages and salaries costs and
£330,000 {2005: £361,000) has been included in finance costs. Actuarial gains and losses have been
included in the statement of recognised incorne and expense.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation 21c
2006 2005  Defined
£000 goop  benefit
pension
‘ ' . o schemes
Opening defined benefit obligaton - 21,999 20,537
sevice cost 180 678
Interest cost 1,196 1,174
Actuarial losses 3,594 71
Employee element of service cost 161 182
Benefits paid (731) (661}
Closing defined bengfit obligation 26,959 21,979
Movement in fair value of scheme assets during the year 21d
2006 2005  Defined
£'000 g0 benefit
pension
) ) schemes
Opening fair value of assets o 12,812 11,796
Expected return . B .. 866 813
Actuarial gains 2,637 203
Contributions by employer 502 479
Employee contributions 161 182
Less benefits paid (731) (661)
Closing fair value of assets 16,247 12,812
History of experience gains and losses: 21e
2006 2005  Defined
benefit
Difference between the actual and expected return on scheme assets: Ecehlsrf;s
Amount (£'000) 2,637 203
Percentage of scheme assets 16% 2%

Amount (£'000) - (1,665) 645
Percentage of the prasent value of the scheme liabilities -6% 3%

The directors anticipate that contributions to the scheme in the year to 30 April 2007 will be approximately
£1,300,000.
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Overseas arrangements

As a result of the merger with Torex, the Group also acquired pension obligations in the Netherlands.
iSOFT Netherlands BV participates in an industry-wide defined benefit pension plan, known as the PGGM.
The PGGM provides pension benefits related to final pay at retirement for approximately 1.8 million
people, who are current or former employees in the healthcare and social work sector in the Netherlands.
The PGGM is a multi-employer plan under which ISOFT Netherlands BV is unable to identify its share of
the underlying assets and liabilities, and the Group has therefore adopted defined contribution accouning
as permitted by IAS 19. The premiums paid by the employer for the year were €1,311,000 (approximately
£895,000). The employer's contributions are expected to increase by up to 15% in the foreseeable future
1o restore the funding leve! of the PGGM in respect of past service benefits to its target level. Non-current
liabilities in the amount of £3,327,60G (2005: £3,327,000) have heen recognised in raspact of this
scheme within other payables.

2006 2005
£ f

A'l.J“thdt‘_'l_SéC_i . | ........ o
35,000,000 (2005: 350,000,000) ordinary shares of £0.10 each 35,000,000 35,000,000
2006 2005
£ £
Allotted, called up and tully paia o
232,485,722 (2005: 227,783,124} ordinary shares of £0.10 each 23,248,572 22,778,312

Shares issued during the period
On 16 August 2005, the Company allotted 200,000 shares at a fair value of £847,500 in consideration
for an additional 6% stake it (SQEFT R&D Private Lirnited {see note 11).

On 12 Qctober 2005, the Company issued 470,199 shares at a fair value of £2,039,000 in respect of the
acquisition of Novaseft Sanidad S.A.

On 21 October 2005, the Company issued 294,559 shares at a fair value of £1,031,781 in respect of the
settlemeant of GAP deferred consideration.

3,737,840 shares have been issued during the year to satisfy the Company's requirements under the
Group's share option and defarred share bonus schemes. Cash consideration received was £7,030,000
and the weighted average share price on the date of exercise was £4.09.

Share options

Tre following options are autstanding under the Company's unapproved and approved share option
schemes. Exercise of these options is subject to employees meeting individual performance criteria and
also to the performance of the Group measured over three years from the date of grant. Options include
directors’ share options. Executive options are granted at market value at the date of grant.

Period Period

Date of grant  Number Subscription price End of personal  exercisable exercisable
per share (pence} performance period from to

11 Jul 0D 120,000% 110.0 10 Jul 01 17 Jul 03 10 10 10
13 Apr 01 50,000% 189.0 12 Apr02  13Apr04 12 Apr 13
1100l 2100000 2175 100002 11004 100c 13
30 Sep 02 500,000 1513 29Sep03 30 Sep 05 29 Sep 12
25 Mar 04 1,697,958 338.0 24 Mar Q5 25 Mar 07 24 Mar 14
09 Feb 05 4,156,000 371.7  08Feb06  09Feb08 08 Feb 15
3005 250000 4238 29un06  30)n08  29)un1s
28 Jul 05 1,009,500 418.0 27 1ul 06 28 Jul 08 27 Jui 15
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The following Torex share options were rolled over into options over iSOFT Group shares at the time of the 22

merger and are still outstanding. Share capital
cont...

Period Period
Date of grant  Number Subscription price End of personal exercisable exercisable
per share (pence) performance period from to
09Feb00 37461 29567 23Dec03  09Feb03 08 Feb 10
15 Mar 01 106,145 37446 - 23 Bec 03 15 Mar 04 14 Mar 171
27 Feb 02 111,453 418.27 23 Dec 03 27 Feb 05 26 Feb 12

In addition to the options above, 1,037,578 options were putstanding in respect of the Company's savings

related share option scheme, 98,398 have an exercise price of 239.0 pence (first exercisabie in 20086),

626,623 have an exercise price of 266.0 pence (first exercisable in 2007), and 312,557 have an exercise price

of 348.5 pence (first exercisable in 2008). These optiens are granted at a 20% discount 1o market value at

the date of grant. 01

Furthermore, awards of 765,039 shares were made under the Performance Share plan (PSF} 2005 on 28 July
2005. As at 30 April 2006, an equivalent number of shares were held in trust o satisfy the awards under
this plan.

Further details of share options in respect of directors are included in the Remuneration Report on
pages 45 1o 55.

* The Company has taken advantage of the exemption available under IFRS not to apply the requirements of
IFRS 2 to these share options,




102

23a

Reserves and
recognition
of change in
equity for
the year
ended 30
April 2006

23b
Reserves and
recognition
of change in
equity for
the year
ended 30
Aprit 2008

Notes to the financial statements

The movement on Group reserves COMprises:

Merger
Share premium  and other Own Retained
account reserves shares earnings
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 May 2004 36,672 366,057 - (29,051)
Pofitfor theyear - - - 58%
Dividends _ - - - {5,560)
Premium on shares issued net of issue costs 6,410 - - -
Share based payment charge for the period - 1.043 - -
Share based payment redlassification S 851 ... T :
Minority interest movement. . g o - (213)
Eligible transfer of impairment charge to merger reserve - (6,619) - 6,619
Other recognised gains and losses - - - {1,101)
At 30 April 2005 43,082 361,332 - (23,412)
o fé}"ihe'y'éér B . . - - ; i - 353182
Dividends - - - (6,030)
Eligible transfer of impairment charge to merger reserve - {233,175) - 233,175
Prer_r_)_ium_gp shares issued net of ssue costs 10,461 - - -
o oo cﬁé'r"ge'fd'r'the"béri'o'd'” T e R e )
Shares acquired in the period - - (3,758 -
Minerity interest movement - - - {1329)
Other recognised gains and losses o~ - (360)
At 30 April 2006 53,543 130,742 (3,758) {178,94%)

Merger and other raserves include merger reserves of £124,072,000 (2005: £357,247,000)

Details of the restatement of reserves are detailed in note 31.

During the year the Group acquired 884,655 shares at a cost of £3,758,000. These shares were acquired
through the Group Employee benefit trust, to satisfy grants made in the current year under the Performance

Share Plan (PSP) 2005 and under the Directers' deferred share plan.

Consolidated reconciliation of changes in equity for the vear ended 30 April 2006

2006 2005

£'000 £'000
Tpfé! re.c.c.\gmse'd'jncoﬁ’le and expense for the ;fear' """ (382,542) 4,793
Opening equity 404,255 396,481
Dividends paid R o (8:030) (5,560)
Issue of ardinary shares, net of costs 10,929 6,647
Share option reserve movement 2,584 1,894
Invastment in own shares _ _ _ _ (3.758) -
Closing equity 25,438 404,255
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2006 2005

£'000 £'000C
(Lossyprofit fram cperations o (33&_},'__'1__'9'1') 8,455
Amartisation and impairment of intangible assets 353,715 2,003
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 4,768 4,524
Share-based payment charge 2,585 1,043
Difference between pension charge and _ggs_h contrib_u__t_i_o'ns _____ o ' 258 197
Decrease in provisions {833) (511}
Less on disposal of fixed assets - 350
Operating cash flows before movements in working capita 22,392 16,061
Decrease in inventories o 492 2,626
Decrease in receivables 12,547 40,328
(Decreaselincrease in ';'Jéy'a'bles (33,485) 33,364
Cash generated from cperations 1,946 92,379

At 30 April 2006, the Group had cutstanding commitments for future lease payments under non cancellgble

operating leases expiring as follows:

Vehicles, plant o

e 2005
Vehicles, plant

Property and equipment Froperty  and equipment

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

within one year 4,375 L1761 3683 854
Within two to five years _ 11,424 511 10,676 1,132
After five years 10,921 - 12,598 -
26,720 2,272 26,957 1,986

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group under property and equipment leases.

These leases are negetiated for terms of up to 25 years on property with break dauses typically every 5 years

with rentals fixed for similar periods.

24
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Equity-settled share option and deferred share schemes

The Company has a number of share option and SAYE schermes for all employees of the Group, together
with a performance share scheme for certain senior employees and a deferred share bonus scheme for
Directors. Details of the operation of these schemes are inciuded in note 22 and the remuneration report.
Details of the executive and SAYE options outstanding during the year are as follows.

, 2006 2005
2006 Weighted 2005 Weighted

Number of average  Number of average

share exercise share exercise

options price (£} options price (£)

Outstanding at beginning of period 11,747,388 2.83 9,493,277 244
Granted during the period  1,652256 404 5055055 357
Forfeited during the peried (415,338) (3.10)  {694,281) (2.95)
Exercised in the period  (3,698,211) ~ (1.82) _(2,106,663) @278
Exercisable at the end of the period 9,286,095 3.43 11,747,388 2.83

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised during the period was
£4.09. The options outstanding at 30 Aprii 2006 had weighted average remaining contractual fife of 8.5
years. Details of options and shares granted in the year ended 30 April 2006 and 30 April 2005 are included
in note 22. The aggregate of the estimated fair values of the options granted was £1,870,070

(2005: £7,406,000.

The inputs into the Black-Scholes model for the above options are as follows:

2006 2005

f f

Weig"}ﬁéd avé'r'édénéhé'ré",l;r'i&"é R RPN R st
\Neig_hted' .é\','erage eiérci_se pri'ce 3.54 3.32
Expected volatility 0.52 0.51
Expected [fe e 200 2.90
Risk-free rate 4.60 4.47
Dividends yiald 0.60 0.57
Fairvalue _ _ o _ 1.36 1.36

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical volatility of the Group's share price over the
previcus 7 years. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on management’s best
estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions, and behavicural considerations.




Financial Statements

2006 Annual Report and Accounts

Notes to the financial statements

The Group has also granted deferred bonus shares to directors. The movement on these entitlements was as 26
follows: Share-based

Number of shares Weighted average ~ Payments
grant price (f) cont...
At 1 May 2004 585,677 3.22
Grantedintheyear .. 242,252 . 3.51
Lapsed in the year (9.173) _{4.08)
At 30 April 2005 818,756 3.30
Granted in the year 119,616 4.27
Exercised in the year {39,628) (4.08)
At 30 April 2006 898,744 3.39
Due to the nature of the scheame the fair value equates to the grant price.
The Group granted 765,03% shares under the Performance Share Plan (PSP 2005 on 28 July 2005. These
shares were valued using a Binominal Model and have an estimated fair value of £2.67 per share.
The Group recagnised total expenses of £2,585,000 and £1,043,000 related to equity-settled share-based
payment transactions in the years to 30 April 2006 and 3C Aprit 2005 respectively.
Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated 27

on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note.

Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of the directors, who are the key management personnei of the Group, is set out
below in aggregate for each of the categories specified in 1AS 24 'Related Party Disclosures'. Further
information about the remuneration of individual directors is provided in the audited part of the Directors'

Remuneration Report on pages 45 to 55.

30 April 2006 30 April 2005

£'000 £'000

Short-term employee benefits 2,402 3,847
Post-employment benefits 1 -
ot RS o 205
Share-based payment 1,097 a46
3,300 5,288

At the year end capital commitments tetalled £588,000 (2005: £1,332,000),

Related party
transactions

28
Capital
commitments

105
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Notes to the financial statements

Through the subsidiary company iSOFT plc ("The Company”}, the Group entered into two principal
contracts {“the Contracts”) to deliver software and services as part of the National Programme for IT
{NPAIT). On 2 April 2004, the Company signed a contract with Accenture {UK) Limited (" Accenture”}, a
Local Service Provider (LSP), to deliver software and services to the North-East and East Midlands clusters
{the "Accenture Agreement”), On 28 April 2004, the Company sigred a contract with CSC Computer
Sciences Limited {("CSC”), an LSP. 1o deliver software and services 1o the North-West and West Midlands
cluster {the "CSC Agreement”).

Details of the commercial situation surrounding these agreements are given in the Finance Review on
pages 18 and 19.

A number of difficulties experienced on the programme are outside the Company's control, but some
have resilted in formal correspendence being exchanged between the Company and both Accenture and
CSC, alleging material contractual breach by the Company. The Company has denied all of the disputed
allegations of breach. To date, none of this carrespondence has resulted in notice to terminate the
Contracts being given, or any formal claims being made. The Company has registered claims for
additional work done outside the scope of the basic contracts.

The Company has taken legal advice from Ashurst on these matters. However, due to the complexity and
nature of the contracts there are differences in the interpretation of functional requirements and their
delivery and, in the absence of any formal diaim, it is not possible to establish the likelihood nor the
guantum of any potential liability. Having reviewed the legal advice the Board has taken the view that, in
view of the complexity of the potential claims and counter claims, a commercial settlement is the most
likely outcome. Given this position and the existence of receivables due for contractual services
performed, no specific provision has been made in relation to this matter.

Were any claims to be brought against the Company, the Board weuld continue to dispute the liabilities
and weuld defend the Company's position vigorously. Whilst no claims have been made, claims are
contractually limited to (1} in respect of Accenture, £5 million per annum for liquidated damages by way
of delay deductions and otherwise to £15 million per annum in aggregate: and (2) in respect of C5C, {4
million per annum for liquidated damages by way of delay deductions and otherwise to £18 million per
annum in aggregate, with an overall cap of £50 million.

On 11 August 2006, iISCFT signed a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with CSC confirming the
schedule under which it will provide deliveries to C5C up to a value of £153 miliion, including £36 million
already deliverad, in respect of the CSC Agreement, subject to the satisfactory achievement of delivery
milestones, with the opportunity to win additional NPfIT business in future through CSC in certain
circumstances. Under this agreement, iSOFT has made a number of commitments in respect to the future
development of its preducts for the NPT and the costs that it will bear for that work and CSC will have
step-in rights to support that development work in the event that iSOFT is unable to meet its material
milestones or fulfil its obligations.

On 31 May 2006 the Group disposed of the iSOFT Switzerland GmbH to Nexus Medizinesoftware und
Systeme AG for gross consideration of £807,000.

In May 2006 the Group announced a cost reducticn plan in respect of its UK operations. It is anticipated
that savings of £6,000,000 per annum will be achieved on an annualised basis with a reduction of
approximately 150 in employee numbers. The total cost of action already in hand to reduce the cost base,
which will be taken as a cne-time charge in the year ending 30 April 2007, is estimated to be at least

£7 million.

In August 2006 the Group confirmed the revision of its existing bank facilities for a further period of
15 months. Details of these revisions are included in note 19.
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As indicated in note 2 the Group has amended its revenue recognition policy as the Board has concluded
that the previous policy is inappropriate in light of the factors outiined in note 2. The proforma impact of
this change, together with the recognition of funding contracis as described on pages 13 and 14,
on the reported results for the current year and the impact on reported results for the prior year is

detailed below.

Year ended 30 April 2006

Proforma
historicat Poticy Revisad
policy impact policy
£'000 £'000 £'000
Revenue 213965 (2270 201695
Goodwill impairment {351,410) - (351,410)
Other aperating costs {196,684} 8,298 (188,386)
Total operating costs (548094) 8288 (539,796)
Loss from operations (334,12%) (3,972} (338,101)
Investment revenues 3,099 _ - 3.099
Finance costs (5,022) (3,726) (8,748)
Loss before tax (336,052) {7,698) (343,750}
Tax 5,103 (43,535) (38,432}
Loss for the year {330,949) {51,233) (382,182)

31a
Revenue
recognition,
contract
funding and
IFRS
adjustments
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The impact on the balance sheet as at 30 April 2006 is as follows:

30 April 2006 Proforma historical policy  Policy impact  Revised policy
£'000 £000 £'000
Non-current assets o
Goodwill 144,144 - 144,144
Other intangible assets T £ TR £
Property plant and equipment 14,057 - 14,057
Deferred tax asset 2,800 7,227 10,027
161,772 7,227 168,999
Currentassets
Inventories _ 720 - - 720
Trade and other receivables 125,969 {59,719} 66,250
Cash and cash equivalents 77,543 - 77.543
Current assets 204,232 (59,719) 144,513
heels neld o se ag e ioo0
Total assets 370,004 (52,492) 317,512
Current iabilittes D
Trade and other payables (107,240) (44,458) {151,698)
Obligations under finance leases (947) - {947}
Bank and other loans 429125 (18,640) - (47.765)
Shert-term provisions (943) - (943)
(138,255} (63,098) (201,353)
Liabilities associated with non-current assets
classified as held for sale (3,000} - (3,000)
(141,255} (632,098) (204,353)
Net current assets/(liabilities) 65,977 (122,817) (56,840)
N e iy
Bank and cther loans (26,747} (43,402) (70,149)
Retirement benefit obligation (10,712} - {10,712)
Obligations under finance leases {529) - (529)
Deferred tax liability - (805} (805)
Other payables {3,327} - (3,327)
Longiterm provisions (2,199) - (2,199}
(43,514) (44,207) (87,721}
Total liabilities (184,769} (107,305) (292,074)
Net assets 185,235 (159,797) 25,438
Equity
oo up G 'c'ab"\'t'a'l .................................. Y3aag e 53549
Share premium account 53,543 - 53,543
Own shares (3,758) - {3,758)
Merger and other reserves 130,742 - 130,742
Retained earnings {19,151) (159,797) {178,948)
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 184,625 (159,797) 24,828
Minarity interests 610 - 610
Total equity 185,235 (159,797) 25,438
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Impact on 2005 reported balances 31b
Explanation of transition to IFRSs f::;nr:}iion
This is the first year that the Group has presented its financial statements under iFRS. The last financial cont?act !
statements under UK GAAP were for the year ended 30 April 2005 and the date of transition to IFRS was .

funding and
therefore 1 May 2004,

IFRS
Reconciliation of equity at 30 April 2005 (date of last GAAP financial statements). adjustments

cont...

On 27 October 2005, the Group published financial information for the year ended 30 April 2005
restated for the adoption of IFRS. A copy of that release is available on the Group's website at
www.isoftpic.com.

Since the publication of that information, an additional change has come to light and has been reflected
in the comparative financial information contained in these financial statements. The change, in respect of
the period ended 30 April 2005, comprises the reclassification of accruals of £2,735,000 to share based
payment reserve,

The impact on the incoeme statement and balance sheet for the year to 30 April 2005 is set out below.
This pro-forma aiso incorporates adjustments arising from the transition to IFRS recognised since IFRS 108
reconciliations were published on 8 December 2005.

Revenue

recegnition

and contract

funding
UK GAAP prior year Adjusted IFRS 2005
30 April 2005 as reported adjustment UK GAAP  changes  Restated
£'000 £'000 £°000 £'000 £'000
Turnover 261992 (75853) 186139 - 186,139
Net cperating costs (213,871) 11,525 (202,446) 24,762 {177,684)
Profit from operations 48,021 {64,328) {16,307} 24,762 8,455
investment revenues 1,2 54 ' - 1 254 - 1,254
Finance costs (4,751 (2,558) (7,309) (225) (7,534)
Profit/{loss) before tax 44,524 {66,886) (22,362) 24,537 2,175
o o) BEILTE tda o005 Sren S e 910

Profit/(ioss) for the year 25,515 {44,296} (18,781) 24,675 5,894
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31b  Reconciliation of equity at 30 April 2005:

Revenue
recognition, Revenue recognition
contract
funding and and contract
IFRS UK GAAP funding prior  Adjusted iFRS 2005
adjustments 30 April 2005 as reported year adjustment UK GAAP changes Restated
cont... £'000 £'000 £'060 £'060 £'000

Non-current assets

Goodwill ' 456,434 ' - 456434 25221 481,655
Other intangible assets - - - 7,354 2,354
Property piant and equipment 11,116 _ S T'T,HG. T,Z49 12,365
Déferred tax asset o 2,947 34,116 57,003 2,048 59112
1o 470,497 54,116 524,613 30,873 555,486
Current assets
inventories 1,211 - 1,211 - 1,211
Trade and other receivables 114,758 (44,896) 69,862 (53) 69,809
(ash and cash equivalents 110,140 - 110,140 - 110,140
CurrentAssets 226108 (4489%) 181,213 (53) 181,180
Assets held for sale 4,000 - 4,000 - 4,000
Total Assets 700,606 9,220 709,826 30,820 740,646

Cur__rént _I_ié'bi_l_it'_i'és

Trade and other payables  (133,593)  (56,022) (189,615) 9,401 (180,214)
Tax lighilities (20,611) - (20,611) - (20,611)
Obiigations under finance leases (289) - {289y  (761) (1,050}
Bank and other loans (13,806) (15822) (29,628 - (29.628)
rorttar proviors B 0 400 Y a00)
(169,659) (71,844 (241,543) 8,640 (232,903)
Liabilities associated with
nen-current assets classified as
held for sale - - - (3,000) (3,000)
{169,699) (71,844) (241,543) 5,640 (235,903)
Net current assets {liabilities} 56,410 (116,740) {60,330} 8,587 (51,743)
Non-current liabilities
Bank and other loans (39,352) {40,872)  {80,224) - - (80,224)
Retirement benefit obligation (6,417} - {6,417} (2,750 (9,167}
Obiigations under france leasss Sy e R e
Deferred tax liabilities - (3,926} (3,926} - (3,926}
Other payables (3,401) - (3,401) - {3,401)
Long-term provisions (2,536} - {2,936} - (2,936}
{52,415) (44,798) (97,213} {3,275) 1100,488)
Total liabilities (222,114} (116,642) (338,756) 2,365 (336,391)
Net assets 478,492 (107,422) 371,070 33,185 404,255
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Reconciliation of equity at 30 April 2005 continued: 31b
Revenue
Revenue recognition recagnition,
and contract contract
. R . funding and
UK GAAP funding prior  Adjusted IFRS 2005 rgRg
30 April 2005 as reported year adjustment UK GAAP  changes Restated  adjustments
£:000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 cont...
Equ'i't'y ......................................
Called up share capital 22,778 - 22,778 - 22,778
Share premium account 43,082 - - 43,082 - 43,082
Merger and other reserves 336907 - - 336907 @ 24425 361332
Retained earnings 75,250 (107,422)  (32,172) 8760 (23,412)
Equity attributable 1o equity
helders of the parent 478,017 (107,42_2_)__ 370,595 33,185 403,780
Minority interest ' ' 475 . S 475 - 475
478,492 (107,422) 371,070 33,185 404,255

The presentation requirements of IFRS are refiected within the UK GAAP column above.

Explanatory notes relating to the [FRS adjustments applied to the reconciliation of equity

at 30 April 2005

t. Goodwill - goodwill has been frozen at the brought forward written down value as at 1 May 2004
and the UK GAAP amortisation charge for the year ended 30 April 2005 reversed to increase
intangible assets and prafit for the year by £25,221,000.

2. Other intangible assets - development costs of £4,357,000 have been capitalised, including
£2,003,000 capitalised in 2004, within other intangible assets. The amortisation charge in the period
was £2,003,000. The net increase in other intangible assets is therefore £2,354,000,

3. Property, plant and equipment - certain leases have been capitatised at a value of £1,249,000 in
accordance with IAS 17 with the refated liabifity being included as finance lease liabilities due within
one year {£761,000) and after one year {£525,000).

4. Deferred tax asset - restated in accordance with 1AS 12 to include deferred tax arising on:

£'000
Reclassification from retirement benefit 'o'Bﬂ'iga.{ib'h 2,750
Rolied aver gains on asset disposals {2,299)
Share based payments _ _ 2,420
Capitalisation of developmentcosts (706)
Other timing differences (1186)

2,049

The deferred taxation asset historically netted off the liability on the defined benefit pension scheme has
been reclassified to deferred tax assets in accordance with 1AS 12. Gains subject to rollover relief were not
provided for under UK GAAP where the gain had been deferred on a semi-permanent basis. 1AS 12 requires
deferred tax to be provided irrespective of whether there is an intention 1o sell the asset that the gains are
rolled into. Differences in timing between the recogniticn of accounting charges and corporation tax
deductions under IAS now create temporary differences resulting in deferred tax rather than a permanent
difference under UK GAAF IAS 12 applies to all share-based payments and is not time restricted to those
issued post 1 November 2002. The capitalisation of development costs has resulted in the creation of a
deferred tax fliability.

m
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5. Trade and other payables - the reduction comprises:

£'000
Dividends proposed e a48)
Holicay pay accrual 4230
Share option reserve reclassification . (2,735)
Liabilities asseciated with non-current assets classified as held for sale (3,000)
(9,401)

Dividends are recognised when paid in accordance with IAS 10. The holiday pay liability is accrued in
accordance with 1AS 19,

Accruals in respect of share based payments are reclassified 1o reserves in accordance with {FRS2.

6. Obligations under finance leases - £761,000 is included within currant liabilities and £525,000 in
non-current liabilities with respect to finance leases that were previously classified as operating leases
under SSAP 21.

7. Merger and other reserves - include a transfer to the merger reserve of £20,340,000 following reversal
of goodwill amortisation charge and the share option reserve of £4,085,000 relating to the additional
share based payments charge for the year and transfer from accruals.

Explanatory notes relating to the IFRS adjustments applied to the income statement for the year
ended 30 April 2005
1. Net operating costs - the reduction in net operating costs comprises:

£'000

Goeodwili amortisation charge reversal 25,221
Share based payments adjustment {1,043}
Finance lease interest Lo S 233
Net capitalised development cost 351
24,762

In accordance with IFRS 3, the goodwill amortisation charge recognised in the 2005 financial statements of
£25,221,000 has been reversed in order to freeze the goodwill value at the brought forward net book value
as at 1 May 2004. The share-based payments charge of £1,043,000 has been computed in accordance with
IFRS 2 using a Black-Scholes model. The finance costs of £233,000 relate to interest in respect of operating
leases reclassified as finance leases in accordance with 1AS 17. The net capitalised development cost is the
net effect of the capitalisation of development costs in the year of £2,354,000 and the amortisation of
development costs previously capitalised of £2,003,000.

2. Finance cost - the £225,000 charge arises from interest on finance leases

3. Tax - the additional credit of £138,000 under 1AS 12 represents the change in deferred tax arising from
the IFRS adjustments between the two balance sheet dates.
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Revenue recognition 31c
1 May 2004 and contract 1May  Reconciliation
UK GAAP funding prior  Adjusted IFRS 2004  ©of equity at
1 May 2004 as reported year adjustment UK GAAP changes adjusted 1 May 2004
£'000 £000 £000 £'000 £:000
Non-current assets e L
Goodwill L 473237 nLAIsesn o 873237
Other intangible assets - - - 2,003 2,003
Property plant and equipment 11,870 - 11,870 1,662 13,532
Deferred tax asset 9,513 27600 37,113 2938 40,051
494,620 27,600 522,220 6,603 528,823
Current assets
Inventories 3,837 _ - 3,837 - 3,837
Trade and ofher receivables 97,423 12461 109884 {126) 103,758
Cash and cash equivalents 75,034 - 75,034 - 75,034
Current assets 176,294 12,461 188,755 (126) 188,629
Assets held for sale 10,500 - 10,500 - 10,500
Total assets 681,414 40,061 721,475 6,477 727,952
Current liabilities
Trade and cther payables {121,396) (36,374) (157,770) 8,208 (149,562}
Texliapilives aaisy sy - (14150
Obligations under finance leases (625) - (625) {654) (1,279
Bank and other loans (9,225) (11,281} (20,506) - (20,506)
Short term provisions (£,200) - (6,200) - {6,200}
PR ¥ 13 P17/ S (47.655) (199.252) 7,554 (191,698)
Liabilities associated with non-current '
assets classified as held for sale - - - {3,000) {3,000)
Net current asset (liabilities) 24,697 (35,194) {10,497) 7,428 (3,069)
Non-current liabilities
Bank and other loans (60,820) (55,581}  (116,401) - {116,401
Retirement henefit ohligation (6,119) - (6,119} (2,622) (8,741}
Obligations under finance leases (597) - (597} (952)  (1,549)
Deferred tax liabilities . - R - -
Other payables (5,795} - {5,795) - (5795
Long term provisions (4,287) - {4,287} - (4,287)
{77.618) (55,581) (133,199} (3,574 (136,773)
Total lighilities {229,215} (103,236) (332,451} 980 (331,471}
Net assets 452,199 (63,175) 389,024 7,457 396,481

13
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Revenue recognition

1 May 2004 and contract 1 May
UK GAAP funding prier  Adjusted IFRS 2004
as reported year adjustment UK GAAP changes adjusted
£:000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Equity S L
Called up share capital . 22,542 - 22,542 - 22,542
Share premium account 36,672 - 36,672 - 36,672
Merger and other reserves 363,865 - 363,865 2,191 366,056
Retained earnings 28,858 (63,175) (34,317) 5,266  (29,051)
Equity attributable to equity
holders of the parent 451,937 (63,175) 388,762 7.457 396,219
Minority interests 262 - 262 - 262
Total equity 452,199 (63,175) 389,024 7,457 396,481

The presentation requirements of IFRS are reflected within the UK GAAP column above.

Explanatory notes relating to the IFRS and other adjustments applied to the reconciliation of equity
at 1 May 2004

As explained in note 31b, since the publication of the IFRS restatement on 27 Qctober 2005, an additional
¢hange has come to light and has been reflected in the reconciliation of equity at 1 May 2004. This
comprises the reclassification of accruals of £1,884,000 to share based payment reserve,

1. Other intangible assets - development costs of £2,003,000 have been capitalised and included within
other intangible assets.

2. Property, plant and equipment - certain lease arrangements have been capitalised at a net book value
of £1,662,000 in accordance with 1AS 17 with the related liability being included as finance lease
liabilities due within one year (£654,000} and after cne year (£952,000).

3. Deferred tax asset - restated in accordance with IAS 12 te include deferred tax arising on:

£'000
Reclassification from retirement benefit obligation _ N _ 2,622
Rolled over gains on asset disposals _ (2,299}
Other deferred tax adjustments 292
Share based payment adjustment 2,924
Capitalisation of development costs (601)

2,938

Deterred taxation historically netted off the liability on the defined benefit pension scheme has been
reclassified to deferred tax assets in accordance with 1AS 12. Gains subject to rollover relief were not
provided for under UK GAAP where the gain had been deferred cn a semi-permanent basis. 1AS 12 requires
deferred tax to be provided irrespective of whether there is an intention to sell the asset that the gains are
rolled into. Differences in timing between the recognition of accounting charges and corporation tax
deductions under I1AS now create temporary differences resulting in deferred tax rather than a permanent
difference under UK GAAP. A5 12 applies to all share based payments and is not time restricted to those
issued post 1 November 2002. The capitalisation of development costs has resulted in the ¢reation of a
deferred tax liability.




Financial Statements
2006 Annual Report and Accounts

4. Trade and other payables - the reduction in liability comprises: 31c
£000 Reconciliation
of equity at
Dividends proposed . U (3,820 ' May 2004
Haliday pay accrual - _ _ o208
Share opticn reserve reclassification (1,884)
Liabilities associated with non-current assets classified as held for sale -~~~ (3,000)
Other (12)
iotal (8,208}

Dividends are recognised when paid in accordance with 1AS 10. The holiday pay liability is accrued in
accordance with 1AS 19. Accruals in respect of share based payments are reclassified to reserves in
accordance with IFRS 2.

5. Obligations under finance leases - £654,000 is included within current liabilities and £952,000 in
non-current liabilities with respect to finance leases that were previously classified as operating leases
under SSAP 21,

6. Merger and other reserves - an additional share option reserve of £307,000 has been created due to
the share based payment charge, together with the transfer of the balance sheet accrual of £1,884,000.
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of iSOFT Group plc

We have audited the individual Company financial statements of iSOFT Group plc for the year ended 30 April
2006 which comprise the balance sheet and the related notes 1 to 13. These individual company financial
statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.

The corporate governance statement and the directors’ remuneration report are included in the Group annual
report of iISOFT Group plc for the year ended 30 April 2006. We have reported separately on the group financial
staternents of iISOFT Group plc for the year ended 30 April 2006 and on the information in the Report of the
Directors that is described as having been audited.

This repart is made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with section 235 of the
Companies Act 1985, Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state 1o the Company's members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors' report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the
Company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors' responsibilities for preparing the annual report and the individual Company financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice) are set out in the statement of directors' responsibilities.

Cur responsibility is to audit the individual company financial statements in accordance with relevant United
Kingdom legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and ireland).

We report to you our opinion as to whether the individual Company financial statements give a true and fair
view, in accordance with the refevant financial reporting framewocrk, and-whether the individual Company
financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985. We report to
you whether in our opinion tha informaticn given in the Report of the Directers is consistent with the individual
Company financial statements. We also report 1o you if the Company has not kept proper accounting records, if
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or if informaticn specified by
law regarding directors' remuneration and other transactions is not disclosed.

We read the Report of the Directors and the other information contained in the annual report for the above year
as described in the contents section and consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any
apparent misstaternents or material inconsistencies with the individual Company finandial statements.

Basis of audit opinion

we conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the
Auditing Practices Board, except the scope of our work was limited as explained befow. An audit includes
exarnination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the individual Company
financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the
directors in the preparation of the individual Company financial statements, and of whethar the accounting
policies are apprepriate to the Campany’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in
order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the individual Company financial
statements are free from material misstaternent, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error.

However, the evidence available 1o us was limited because of the following significant matiers:

Carrying value of investments in, and amounts due from, subsidiary undertakings, together with all
other assets and liabilities

Arising from the limitations in audit scope detailed in our report on the Group finandial statements on pages 61
to 64, in particular the investigations into accounting irregularities in respect of subsidiary undertakings, together
with the detail given in notes 1 and 2 of the Group financial statements, sufficient and appropriate audit
evidence is not available to determine the carrying values of investments in, and amounts due from, subsidiary
undertakings, together with all other assets and liabilities included in the individual Company balance sheet. In
the absence of any alternative evidence available to us, we have been unable to form a view on any possible
adjustments to the financial statements that might have been determined had the limitations not existed.
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Going concern

As detailed in note 1 to the Group financial statements, the directors recognise that there are material
uncertainties which may cast significant doubt an the Company's and the Group's ability to cantinue in
operation. Having taken into account these material uncertainties, the directors consider it is appropriate to
prepare the financial statements of the Company on the going concern basis. In the circumstances of the Group
and the Company, we have been unable to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the
reascnahleness of the directors' assumptions regarding the identified material uncertainties. As a result, and in
the absence of any alternative evidence available 10 us, we have been unable to form a view as to the
appiicability of the going concern hasis for the Company, together with the effect on the individual company
finandial staternents should this basis be inappropriate. Any such adjustrnents would indude writing down the
carrying value of assets, including investments in subsidiary undertakings, to their recoverable amount and
providing for any further liabilities that might arise.

In forming our cpinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the
individuat Company financial statements,

Opinion: disclaimer on view given by individual Company financial statements
Because of the possible effects of the limitations in evidence available to us, we are unable to form an opirion
as to whether:

« the individual Company financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, of the state of the company's affairs as at 30 April 2006; and

* the individual Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 1985 including comparative information.

In respect of the limitations of cur work referred to above we have not obtained all the information and
explanations that we considered necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, having regard to our disclaimer of opinion set out above, the information given in the Report of
the Directors is consistent with the financial statements. The information given in the Report of the Directors
includes that specific information presented in the Financial Review, Report of the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer and Corporate Social Responsibility Statement that are cross-referred from the Business Raview section of
the Report of the Directors.

ST < Tevehe vt

Deloitte & Touche LLP

Chartered Accecuntants and Registered Auditors
Manchester

25 August 2006
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Balance sheet as at 30 April 2006

Note 2006 2005
£'000 £'000
Restated
Fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets 3 2,749 1,041
investments 4 87,218 445,598
89,967 446,639
Current asseté
Debtors 5 64,827 95,706
Cash at bank and in hand 12 366
y _ e _ . 64833 96,072
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 6 (66,769) {66,406}
Net current (liabilities)assets (1,930) 25,665
Total e Toss e . . e T a0
Creditors: amounts falling due after one year 7 (26,640} (38,226)
Provisions for liabilities and charges 8 - (8)
MNet assets 61,397 438,071
Capital and reserves _
Called-up share capitai 9 23,249 22,778
é'hé're'p'r'ér'*ni'u'r'ﬁ TR e B sisis a3 08
Investment in own shares 10 (3,758) -
Share based payment reserve 10 4,800 3,073
Merger reserve 10 88,683 363,865
brofis s loge Sceqimy T e T e A0 o
Equity shareholders' funds 61,397 438,071

The financial statements were approved by the Board of directors and authorised for issue on 25 August 2006.
They were signed on its behalf by:

John Weston Gav%

Chairman and acting Chief Executive Officer Group Finance Director
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Notes to the financial statements

i. Basis of accounting 01

The separate financial statements of the Company are presented as required by the Companies Act 1985. Significant
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with applicable United accounting
Kingdom Accounting standards and law. In preparing these individual company financial statements, the policies

significant limitations and crcumstances set out in note 1 to Group finandial statements were taken
into account.

The principal accounting policies are summarised below. They have been applied consistently throughout
the year and the preceding year with the exceptions of FRS 20 and FRS 21 which have been applied for
the first time in this reporting period and prior year balances restated accordingly.

Impact of new FRS
The follewing new accounting standards have alsc been adopted in the year but have had no impact on
the financial statements:

FRS 25 Financial instruments: Disciosure and presentation
FRS 26 Financial instruments: Measurement
FRS 28 Corresponding amounts

ii. Foreign exchange

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the rates ruling at the dates
of transactions. Monetary assets ana liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet
date are translated at the rates ruling at that date. Transiation differances are taken to the profit and

loss account.

iii. Tangible fixed assets

Tangibie fixed assets are stated at cost less any applicable discounts. Depreciation is provided at rates
calculated to write down the cost of tangible assets over their estimated useful life on a straight-line
basis. The annual rates of depreciation, by category of fixed asset, are as follows:

* office eguipment, fixtures and fittings 12.5% to 20.0%

iv, Share-based payments

The Company has applied the requirements of FRS 20, 'Share-based Payments'. In accordance with the
transitional provisions, FRS 20 has been applied to ail grants of equity instruments after 7 Novernber 2002
that were unvested as of 1 May 2005.

The Company issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain employees.

Equity-settied share-based payments are measured at fair value at the date of grant. The fair value
determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed cn a straight-fine
basis over the vesting period, based on the Company's estimate of shares that will eventually vest. Fair
value is measured by use of a Black-Scholes maodel or Binomial maodel, as most appropriate for the terms
of the instrument. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on management's best
estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions, and behavioral considerations. The
cost in relation to the deferred bonus scheme is charged in the year of performance.

v, Fixed asset investments
Fixed asset investrnents are stated at cost less any wiite down for impairment.

vi. Leased assets
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged tc the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease.

vil. Taxation
Corporaticn tax is provided on taxable profits at the current rate.

Deferred tax is provided cn timing differences that have arisen but not reversed by the balance sheet
date, where the timing differences result in an obligation to pay more ax, or a right 10 pay less tax, in the
future. Timing differences arise because of differences between the treatment of certain items for
accounting and taxation purposes.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is regarded as more likely than not that they wili
be recovered.
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Notes to the financial statements

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the periods when the timing
differences are expected to reverse, based on tax rates and law enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

Where law cr accounting standards require gains and losses to be recognised in the staterment of total
recognised gains and losses, the refated taxation is also taken divectly 1o the statement of total recognised
gains and losses.

vili.  Pensions
The Company operates a defined contribution scheme. The pension charge shown represents the total
contributions made by the Company for the year.

ix. Significant accounting judgements and estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, which are detailed above, management has
made judgements that the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements
relate to the assumptions on valuation of investrnents and intercompany loan accounts. Managerment
have reviewed the carrying value of investments in the balance sheet as at 30 April 2006, As a result of
this review, an impairment charge of £362,462,000 has been recognised. Furthermore, following an
assessment of the recoverability of intercompany receivable balances a further provision of £20,891,000
has been recognised against these balances.

Company profit and loss account

As permitted by Section 230 of the Companies Act 1985, the Company has elected not to present its
own profit and loss account for the year. A loss of £379,545,000 (2005: profit of £12,358,000) is dealt
with in the accounts of the Company. The {oss in the current year includes investment and loan
impairments totalling £383,353,000.

The auditors' remuneration for services to the Company was £34,000 {2005: £25,000).

Staff costs
2006 2005
£000 £0C0
Employees costs including directors amourted to: - .
Wages and salaries 12,714 7,893
Social security costs 1,257 1,089
Other pension costs 577 467
14,548 9,449

The average monthly number of employees, including executive directers, employed by the Company during
the year was:

2006 2005

Number Number

Development 20 13
Sales and marketing 17 .
HR legal and finance o - | e ¥ . B
Computer services 37 .

129 51
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Fixtures, fittings &

equipment
£'000

Cost e
At 1 May 2005 1,050
Additions 1,385
At 30 April 2006 3,035
Depreciation
At 1 May 2005 9
Charge for the year 277
At 30 Apri 2006 286
Net book value
At 30 April 2006 2,749
At 1 May 2005 1,041

Shares in subsidiary
undertakings

£'000
Cost e e
At 1 May 2005 445,598
Additions o 4,854
Transfers {772}
At 30 April 2006 449,680
Frovision for impairment
AttMay2005 -
Impairment (362,462}
At 30 April 2006 (362,462)
Netbookvale
At 30 April 2006 87,218
At 30 April 2005 445,598

03
Tangible
fixed assets

04
Fixed asset
investments
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Notes to the financial statements

Principal trading

Subsidiaries share held
ISOFT plc Crdinary
iSOFT R&D Private Limited* Crdinary
iSOFT Australia Pty Limited* Qrdinary
iISOFT NZ Limnited* Crdinary
iSOFT Holdings (Singapore) Limited™ Ordinary
i5OFT Ltd _ Crainary
Revive Health Limited* Ordinary
Torex Health Limited ™ Crdinary
Torex Services Limited* Ordinary
Torex Medical Systems Limited* Qrdinary
ISOFT Netherlands BV* Ordinary
iSOFT Deutschland GmbH* Ordinary
ISOFT Switzerland GmbH* Ordinary
ISOFT Business Solutions (Ireland) Limited*  Ordinary
ISOFT Business Solutions (HK) Limitec™

iSOFT Business Solutions UK Limited* Ordinary
Torex Radiology Systems Limited* Ordinary
Torex Protos Limited™ Ordinary
HAS Solutions Pty Limited* Ordinary
Paramedical Pty Limited* Ordinary
iSOFT Sanidad S.A. Ordinary

*denctes shares not held directiy by iSOFT Group plc.

Ordinary 10

Class of Proportion

of shares

100%
94%

Nature
of business

Computer services

Software development

Computer services
Computer services
Computer services
Computer servicas
Computer services
Computer services

_Computer services

Computer services
Computer services
Computer services
Computer services

. Computer services

Computer services
Computer servicas
Computer services
Computer services
Computer services

Country of
incorporation

England & Wales
india

______ Australia
New Zealand
Singapore
__________ Ireland
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
Netherlands
Germany
Switzerland

- lreland
.....Hong Keng
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
Austraiia
Australia

Spain

All companies have a financial year end of 30 April, with the exception of iISOFT R&D Private Limited, which

has a financial year end of 31 March.

2006 2005

£'000 £000

Amounts owed by Group undertakings 63,093 95,077
Other debtors N - 457
Prepayments and accrued income 767 172
Deferred tax (note 8) 967 -
64,827 95,706

2006 2005

£'000 £'00¢

Bank and other borrowings 47,262 28,157
Trade creditors 864 269
Armounts owed 1o Group undertakings 14,845 32,770
Corporationtax ... ... 24 . 200
Accruals and other creditors 3,774 5010
66,769 66,406
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Creditors falling due after more than one year comprise bank loans. Bank loans and overdrafts

mature as follows:

2006 2005

£'000 £'000
Amounts falling due within 1-2 years 11,760 11,760
Amounts falling due within 2-5 years 14,880 26,466
Amounts faling dve after more than Tyear T 26640 38,226
Amounts falling due within 1 year 47,262 28,157
Total bank loans and overdrafts 73,902 66,383

In August 2006 the Company entered into new facility arrangements, details of which are included in note

19 of the Consolidated Group Accounts.

Provisions for liabilities and charges comprise deferred tax as follows:
2006 2005
£'000 £'000
N capitél'é'lu\é\'/\'fé'r_ﬂ_c_e e e T o
Short term timing differences {1,088)
Deferred taxation (asset)/provision (967} 8
The movement on deferred tax comprises:
2006
£'000
As at 1 May 2005 8
Credited in the year {975
As at 30 April 2006 (967)
2006 2005
£ f
Authorised
350,000,000 (2005: 350,000,000} ordinary shares of £0.10 each 35,000,000 35,000,000
2006 2005
f f
Allotted, called-up and fully paid - U .
232,485,722 (2005: 227,783,124) ordinary shares of £0.10 each 23,248,572 22,778,312

Shares issued during the period

On 16 August 2005, the Company allotted 200,000 shares at a fair value of £847,500 in consideration

for an additional 6% stake in iSOFT R&D Private Limited.

3,737.840 shares have been issued during the year 1o satisfy the Company's requirements under the

Group's share schemes, Consideration received was £7,030,C00.

On 21 October 2005 the Company issued 294,559 shares at a fair value of £1,031,781 in respect of the

settlement of GAP deferred consideration.

0On 12 October 2005 the Company issued 470,199 shares at a fair value of £2,039,000 in respect of the

acquisition of Novasoft Sanidad $.A.
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Called-up
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Notes to the financial statements

Share options

The faliowing options are outstanding under unapproved and approved share option schemes. Exercise of
these optiens is subject to employees meeting individual performance criteria and also to the performance
of the Group measured over three years from the date of grant. Options include directors' share options.

Executive options are granted at market value at the date of grant.

Date of grant  Number Subscription price End of personal
per share (pence) performance period

1Juoo 100,000 oo o 106t
11 Oct 01 100,000* 2175 10 Oct 02
30 Sep 02 220,000 1513 29 Sep 03
25 Mar 04 815,000 338.0 24 Mar 05
09Feb 05 2,590,000 3717 . 08Feb 06
30 Jun 05 250,000 423.8 26 Jun 06
28 Jul 05 220,000 418.0 S 270 06

Period
exercisable
from

11 Jul 03

11 Oct 04
30 Sep 05
25 Mar 07

 09Feb 08

30 Jun 08
28 Jul 08

Period
exercisable
to

10Jul 10
10 Oct 11
29 Sep 12
24 Mar 14
08 Feb 15

2% Jun 15

27 Ul 15

The following Torex share options were rolled over into options over iSOFT Group shares at the time of the

merger and are still outstanding in respect of employees of iSOFT Group plc.

Date of grant  Number Subscription price End of personal
per share (pence) performance period

15Mar 01 ;
27 Feb 02 24,767+ 418.27 23 Dec 03

17,691 37446 23 Dec03

Period
exercisable
from

1S'Mar 04
27 Feb 05

Period
exercisable
to

i4 I\/Iar”11_
26 Feb 12

* The Company has taken advantage of the exemption available under FRS 20 not 1o treat the above

opticns as share based payments.

In addition to the options above, 48,509 opticns were outstanding in respect of the savings related share
option scheme, 4,875 have an exercise price of 239.0 pence (first exercisable in 20086}, 21,454 have an

exercise price of 266.0 pence {first exercisable in 2007), and 22,180 have an exercise price of 348.5 pence
{first exercisable in 2008). These options are granted at a 20% discount to market value at the date of grant.

Furthermore awards of 731,008 shares were made under the Performance Share plan (PSP} 2005 on 28 July

2005. An equivalent number of shares were held in trust to satisty the awards under this plan.
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Notes to the financial statements

Equity-settled share option and deferred share schemes

The Company has a number of share option and SAYE schemes for all employees of the Group, together
with a performance share scheme for certain senior employees and a deferred share bonus scheme for
Directors. Detalls of the executive and SAYE opticns outstanding during the year are as follows.

30 April 2006
Number of  Weighted  Number of
share average share
options exercise options

price {£)
Outstanding at beginning of period 6416686 279 4,115,509
Granted during the period - o 506,204 417 2,617,827
Forfeited during the period {54,903) (1.57) (10,650
Exercised in the period (2,482,020) (1.84) (306,000)
Exercisable at the end of the pericd 4,385,967 3.50 6,416,686

30 April 2005
Weighted
daverage
exercise

price (£)

218
371
(3.17)
(2.12)
2.79

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised during the period was
£4.15. The options outstanding at 30 April 2006 had weighted average remaining contractual life of 7.6
years. The aggregate of the estimated fair values of the options granted in the year was £601,477

(2005: £3,525,419).

The inputs into the Black-Scholes model for the above options are as follows:

30 April 2006

£

Weighted average share price 3.72

Weighted average exercise price 3.69
Expected volatility 081

Expected life 3.00

Risk-free rate 4.62

Dividend yield _ _ 0.60

Fair value 1.35

30 April 2005
£

3.37
3.34
047
3.00
4.31
0.55
1.27

Expected volatility was determined hy calculating the historical volatility of the Group's share price over the
previous 7 years. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based ocn management's best
estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions, and behavioural considerations.
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Reserves

Notes to the financial statements

The Group has alsa granted deferred bonus shares to directors. The movement on these entitlements
was as follows:
Number of Weighted average

shares grant price {£)
At 1 May 2004 585,677 3.22
Granted in theyear 242,252 351
Lapsed in the year 9,173) {4.08)
AL 30 April 2005 818,756 330
Granted in the year 119,616 4.27
Exercised in the year {39,628) {4.08)
At 30 Aprif 2006 898744 339

Due to the nature of the scheme the fair value equates to the grant price.

The Group granted 765,039 shares under the Perfarmance Share Plan (PSP} 2005 on 28 july 2005. These
shares were valued using a Binominal Model and have an estimated fair value of £2.67 per share.

The Company recognised total expenses of £1,727,000 and £1,168,000 related to equity-setiled share-based
payment transactions in the year to 30 April 2006 and 30 April 2005 respectively.

Share premium Share based  Investment in Merger

account  payment reserve own shares reserves

£'000 £'000 £'000 £000

At May2005 43082 S .. - 363869
Prior year adjustment - 3,073 - -
At 1 May 2005 - restated 43,082 3,073 - 363,865
Transfer to profit and loss - - - {275,182)
Shares acquired T Bse
Share option charge - 1,727 - -
Premiumn on shares issued 10,461 - - -
At 30 April 2006 53,543 4 800 (3,758) 88,683

During the year the Group acquired 884,655 shares at a cost of £3,758,000. These shares were acquired
through the Group Employee benefit trust to satisfy grants made in the current year under the Performance
Share Plan {PSP) 2005 and under the Directors' deferred share plan.
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£'000
Balance at 1 May 2005 as previously reported 9,124
Prior year adjustment (3,851)
At 1 May 2005 as restated 5,273
Dividends paid (6,030}
Transfer from merger reserve 275,182
Loss for the financial year {379,545)
As at 30 April 2006 {105,120
£'000
The prior vear sdiustment "c&ﬁbfi's'é's:' ................................................. N
Restatement of dividends under FRS 21 (1,854)
Reclassification of share based payments under FRS 20 (1,997)
(3,851)
2006 2005
£'000 £'000
{Loss)/profit for the financial year (379,545) 12,358
Dividends {6,030) (5,560)
(385,575) 6,798
Shares issued net of costs 10,932 6,646
Share option reserve 1,727 1,168
Investment in own shares {3.758) -
Net (decrease)increase in shareholders funds o (376,674) 14,612
Opening shareholders' funds (restated) 438,071 423,459
Closing shareholders’ funds 61,397 438,071
The restaternent of shareholders’ funds comprises:
2006 2005
£'000 £'000
Opening shareholders’ funds as previously reported - _'43_8,'349 430,551
Restatement of dividends under FRS 21 (1,854) (8,168)
Reclassification of share based payments under FRS 20 1,076 1,076
Restated shareholders’ funds at beginning of year 438,071 423,459
At 30 April 2006 the Company has lease arrangements in respect of properties, vehicles, plant and
equipment for which payments extend over a number of years as follows:
2006 2005
2006 Vehictes, plant 2005 Vehicles, plant
Property and equipment Property and equipment
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Wit'hinoneyear : e A
Within two to five years - 53 - 53
After five years 387 - 387 -
387 53 387 57

11
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IFRS IFRS
2006 2005
_ fm fm

Results . e
Revenue _ 2007 186.1
(Lossyprofit from operations {338.1) 8.5
Normalised operating profit/{loss)* 13.3 7.2
Normalised (lossyprofit before tax< 77 (09
Key statistics
{Loss)fearnings per share (pence) (165.1) 256
Underlying (loss)earnings per share (pence} (13.3) 2.6
Netfondvidebn e T TS
Cash generated by operations 1.9 92.4
Average number of employees 3,224 2,546

* stated before goodwill amortisation, goodwill impairment and exceptional items.

54
59
16.9
252




Registered & head office
iSOFT Group plc

Aviator Way

Manchester Businass Park
Manchester M22 5TG

Registered number
3716736

Website
www.isoftplc.com

Executive directors

lohn Weston

Chairman and acting Chief
Executive Officer

Stephen Graham
Group Commercial Director

Ravi Kumar
Chief Technology Officer

Gavin James
Group Finance Director

Non-executive directors
Geoffrey White
Non-executive Deputy Chairman

Eurfyl ap Gwilym
Rene Kern

David Thorpe
Ken Lever

Company Secretary
Teifion Hill

Financial advisers &
stockbrokers

Morgan Stanley & Co.
International Ltd

25 Cabot Square
Canary Wharf

London E14 4QA

Bridgewell Ltd

Old Change House

128 Queen Victoria Stret
London EC4V 4BJ

Independent Auditor
Deloitte & Touche LLP
201 Deansgate
Manchester

M60 2AT

Solicitors
Linklaters

One Silk Street
London EC2Y 8HQ

Ashurst
Broadwalk House
5 Appeld Street
tondon EC2A 2HA

Remuneration advisers
Kepler Associates Limited
60 Trafalgar Square

London W(C2N 5D5%

Company Information
2006 Annual Report and Accounts

Bankers 129
Lloyds TSB Bank plc

25 Gresham Street

London EC2V 7HN

Royal Bank of Scotland plc
135 Bishopsgate
London ECZM 3UR

Barclays Bank plc

5 The North Colonnade
Canary Wharf

London E14 4BB

HS8C Bank plc
8 Canada Square
London E14 5HQ

Publfic relations
Financia! Dynamics
Holborn Gate

26 Scuthampton Buildings
London WC2A 178

Registrars

Lloyds TSB Registrars
The Causeway
Worthing

West Sussex BN99 6DA




Investor and online shareholder services
Information for investors is available via the Company
website at www.isoftplc.com/finvestor.

Shareholders can also access details of their
shareholding by registering with the Shareview
service provided by our registrar, Licyds TSB
Registrars. The service also provides the facility for
shareholders to amend address or dividend payment
instructions online.

To register with the Shareview service please visit
www.shareview.co.uk. You will need your ‘shareholder
reference’ which is printed on recent shareholder
correspendence, for example, your proxy form or
dividend stationery. There is no charge to register
for Shareview.



